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Forward looking statements
This report contains forward-looking statements, which may be identified by their use of words like 
‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will’, ‘anticipates’, ‘believes’, ‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘estimates’ or other words of similar 
meaning. All statements that address expectations of projections about the future, including but not 
limited to statements about the Company’s strategy for growth, product development, market position, 
expenditures and financial results, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based 
on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that these 
assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised. 

The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could thus differ materially from those 
projected in any such forward-looking statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly 
amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, 
information or events.

The Company has sourced the industry information from the publicly available resources and has not 
verified those information independently.



Customer  
at the core 
Capability to offer customised solutions in a seamless manner coupled with 
efficient service and gaining acceptance across global marketplace are the 
critical aspects of establishing a brand.

At Triveni Turbines, our customers have been the key to our success. 
We have leveraged our technological, engineering and manufacturing 
capabilities to become a highly responsive organisation to the needs of our 
customers. Over the recent past, we have been intensifying our efforts and 
improving our capabilities to serve customers better. 

As a result, we have expanded our operating geographies, enhanced our 
product and service portfolio. Thanks to all these efforts, our business has 
become more global than ever before. 



Serving customers 
from a step closer
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At Triveni Turbines, we are committed to set benchmarks for 
efficiency, robustness and reliability of turbines. This relentless 
commitment has resulted in bringing world class turbine solutions 
to all our customers globally. Along with a robust product, a strong 
global network is required to understand the dynamic market and 
customers’ requirements.

We have been continuously expanding our global presence over the past few years in 
order to provide better value proposition to our customers. We believe that expanding 
globally is not only about exporting our products, but also to bring our facilities a step 
closer to customers thus increasing our brand awareness and access. 

Our strategy to focus on entering new markets and geographies has led us to 
establish a credible network which in turn has resulted in delivering our technologically 
advanced products in over 50 countries. One of the sectors globally, where we have 
made significant inroads, is the renewables. In a very short span of four years, we have 
achieved a sizeable market share in the palm oil sector both in Indonesia and Malaysia. 

In order to serve our customers by being closer to their establishments, we have 
established subsidiaries in the UK and Middle East. These two offices, together with 
our plan to post competent and experienced personnel, tying up with local support 
across select geographies, should help us to aggressively market our products and 
aftermarket offerings. The aftermarket segment will cater to both our own customer 
base and customers with other makes of equipment. We are confident that this chosen 
strategic direction will help us in strengthening our partnership with customers.

Over 2500
Turbines installed globally

Over 50countries 

Global installations
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Serving customers  
with an enhanced offering
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At Triveni Turbines, we understand the economics and needs 
of the customers to have equipment with better operating 
efficiencies, long term reliability, maximum availability and 
extended operating life to maximise return on investment. 
Our r&D programmes are focused to provide solutions based 
on the customer requirements. 

We partner with customers to provide a comprehensive range of service solutions for 
the complete lifecycle of steam turbines. Our service motto is to follow a customer 
centric approach to provide total customer satisfaction that has helped us to attain an 
extremely high repeat customer orders.

Globally benchmarked and well proven processes are adopted and our turbines 
meet stringent international quality standards. being one of the world’s largest 
manufacturers of steam turbines ranging up to 30 MW for providing power solutions 
specifically for sugar & process Co-generation industries, biomass based independent 
power generation, Waste-to-energy and District heating facilities, is a testimony to our 
value proposition including high quality standards.

Our efforts of giving a thrust to our global momentum by enhancing our product 
offering under Jv with GE has started to bear fruits. We have already delivered our first 
overseas turbine under this Jv. This will act as a reference for our global customers. 

With a strong enquiry book from over 100 countries and a range of innovative products 
to cater to constantly changing market and customer needs, we would continue to 
remain focused on providing total customer satisfaction.

Over11GW 
of installations

range upto100 MW
(including GETl)
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This is
Triveni Turbines

Triveni Turbine limited (TTl) is a leading steam turbines manufacturer from India 
with a global footprint spanning over 50 countries. TTl has been helping customers 
in achieving power self sufficiency and sustainability with its customised steam 
turbines up to 100 MW range. 
The Company is the market leader in India with a dominant market share. It also offers comprehensive aftermarket 
services covering the entire lifecycle of turbines. TTl operates in higher capacity range of above 30 MW to 100 MW 
turbines through its subsidiary, GE Triveni ltd., a joint venture company with General Electric.
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 Products & Services
TTl offers robust back-pressure and condensing 
steam turbines that work across a wide range of 
pressure and flow applications. For TTl, customer 
relations means much more than just completing 
the contractual commitment of supplying and 
commissioning the turbine. TTl stands by its 
customers to make their operations reliable and 
provides a 360-degree after sales services support 
during the complete life cycle for all types of 
industrial steam turbines. With a dedicated team 
of highly skilled and experienced engineers, TTl 
offers a wide suite of integrated solutions like 
erection & commissioning, spare parts, operations & 
maintenance and refurbishing, among others.

 Customer Segments
TTl find applications in a wide range of industries 
such as sugar, steel, pulp & paper, Textiles, Chemical, 
palm Oil, Food processing etc. The turbines are 
used in multiple applications like Co-generation, 
Combined heat & power Generation, Waste to 
Energy, Captive power Generation and Independent 
power Generation.

 

Geographical Presence
With over 2500 turbines installations in over 
50 countries globally, the Company is fast 
spreading its global footprint to more countries and 
geographies.

 Capabilities
TTl operates a state-of-the-art manufacturing facility 
at bengaluru, India. The facility is equipped to 
provide complete manufacturing, assembly, testing 
and refurbishing services. The facility is equipped 
with state-of-the-art precision equipment and 
latest softwares for seamless manufacturing of all 
critical components in-house. best in class testing 
facilities for extensive validation of design help to 
ensure products excellence that meet even the most 
stringent international quality standards. 

The facility deploys a comprehensive environmental 
management system in accordance with IsO 14001, 
laying emphasis on health and safety of people, 
plant and equipment. robust and steadily evolving 
research, development and engineering capabilities 
hold the key to TTl’s market leadership. The 
customer centric approach to r&D, along with a 
keen focus on life-cycle cost of turbine, has allowed 
TTl to set benchmarks for efficiency, robustness  
and uptime.

 Partnership
GE Triveni limited (GETl), a joint venture with 
General Electric, is a subsidiary company of TTl. 
GETl is engaged in design, supply and service of 
steam turbines with generating capacity of above 30 
to 100 MW. Manufactured in state-of-the-art plant 
of TTl, the products are marketed under  
“GE Triveni” brand globally.
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Financial 
Highlights 

FY 15

FY 14

FY 13

FY 12

FY 15

FY 14

FY 13

FY 12

Net Sales ` in million

` in million
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19
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50
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62
55
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FY 14

FY 13
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Earnings per Share `/Share
2.
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3.
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2.
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2.
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FY 13
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EBITDA ` in million

15
61 17
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11
48

15
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Profit after Tax

91
1 10

66

68
5

91
1

8



FY 15 FY 15

FY 14

FY 13

FY 12

Share in Net Sales in %

in %

FY 14

FY 13

FY 12

Return on Equity
27

6

10
3

42

Return on Capital Employed in %

20
5

13
8

62

65

Fy 12

Fy 13

Fy 14

Fy 15

42

86

30

73

27

70

14

58

Fy 12

Fy 13

Fy 14

Fy 15

23

83

21

81

19

79

17

77
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 product sales 

 Aftermarket sales

 Domestic sales

 Exports sales
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We have taken our successful 
domestic model of a one-stop-
solution provider, with the offering 
of product as well as aftermarket 
service, to the global arena 
which has been well accepted.

Message from  
the Chairman
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FInAnCIAl sTATEMEnTsMAnAGEMEnT sTATEMEnTsCOrpOrATE OvErvIEW sTATUTOry rEpOrTs 

Dear Shareholders,
The global economic growth in the year 2014 has been moderate. Although some of the developed 
economies are gradually reviving, the revival is still fragile. The prevailing geo-political and economic 
tension in Europe and slowdown in brazil & China has been a drag on the global economic growth. 
however, the steady revival in the Us economy remains a key positive for the overall improvement in 
the global economic scenario. India on the other hand, as per Central statistics Organisation’s (CsO) 
revised calculations, is expected to have grown at 7.4% in Fy 15. however, we have not seen any 
tangible revival on ground as our domestic order intake continues to struggle. having said that, the 
number of initiatives that are being taken by the new Central Government bring a lot of excitement 
and hope towards India’s economic growth. some of the key initiatives are increased FDI in railway 
infrastructure & Defence, “Make in India” programme and developing 100 smart Cities. These 
initiatives along with clearing of the bottlenecks in the infrastructure sector are expected to gradually 
accelerate the economic growth momentum in the country.

Amid the prevailing challenging macro environment, your Company has achieved strong performance 
in the year Fy 15, backed by robust exports and an increase in aftermarket sales. With better 
realisation from exports and increase in the share of aftermarket turnover in the overall sales, our 
margins in the year have further improved. In terms of global reach, we are currently exporting to 
over 50 countries and have enquiries from around 100 countries. To further strengthen our global 
presence in our key export markets, we have moved a step closer by setting up two overseas 
establishments. In domestic market, the demand for turbines up to 30 MW remained flat for the third 
consecutive year. however, we have been able to hold our market share at 63%.

Despite subdued demand in domestic market, the overall order intake during the year has been 
healthy, backed by near 100% growth in export order intake. Our aftermarket service offering is 
also gaining acceptance in the global arena and we are witnessing a strong export order intake in 
aftermarkets as well. We have taken our successful domestic model of a one-stop-solution provider, 
with the offering of product as well as aftermarket service, to the global arena and it has been  
well accepted.

The year has been a momentous year for our Jv, GE Triveni limited (GETl), as it has entered the profit 
zone for the first time. I would like to congratulate the team for this great achievement. With a very 
strong order book in hand, the way forward for GETl is very bright.

Our customer centric approach has been the key to our success and would continue to remain at 
our core. We would also continue to invest in value engineering to provide best quality product 
and services at competitive cost to our customers, which is our key value proposition. The business 
opportunities in the global market continue to be exciting and with the introduction of our 
aftermarket service proposition to a larger global reach, our growth prospects are further improving. 
The domestic market where we hold a dominant share is expected to revive from the second half 
of Fy 16 and would further gain momentum in Fy 17. This would further add to our growth in the 
coming years.

On behalf of the board, I would like to thank all our stakeholders for their invaluable support and 
especially to our employees for their sheer dedication enabling your Company to touch newer height.

With best regards,

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

100%
Growth in export order 
intake

63%
Domestic market share

MEssAGE FrOM ThE ChAIrMAn  |  Q&A WITh vICE ChAIrMAn & MAnAGInG DIrECTOr
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Q&A with the Vice Chairman  
& Managing Director

Nikhil Sawhney 
Vice Chairman and Managing Director
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FInAnCIAl sTATEMEnTsMAnAGEMEnT sTATEMEnTsCOrpOrATE OvErvIEW sTATUTOry rEpOrTs 

Q. How would you assess the Company’s performance, 
during the year under review?

A. The momentum that we picked up during second half of  
Fy 14 continued to gain strength quarter after quarter. Even 
after a moderate growth in the global economies and bleak 
demand scenario in our domestic market, our performance 
during the year has been strong. The key reason has been 
a strong order intake and on-time delivery for export based 
products and aftermarket services. The consolidated total 
income during the year Fy 15 has grown at 26% over Fy 14 
but the growth has been much higher at 33% at the net profit 
level due to margin improvement. Our consolidated EbITDA 
margin in the year Fy 15 has gone up by 200 bps and stood 
at 24% which we believe, is one of the best amongst the 
industry. The Company’s order intake during the year was  
` 6.46 billion, an increase of 9% over Fy 14 that too after 
achieving a growth of 23% in turnover and the order book as 
of March 31, 2015 stood at ` 6.0 billion on a standalone basis 
and at ` 7.5 billion consolidated. 

Q.  How does the growth in exports impact the overall 
performance of TTL?

A. The export performance during the year has been robust 
and our products are well accepted across the emerging 
economies of south & Central America, Asia and Africa as 
well as developed economies of Western Europe. The total 
income during the year from exports has gone up by 75% 
to ` 2.64 billion whereas export order intake has increased 
by 100% to ` 2.93 billion. The proportion of exports to 
the total sales has also gone up from 29.7% in Fy 14 to 
42.3% in Fy 15. Our export footprint has reached to more 
than 50 countries and we currently hold a strong order 
enquiry from close to 100 countries. Even after significant 
depreciation in the Euro and yen, we continue to maintain 
our competitiveness in the global arena due to our value 
engineering and efficient supply chain. Our export order intake 
in Fy 15 was primarily from biomass and other renewable 
sources. Upon execution of these projects, we believe that 
there could be increased growth opportunities from these 
sectors.

Q.  Has GE Triveni Ltd. performed as per expectation and 
what is your outlook on the JV going forward?

A. The performance of GETl during the year has been 
encouraging as the Jv made net profit for the first time. 
Though the year started with robust carry forward orders from 
Fy 14, order intake during the year has been subdued due to 
many customers postponing their sourcing decisions to Fy 16. 
The order intake in Fy 15 stood at ` 0.7 billion and the total 
order book at the end of March 2015 stood at ` 2.0 billion. 
The outlook on the Jv is positive. We expect that the turnover 
in Fy 16 would be much higher with multiple overseas 

deliveries scheduled to philippines, Indonesia & vietnam.  
These would act as good reference point for future order 
intake. Further, the enquiry book, both in domestic and 
international market is quite good, which should enable the  
Jv to have good order inflow during Fy 16.

Q.  How has aftermarket business performed during the year?

A. The aftermarket sales during Fy 15 grew by 32% and the 
share of the aftermarket sales to total sales has gone up from 
21% in Fy 14 to 23% in Fy 15. The order intake has also been 
healthy with the aftermarket order booking at ` 1.44 billion 
as of March 31, 2015. Our foray into providing repair 
solutions for other makes of turbines in Fy 14 has started 
bearing fruits, predominantly in the international markets. 
During the year, to strengthen our international business 
including our aftermarket service offering, we established 
two overseas subsidiaries, one in UK and one in UAE, which 
would further enhance growth prospects in this high margin 
business. having achieved some breakthrough orders in repair 
& refurbishment from the international market, the export 
segment of aftermarket business is expected to grow in 
the coming years similar to the growth in export of product 
business.

Q.  What are your expectations from the business going 
forward?

A. Our export foray has been successful and to further increase 
momentum in our export business, both in products as well 
as aftermarket, we have setup overseas subsidiaries and are 
currently planning to post service personnel there and also 
arrange local support tie-ups across selected geographies. 
With these increased activities, we expect significant growth 
in export order booking for both products and aftermarket 
services in the coming years.

 In the domestic market we currently hold a strong brand 
equity and are the leading player with 63% market share. 
In Fy 15 we have witnessed good order enquiry but due to 
prevailing economic slowdown, most of these enquiries are 
deferred to Fy 16. We expect the economy would revive 
gradually over the coming quarters and we are well placed 
to tap all new opportunities. Also the government has 
significantly increased its focus on renewable energy and 
they plan to add 175,000 MW by 2022 of which 10,000 MW 
will be biomass. These initiatives would also lead to better 
growth prospects for us in the domestic market. Our Jv, GETl 
has performed well. With the scheduled deliveries in Fy 16 
and increased marketing activities, the growth in GETl both 
in terms of order intake as well as profitability is expected to 
improve further. The overall business is well poised and we 
are confident of a strong growth in the coming years, both in 
terms of turnover and profitability.

MEssAGE FrOM ThE ChAIrMAn  |  Q&A WITh vICE ChAIrMAn & MAnAGInG DIrECTOr
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Management 
Discussion  
& Analysis

Triveni Turbine Ltd (TTL) is one of the largest manufacturers of industrial 
steam turbines upto the range of 30 MW globally. TTL together with its 
subsidiary company, GE Triveni Ltd. (GETL), a joint venture with  
General Electric, manufactures steam turbines upto 100 MW for the 
industrial power generation segment globally.

Economy
After 3 years of economic slowdown, with the new Government at the centre and with a slew of 
measures initiated to kick-start the economy, the economic activities in India have gathered momentum 
with an improved business confidence which has created congenial conditions to restart the investment 
cycle. However, the action on the ground is still to be visible as there remains a guarded optimism on 
the short-term outlook. In the short term, challenges to overcome the gridlock have proved to be taking 
more time than anticipated. The revival of investment cycle will be accelerated by sustained recovery in 
demand which will lead to increased capacity utilisation together with the capex drive by Government 
and public sector companies. Further, with the completion of the process of re-auction of the natural 
resources, sustained progress in getting the major stalled projects back to work is bound to happen and 
will also provide the much-needed stimulus to aggregate demand. 

Globally the economic situation is still to recover. In Euro zone, though countries such as the UK and 
Spain are recovering taking advantage of the drop in oil prices, it is a wait and watch situation for its 
growth to continue. In the East, despite China’s economy slowing down, growth in South East Asian 
countries are expected to put the region on the growth path.

25%
EBITDA Margin in FY 15
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Indian Power Industry
Indian power sector is showing signs of revival. The Ministry of 
Coal has completed its first phase of Coal block auctions that 
saw an overwhelming response from the bidders. on the policy 
front, the Government has taken steps to reduce the lead time 
in getting environmental clearance and land acquisitions. Such 
steps are expected to fuel growth in Indian power sector and 
other industries.

The Government of India had set a target of renewable energy 
power capacity addition at 29,800 Mw during 12th five year 
plan period, of which 9,124 Mw of renewable energy was 
installed till March 2015. However, Biomass power projects have 
been facing roadblocks due to shortage and increasing prices of 
fuel. Co-generation projects have slowed down drastically due 
to current financial situation of the Sugar Companies.

Industry Analysis
Up to end of February 2015, India had installed 34,351 Mw 
of Grid connected renewable power, of which 22,644 Mw is 
wind power, 4,025 Mw is hydro power, 1,365 Mw is biomass 
and gasification, 2,818 Mw is bagasse co-generation, 115 Mw 
waste to energy and 3,382 Mw is solar power. Though potential 
for biomass is huge, there was no addition of biomass power in 
FY 15.

The Indian government is giving a massive thrust on renewables 
in order to increase the share of clean energy in India’s energy 
mix. Ministry of new and renewable Energy (MnrE) has been 
promoting private investment in renewable energy through 
an attractive mix of policy and financial incentives to make 
India a hub for renewable energy. This includes capital subsidy, 
excise and custom duty exemption and participation from 
other countries by allowing 100% Foreign Direct Investment in 
renewable Energy etc.

According to the estimates, renewable energy sources has the 
power generation potential of 897 Gw which includes 749 Gw 
from solar, 103 Gw from wind, 25 Gw from bio-energy and  
20 Gw from small hydro power. MnrE has proposed grid power 
of 175 Gw from various renewable energy sources by the year 
2022 which includes 10 Gw from bio-power and 5 Gw from 
small hydro power.

Though the contribution of renewable power to total power 
generation was just 9.1% globally as of 2014, the investments 
in 2014 grew by 17%. China saw a huge investment followed 
by the USA. Most of the investments (92%) came from Solar 
and wind power investors. Investments in Biomass and waste to 
Energy dropped by 10% in 2014 from the levels in the previous 
year. India, Mexico, Indonesia, Chile, Kenya and Turkey are some 
of the main investors in renewable power. 

In Europe, waste to Energy capacity additions are expected 
in the UK, Ireland, poland and Estonia. In South Africa, the 
government through renewable Energy Independent power 

producer procurement programme (rEIppp) policy has allotted 
USD 14 billion for renewable power investment which is 
estimated to add up to 3 Gw of power capacity.

Co-generation 

The largest demand for TTl’s products is from the process 
industries that have a requirement of steam for the 
manufacturing process and generate power on-site. Electricity 
generation by deploying a condensing steam turbine in a captive 
power plant would give a thermal efficiency of around 30-34% 
as compared to 39-43% in case of a super critical power plant 
operating at significantly higher temperatures and pressures. 
Co-generation based captive power plants deliver two forms 
of energy – electrical power and heat in the form of steam and 
thereby delivering thermal efficiency in excess of 70%.

Most of the other industries opt for power generation due to 
their remote location and inaccessibility to grid for the supply of 
consistent quality and cost-effective electricity. 

MAnAGEMEnT DISCUSSIon & AnAlYSIS  |  FInAnCIAl rEvIEw  |  rISK rEvIEw  |  DIrECTorS’ rEporT 
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Renewable Energy

The renewable Energy segment is also one of the largest 
demand drivers for TTl. The segment comprises of three distinct 
sectors – small scale renewable based independent power 
producers (Ipps), agro based co-generation and renewable 
waste-heat recovery captive power plants. The advantage of an 
assured fuel supply coupled with financial incentives makes this 
segment a steady contributor to demand. on account of overall 
economic slowdown and high cost of capital etc., during the 
last two-three years, there has been no demand from the first 
segment i.e. small scale renewable based Ipps. However, with 
the economic environment getting better, the Company believes 
that the demand from this segment could re-emerge in the  
near future. 

During the past two-three years, the agro based co-generation 
sectors are the most reliable source of demand for steam 
turbines. while this demand may not be as large as the 
potential of the industrial capital goods segment, it does form 
the base demand. This sector will always attract investments 
as long as there is a sustained availability of feedstock and is 
usually non-cyclical.

Captive Power Plants

Captive power is a source of continuous and reliable power that 
cannot be obtained from the Grid. Captive power plant is also 
an economic solution for power requirement of many industries 
to achieve maximum operational efficiency. Indian captive power 
generation at end December, 2014 stood at 40,726 Mw. Many 
captive power plants in India are producing low / no power due 
to non-availability of Coal. However, with the completion of coal 
block auctions, many of the captive power plants are expected 
to revive their power production to normalcy. In the medium to 
long term, this sector is expected to grow, considering India’s 
power requirement to achieve its GDp targets and unreliable 
grid power.

Market Analysis
Domestic Market 
The demand for capital goods remained subdued even in FY 15  
due to a variety of reasons enumerated above. FY 15 also saw 
a change in Government which has fuelled improved business 
sentiments and positive outlook for Indian Industry. However, 
it is yet to be translated into demand generation and increased 
allocation for capital expenditure. The industrial activity 
remained sluggish and select segments of the economy showed 
improved signs of demand. with the change in economic & 
business outlook together with the Government of India’s 
various industry friendly initiatives, the Company believes the 
demand for it’s products should get increased visibility in the 
coming years.

Exports Market 
The world GDp growth by end of 2014 stood at 2.8% over the 
previous year. Though the global economy is in the recovery 
cycle, few major economies such as russia, China, Euro zone 
and Japan showed subdued results. offsetting the developed 
nations, developing nations have performed reasonably well due 
to fall in oil prices. Countries such as Indonesia, philippines and 
vietnam have shown growth in industrial activity. The situation 
of capital inflows is expected to improve in developing nations. 
Far in the west, the Central American economies such as 
panama, nicaragua and Mexico have performed moderately well 
compared to their counterparts in South America.

The nature of Indian engineering exports is changing with 
time. India is moving towards exporting high-value goods to 
developed countries as new opportunities, such as outsourcing 
of engineering goods and services, new product design, product 
improvement, maintenance and designing of manufacturing 
systems, are providing fresh growth avenues. Further, 
depreciation of rupee against dollar has also helped the Indian 
companies to export to various countries.

Business Review
FY 15 has been a good year for TTl on all major fronts - order 
booking, order execution and profitability. The Company 
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achieved a growth of 10% in order-booking, 23% in turnover 
and a significantly higher growth of 33% in net profit. This 
is achieved, in spite of a weak domestic market demand and 
tough competition, due to its increased focus on export market 
for both product and aftermarket businesses. 

The Company has successfully expanded its operation in 
overseas market and views this as a major growth driver. Some 
of the regions such as South East Asia, East Europe and Central 
America saw increasing enquiry book, order finalisations and 
progressing projects compared to the previous year.

Marketing
order booking increased by 9% in FY 15 and the total order 
booking stood at ` 6.46 billion. However order booking in GETl 
was lower at ` 0.72 billion as against ` 1.82 billion in FY 14. 
on a consolidated basis, the total outstanding order book as on 
March 31, 2015 stood at ` 7.47 billion, which has shown a year 
on year growth of 5%.

Domestic Market
The market for steam turbines up to 30 Mw remained at around 
700 Mw. The demand for the steam turbines has remained 
stagnant for the past three years. In spite of improved business 
sentiments and various initiatives by the new government, 
wait-and-watch approach in order finalisation continued during 
the year. The second half however saw some improvements in 
enquiry generation and order finalisations. In FY 15, the Company 
has maintained its market share at 63%, same as last year. Sugar 
& agro based co-generation and process co-generation, especially 
paper and chemical segment, were the main growth drivers 
during the year under review. on account of subdued demand 
consistently over the past three years, the competition intensity 
has also increased which resulted in pricing pressure in the 
market. The Company has selectively taken orders with extended 
scope of supplies and this strategy helped in increasing the order 
booking for FY 15. The total domestic market order booking 
stood at ` 3.5 billion, while the domestic turnover remained more 
or less flat at ` 3.6 billion.

Exports 
The export order booking, which gained momentum in the 
second half of FY 14, continued during the entire FY 15. The 
current year export order booking at ` 2.93 billion is a growth 
of 100% in comparison to the previous year, which is an all 
time high. The turnover from exports also showed a growth 
of 75% at ` 2.64 billion. The Company achieved visibility in 
over 100 countries through enquiries and these enquiries relate 
to diverse markets across the globe. The Company’s focus 
on emerging markets, such as, South East Asia, Africa, East 
Europe and Central America helped the Company to offset 
the economic weakness in Europe. The Company also took 
steps to consolidate its presence in north Africa and South 
East Asia. Understanding the importance of market coverage, 
the Company has appointed new agents to increase its reach 

in select geographies. TTl has currently, installations in over 
50 countries. The year-on-year enquiry book has also grown 
significantly. Even though a plummeting Euro had its effect on 
the business, the Company successfully mitigated its negative 
impact by following a progressive hedging policy with regard to 
its foreign exchange management. 

International Offices 
over the years, the Company has developed the export 
business and has seen an encouraging growth and potential. 
To strengthen its presence in the international market and 
furthering the relationship with customers, the Company has set 
up two overseas subsidiaries, a 100% owned “Triveni Turbines 
Europe private limited” based in the UK & a step down 100% 
owned subsidiary “Triveni Turbines DMCC” based in Dubai. The 
new subsidiaries are expected to enable the Company to focus 
on the marketing within their respective areas of operations 
and offer better services to its customers due to their proximity, 
and also offer flexibility in terms of attracting local talents for 
sales & services which is crucial for the Company’s international 
competitiveness and sales strategy. This will also enable the 
Company to increase its product base as well as the  
aftermarket business.

Aftermarket Services
The Aftermarket Services team initiates a partnership with 
customer from despatch of turbine all through the life of the 
turbine. The nature of aftermarket business is ongoing and it 
lays the foundation for good references for the future business. 

This year has been more challenging with large number of 
turbines being despatched to different parts of the world 
including as far as in Central America. The service team has 
reacted pro-actively and ensured smooth commissioning of the 
turbines leading to satisfied customers; it will help in building a 
strong lifetime relationship with the customers.
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The Company’s network of service centres is strategically 
located within proximity of customers and this ensures that 
TTl engineers reach customers’ site faster, thus reducing down 
time. This is being further strengthened with physical presence 
in london and Dubai where TTl proposes to position engineers. 
This will give confidence to the customers and this locational 
advantage can be leveraged to secure product orders and long 
term service arrangements.

The slowdown in the market last year helped us to refocus  
our energies in making new strategies to connect with 
customers. This strategy has yielded positive results. Going 
forward, we will continue to focus on building stronger 
relationships with customers. 

The Company’s foray into refurbishment of other makes of 
turbines last year in a focused manner has started yielding 
results, particularly in international markets. There has been 
a significant growth in business from specific regions and this 
momentum will be carried forward with substantial growth 
planned for the next few years.

During the year, the order-booking and revenue generation from 
this business segment showed significant growth and helped 
the Company to achieve high levels of profitability. In FY 15, the 
order-booking grew by 8% while the turnover from aftermarket 
business grew by 32%. The share of aftermarket sales to total 
sales increased to 23% in the current year from 21% in FY 14.

Manufacturing Facility
The manufacturing facility of the Company is located in 
lush green campus of 11 acres in peenya Industrial Area in 
Bengaluru. It is housed in a 15000 square meters of covered 

area and is equipped with modern CnC machines and 
equipments dedicated for machining of high precision turbine 
components adhering to international quality standards. The CnC 
machinery includes 4 and 5 axis vertical machining centres for 
blades, mill-turn centres for rotors and CnC gantry and CnC vTl 
for casing machining. There are specially designed test beds for 
in-site assembling and testing of turbines, equipped with remote 
controlled data acquisition system to automatically monitor the 
turbine performance while testing. The facility also boasts of high 
speed vacuum balancing tunnel to carry out precision balancing 
of all types of rotors. The facility can produce around 150 turbines 
per year. It is certified with ISo 9001 QMS and ISo 14001 EMS 
standards and has adopted excellence in operations through 
practising principles of TQM, TpM, lean 5S, Kaizen, QCs, etc.

The Company has also embarked on an ambitious expansion 
plan to increase the manufacturing capacity of the turbines 
to 350 per year. It has acquired a 24 acre land in Karnataka 
Industrial Areas Development Board (KIADB) Industrial Area, 
Dobaspete, near Bengaluru and has started construction 
activities of the new facility. This is designed to be a benchmark 
facility for turbine manufacturing equipped with most modern 
shop floor, r&D facility and learning Centre.

Technology
The Company continues to focus on product development in 
order to maintain its global competitiveness. Its state-of-the-art 
r&D centre, which is approved by the Department of Scientific 
Industrial research of Government of India, is dedicated 
towards development of technologically superior designs that 
deliver high performance and meet international requirements. 
During the current year, 12 new compact and high efficiency 
models were developed. The Company’s product line is being 
restructured in modular family to achieve lower cycle time of 
development. reaction technology is being extended in select 
sizes and applications. value Engineering is being employed to 
achieve compact footprints. The Company has also initiated 
efforts on complimentary product lines.

Intellectual Property Rights
The Company has been steadily upgrading and improving 
its steam turbine designs for optimal performance to meet 
increasing power solution requirements from international and 
domestic customers. The management of Intellectual property 
(Ip) portfolio is therefore critical to secure the technological 
inventions of the Company. The Company ensures that Ip team 
gets involved right from the planning and conceptualisation 
stage to the final design and development of products. over 
the years, the Company has developed a comprehensive Ip 
strategy for creation and protection of long-term Ip assets. The 
Company has been constantly undertaking patent and industrial 
designs filings in various international markets which reflect the 
Company’s focus on the global market. Currently, the Company 
has filed patent applications and design registrations in India, 
Europe, South East Asia and the U.S.A. In the coming years, 



19

FInAnCIAl STATEMEnTSMAnAGEMEnT STATEMEnTSCorporATE ovErvIEw STATUTorY rEporTS 

Annual report 2014-15TrIvEnI TUrBInE lIMITED

the plan is to file patent applications and design registrations in 
new international markets to complement the expanding global 
reach of the product market. During the year, the Company has 
made 21 Ip filings and so far the Company has 113 filings in 
India and 29 filings in foreign countries. A substantial number 
of Intellectual property rights have already been awarded to the 
Company in various jurisdictions.

Supply Chain 
Efficient & robust supply chain is one of the critical success 
factors of the Company. A well-defined purchase policy provides 
guidelines for procurement function covering all aspects. The 
emphasis is on cost control, quality, timely delivery, consistency 
and transparency. It provides an even playing field to the supply 
chain partners. The Company shares its annual business plan, 
market dynamics, new product development and expectations 
with the supplier partners. This helps them to realign their 
business with the Company. with growing export market, the 
supplier partners are encouraged to enhance their capacity so 
as to reduce the lead time and raise the quality standards to 
meet the global benchmark. In this process, the Company is 
working closely with the supplier partners and provides training 
to improve their manufacturing process and reduce rejections. 
There is a strong realisation and acceptance of ‘Zero defect’ and 
‘Do it right the first time, every time’ concepts by the supply 
chain partners.

Existing supplier partners are periodically re-assessed through a 
third party agency in order to ensure that the quality standards 
are maintained and the technology is upgraded in line with 
the requirements. For new suppliers, well crafted qualification 
process is in place along with EHS requirements. All the supplier 
partners are governed by strict code of conduct and  
non-disclosure agreements.

The Company has successfully managed the input costs by value 
engineering in the designs and materials, developing new cost 
effective supplier partners and sourcing raw materials from the 
cost effective countries across the globe.

Quality Assurance
At TTl, products are designed, manufactured and commissioned 
in accordance with the international quality norms such as ApI, 
ASME, AGMA, nEMA and IEC among others. 

The Company has implemented a process based approach to 
build quality in products & services offered to the customers. 
The Company is ISo 9001: 2008 certified with sound quality 
management system integrated throughout the organisation.

TTl ensures that its network of suppliers and dedicated  
sub-contractors also comply with these standards through QAps 
and Standard operating practices to maintain comprehensive 
quality control of turbine and its auxiliary systems. The products 
also comply with CE/pED Mark Quality Certification as per 
European norms. 

The Company has adopted Zero Defect approach to quality 
which is supported by tools and techniques like visual 
Management system, root cause analysis followed by CApA, 
DMAIC, Kaizen, QIp, SQDCM and a rigorous Customer 
Complaint resolution System. 

“Kaizen” movement was started in the Company in 2010 to 
inculcate a culture of continuous innovation and improvements 
throughout the organisation involving people at all levels.  
The movement continues to provide significant benefits in 
productivity, quality, cost and EHS. TTl regularly participates 
in All India Kaizen events organised by CII-TpM Club of India 
and has bagged several awards. TTl has also been consistently 
improving its performance in the CII-Exim Bank promoted 
Business Excellence award process. 

Human Resource
The skill development effort is critical for the Company at the 
current juncture with its focus on the International market. TTl 
believes that employees are one of its most valuable assets. 
Therefore, employee development is crucial to Company’s 
realisation of its long-term mission. There is an emphasis 
on skilling, re-skilling and up-skilling of the employees. The 
Company helps its employees to keep abreast with the evolving 
technologies, processes and techniques. The learning Centre 
contributes equally towards customer training programmes 
mainly in aspects of operation and maintenance of steam 
turbine generator islands.
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In FY 15, training to employees was dedicated on the theme 
“Continuous Improvement”. Since TTl’s core competence 
rests in designing customised products as per customer’s 
specifications, it has started a training programme called 
“Design, review, verification & validation programme” for 
its development & engineering officers, who conceptualise, 
design and deliver the product. These learnings are put to use 
in design and manufacturing of products and services. Further, 
as part of Quality Improvement process, all workmen, who are 
directly involved in manufacturing, are periodically taken to an 
operational power plant, to give them exposure on the life cycle 
of our product. The Company also continued with “Advance 
product Knowledge Up gradation” programme for its customer 
care engineers.

The learning Centre in association with Supply Chain, 
production planning and Control & Quality Assurance organised 
training programme for all vendors and their employees under 
the “Supplier Quality Improvement programme (SQIp)”, as part 
of ‘Continuous Improvement’ training adopted by TTl.

Computer Based product Training (CBT) module is an effective 
comprehensive self-learning aide on turbine technology 
developed by the learning Centre. CBT module was upgraded 
during the year in order to cover recent changes in technology 
and processes.

A total of 1,930 man days were dedicated for the employees 
in training for the year, which is significantly higher by 18% 
in comparison to FY 14. Similarly, 7,458 man days of training 
(20% increase year on year) were provided to the Graduate 
Engineer Trainees before being inducted into their relevant 
departments. 

Environment, Health & Safety (EHS)
Environmental management systems of the Company are 
certified in line with ISo 14001 Environmental standards. The 
Company is a zero discharge facility. It has elaborate processes 
in place for ensuring health of the people. All equipment are 
designed, used and maintained to ensure safety of equipment as 
well as the people who use it. The EHS performance is reviewed 
on a periodic basis and deviations are addressed through a 
detailed root cause analysis and corrective-preventive action 
methodology. Employees are regularly given training on EHS. 
They are also engaged in EHS through celebrations of national 
Safety Day functions, participation in EHS committees and 
conducting EHS audits. 

Outlook 
TTl expects the economic & business environment of the 
country to improve in the coming year. The impact of all 
major economic & business friendly policies initiated by the 
government should start yielding results and are expected to 
translate into demand generation, starting of investment cycle 
and re-vitalisation of the domestic market. overall economic 
growth coupled with industrial and manufacturing growth 
should drive the demand for the steam turbines. Even though, 
FY 15 saw a good enquiry pipeline getting built up, conversion 
of the same into order-finalisation depends on the signs 
of economic activity taking place on the ground which the 
Company believes should start happening in FY 16. 

The Union Budget for FY 16 has recognised the urgency for 
infrastructure growth and a slew of measures have been 
introduced. A national Infrastructure and Investment Fund is 
proposed with a corpus of ` 200 billion to establish Special 
purpose vehicles that would encourage corporatisation of 
infrastructure projects, bring in efficiency and take them off the 
Government balance sheet. In addition, tax-free infrastructure 
bonds would be issued for the road, rail and irrigation sectors. 
This will have a cascading impact on the generation of demand 
for industrial products.

In the international market, the Company expects to strengthen 
its presence in many markets by focused marketing approach. 
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Having achieved a good visibility in many markets and made 
in-roads into new markets, the export business during FY 16 
should register good growth. However, with Euro and Japanese 
yen depreciating against dollar, the Company anticipate certain 
degree of competition in exports especially from European and 
Japanese manufacturers. The Company is adequately geared 
to face any such competition and expects to make its presence 
felt into many more markets across the globe. Africa being an 
unexploited market is also a key focus market for the Company. 
The Company will concentrate in entering new geographies and 
increasing its agent network in FY 16.

After achieving good growth in FY 15 in the aftermarket 
business segment, the Company is focused to grow this 
business both from a domestic market and international market 
perspective. The international structures will help the Company 
to achieve this objective and in the coming years, this segment 
should show good traction in terms of turnover and profitability.

GE Triveni Limited (GETL)
GE Triveni limited, a joint venture with General Electric is a 
subsidiary of the Company. GETl is engaged in the design, 
supply and service of advanced technology steam turbines with 
generating capacity in the range of above 30-100 Mw. 

GETl offers products, manufactured to international standards 
of quality and reliability, with best in class efficiencies. The 
flange to flange turbine is manufactured competitively at 
TTl’s Bengaluru world class facility, and the complete project 
is executed by GETl in accordance with GE’s procedures and 
processes which include certification of suppliers, adherence to 
environment and other standards.

GETl started FY 15 with a good carry forward order book and 
has achieved significantly higher turnover in the current year. 
Similarly, the Jv also recorded net profit for the first time, which 
is expected to improve in the coming years. 

order booking in FY 15 was subdued due to sluggish industrial 
activity resulting in postponement in order finalisation. Jv 
strengthened the marketing efforts which have resulted in the 
build up of a healthy enquiry pipeline. However, the delayed 
order finalisation has resulted in lower growth than estimated. 
GETl has booked orders worth ` 0.72 billion in FY 15. with a 
strong carry forward order book at the end of the year, GETl 
is expected to execute significantly higher orders and achieve 
significantly higher turnover in FY 16. The order booking in  
FY 16 is expected to be strong, particularly with the backlog of 
the previous year.

GETl will commission steam turbines for a power plant in the 
cement sector, a sugar co-generation plant in India and  
a power plant in the fertiliser sector in Indonesia in FY 16, 
adding to a steel plant already in commercial operation for 
last two years. These will improve its reference list in different 
sectors.

Financial Review
The summarised financial results of the Company for the year  
FY 15, compared with the previous year’s results, are provided here. 

(` in Million)

Description  FY 15 FY 14 Change %

Income from operations 6255.2 5082.7 23.0

other Income 282.5 83.7 237.5

EBITDA 1535.0 1148.2 33.7

EBITDA Margin 24.5% 22.6%

Depreciation & 
Amortisation

145.0  128.6    12.8

pBIT 1390.0 1019.6 36.3

pBIT Margin 22.2% 20.1%

Finance Cost   6.4      6.0 6.6

pBT (Before exceptional 
item)

1383.6 1013.6 36.5

pBT Margin 22.1% 19.9%

Exceptional Item 28.0

pBT (After Exceptional 
Item)

1355.6 1013.6 33.7

pAT   910.8   684.5 33.0

pAT Margin 14.6% 13.5%
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The Company was able to achieve much improved 
performance during the year despite subdued domestic market 
demand. The highlights of the performance are as under:

•   The total income for the year under review is  
` 6,255.2 million, higher by 23% over previous year.

•   The export turnover has gone up by 75% during the year 
to ` 2643.7 million.

•  The proportion of exports to the total sales has also gone up from 
29.7% in the previous year to 42.3% during the current year.

• The aftermarket business grew by 32% during the year. 

•  The proportion of the aftermarket sales to total sales has 
improved from 21% in previous year to 23% in current 
year on an overall increased turnover.

A rapid increase in export turnover by as much as 75% during 
the year was the key to this turn around. The Company’s focus 
on exports is gaining momentum with expanded geographies. 
The Company believes that its export business going forward 
will significantly contribute to its overall growth. The current 
trend in export order booking for product and aftermarket will 
support the Company’s growth plans – during the year, the 
growth in export order booking is 100% over the previous year. 
with a view to internationalise its products and achieve better 
penetration of the market, the Company has incorporated 
wholly owned subsidiaries /step down subsidiaries during the 
current year. The proximity to the customers will help in securing 
more product orders and expand the potential of aftermarket 
services and refurbishment, including of other makes. 

The domestic market for turbine continued to remain flat, 
for the third consecutive year. However, the margins and 
the high market share could still be preserved through cost 

competitiveness. Even though, the economic activities are 
expected to gain momentum with improved sentiments and 
certain policy initiatives, the Company believes that, it will take 
some more time to witness commencement of the investment 
cycle. The restoration of normalcy in the domestic market will 
accelerate growth opportunities for the Company. 

Other Income
The other Income of ` 282.5 million, shown in table above, 
includes an amount of ` 242.5 million towards hedging and 
exchange gains. while such gains are required to be booked 
as other Income as per the applicable accounting standards, 
it actually represents part of the operating revenue as the 
exchange rate considered for an order duly considers the 
impact of forward premium. Accordingly, the hedging policy 
of the Company requires high level of hedging of net foreign 
exchange exposures to capture such forward premium. For all 
internal assessments also, the Company considers such gains as 
operating revenue and it is thus factored in the computation of 
EBITDA and other profitability ratios. 

Raw Material and Manufacturing Expenses

(` in Million)

Description  FY 15 FY 14 Change %

raw material 
consumption/
Change in inventory

3647.5 2775.3   31.4%

percentage of sales 58.3% 54.6%

The increase in raw material cost has gone up by 31% 
compared to previous year, mainly due to increase in production/
turnover by 23% compared to previous year. Apart from the 
activity level, the raw material cost also depends upon the 
product mix as well as quantum of bought-out items which 
are dependent on the scope of project. Hence, percentage raw 
material cost to sales is not a reliable indicator of material cost 
trend. However, continuous value engineering, r&D efforts and 
an effective supply chain has helped the Company to contain its 
raw material cost significantly.

Personnel cost, Administration Expenses and Depreciation 

(` in Million)

Description FY 15 FY 14 Change %

personnel cost 600.9 567.0 6.0

percentage of sales 9.6% 11.2%

other Expenses 754.3 675.9 11.6

percentage of sales    12.1%  13.3%

Depreciation &  
Amortisation

145.0 128.6   12.8

percentage of sales  2.3% 2.5%
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The increase in personnel cost and other expenses are normal 
commensurate with increase in activity level and are reflective 
of annual salary increase while higher selling expenses is 
attributable to increase in exports. 

The increase is depreciation is as a result of change in method of 
depreciation as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013 and consequently, the depreciation charge for the year is 
higher by ` 13.7 million. 

Exceptional Item
Exceptional item amounting to ` 27.9 million represents the 
liability of the Company in an old excise matter which was 
decided against the Company.

Balance sheet 
Share Capital 
The equity share capital of the Company has increased by  
` 0.0276 million during the year pursuant to exercise of 
employee stock option. 

Reserves and Surplus
The reserve & Surplus has increased by 36.7% to 
` 2026.1 million as on 31.3.15 due to plough back of profits 
after payment of dividend of ` 334.8 million (including tax) and 
appropriation of CSr expenses of ` 22.4 million. 

Loans
The position of loans, compared with previous year, is shown 
below:

(` in Million)

Description 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

Term loans nil nil

Cash Credit 6.6 69.2

vehicle loans 8.4 8.6

Total 15.0 77.8

Break-up

  - long term borrowings 5.1 5.2

  - Short borrowings 6.6 69.2

  - other current liabilities 3.3 3.4

The Company remained almost debt free throughout the year 
barring some intermittent utilisation of Cash Credit facilities. It 
has resulted in nominal interest cost during the year.

Investments
The increase in investments by ` 4.7 million is due to contribution 
towards equity share capital of a wholly owned subsidiary set 
up in United Kingdom during the year to internationalise the 
business and expand the global market reach.

Trade Receivables 
The Trade receivables as on 31.3.15 were higher at 
` 1533 million as compared to ` 1057 million as on 31.3.14. 
The increase is owing to higher exports ` 530 million during 
last quarter of the year and the underlying lCs were under 
negotiation at the end of the year.

Fixed Assets
During the year, the company has acquired an industrial land from 
Karnataka Industrial Areas Development Board near Bengaluru for 
expansion and capitalised it at ` 388.6 million upon entering into 
lease agreement and obtaining possession. In the previous year, 
amount of ` 372.3 million paid as advance was shown under long 
Term loans and Advances.

Risk Management and Mitigation
The Company has a Board approved risk Management policy 
and has a robust risk management framework. According to 
the risk management framework, all possible risks, which the 
organisation is faced with, have been identified and categorised 
based on severity of the risks. Apart from prescribing a risk 
owner for each risk, clear mitigation measures have been 
specified to manage the risk. A structured risk management 
system helps in the formulation of effective mitigation measures 
to minimise the impact of risks and to define risk limits. 

The Company’s business relates to manufacture and sale of 
steam turbines which fall under capital goods industry and is 
closely linked with the economic activities in the country as 
well as the sectors wherein the Company’s products are used. 
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As a result of the strategic move to diversify the geographical 
market of its products, the Company has been able to lower 
its dependence on the domestic market and accordingly, 
percentage exports in turnover during the year has gone up 
from 30% in the previous year to 42%.  

Some of the major risks being faced by the Company are 
described here below: 

1.   Slow down in economy and over dependence on any market
  A slowdown in economy directly impacts the demand of 

capital goods, including the products of the Company. 
Further, over dependence on any market/s may adversely 
affect the performance of the Company if the concerned 
market gets sluggish due to internal factors.

  In the last 3 years, due to the slow-down in the economic 
activities, the domestic market has declined/remained 
stagnant which had considerable effect on the demand of the 
Company’s products. However, in order to reduce the over 
dependence on the domestic market, the Company started 
focusing on marketing its products in the global market and 
in the FY 15, the contribution of exports to the total turnover 
was 42%. The Company is in the process of further extending 
its footprints in the global market to lessen the risk of over 
dependence on certain countries/regions. The Company has 
also set up international structures to be in the proximity of 
customers so that it acquires in-depth knowledge of market 
trends and is able to capture all opportunities.

2. Service to the customers
  It is important to provide support to the customers to keep 

the products trouble free and to attend to break-downs in 
the most efficient manner. without such service support, the 
Company may not be able to win the confidence and secure 
orders from customers.

  like in the domestic market, the Company is replicating 
its service model, offering its service for preventative 
maintenance of its products and strengthening its service 
capabilities to attend to urgent situations in a timely manner 
internationally. The foreign subsidiaries recently set up by the 
Company will help in achieving such objectives apart from 
securing more aftermarket service orders. In due course, the 
Company may also own, directly or indirectly through joint 
ventures, service workshops in the regions of high customer 
density to provide services to customers.

3. Technology risk
  The Company operates in the engineered-to-order capital 

goods industry where product efficiency, critical product 
features and overall life cycle costs play an important role.

  The Company vigilantly studies, analyses and forecasts 
market trends and customer preferences and accordingly 
develop its r&D programmes. The Company has a 
vibrant r&D department which undertakes new product 
development and improvements within the shortest possible 
time and at optimal costs. The Company has well structured 
systems to validate its technology prior to commercial use. 
The Company imparts technical training at its in-house 
learning centre for all levels of engineers to expose them to 
latest technology.

4. Competition Risk
  The Company faces competition from steam turbine 

manufacturers of international repute in the domestic and 
international markets. This may compel the Company to 
quote aggressively and impact its margins.  

  with a view to mitigate this risk, the Company provides 
value proposition to customer with products which meet the 
benchmark efficiencies at a competitive price and shorter 
delivery time, without compromising on margins.

5. Risk arising from internationalisation of its products
  In view of export of product to several countries in various 

continents, there is a risk of various types of claims from 
customers towards under performance of product and 
third party claims if the laws of that country are not fully 
conformed to.  

  The Company has strict quality control procedures which 
ensure that all the products supplied to the customers must 
meet the contractual parameters. It is ensured that the 
contracts with customers clearly specify the obligations of 
the Company. In addition, the Company takes appropriate 
insurance policies to cover all such risks.
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your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 20th annual 
report and audited accounts for the Financial year (Fy) ended 
march 31, 2015.

Financial Results

(` in million)

 2014-15  2013-14 

Revenue from operations (net) 6255.22 5082.66

Operating Profit (EBITDA) 1535.07 1148.20

Finance Cost 6.38 5.99

Depreciation & amortisation 145.04 128.60

Profit before exceptional items 
& tax

1383.65 1013.61

Exceptional Items 27.98 -

Profit before tax (PBT) 1355.67 1013.61

Tax expenses 444.83 329.09

Profit after Tax (PAT) 910.84 684.52

Earning per equity share of 
` 1 each (in `)

2.76 2.07

Surplus available for 
Appropriation

1661.39 1168.49

Appropriation:

Equity dividend (including 
dividend distribution tax)

334.83 289.51

Preference dividend (including 
dividend distribution tax)

- 0.43

CSR Expenditure/commitments 22.41 -

Transfer to General Reserves 150.00 100.00

Transfer to Capital redemption 
reserve

- 28.00

Surplus carried forward 1154.15 750.55

with the accretion in reserves of ` 544.24 millions during the 
year, the total reserves of the company stand at ` 2026.07 
millions and the net worth of the company is at ` 2356.04 
million.

no material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the company have occurred between the end of the 
financial year of the company to which these financial statement 
relate and the date of this report.

Review of Business Operations and Future Prospects 

the financial year 2014-15 has shown a remarkable turnaround 
in the operations of the company. the turnover increased by 
23% versus Fy 14 owing to the rapid growth in export sales by 
75% on a standalone and 87% on a consolidated basis. we are 
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receiving inquiries from over 100 countries, and our installations 
are in over 50 countries. unfortunately, the domestic market has 
remained stagnant and we do not see any improvement till the 
second half of Fy 16. the company’s domestic market share has 
been maintained at 63%.

the aftermarket services have shown an encouraging growth 
and we have made a breakthrough in the export market by 
securing some profitable contracts. we are in the process of 
setting up service organisations in the uk, South africa, middle 
east and indonesia and expect good growth in the export of 
aftermarket services including remanufacturing. margins on the 
export of products and services have also been good, and we 
have increased the profit before tax margin to 22% and the 
after tax margin to 15%. these figures are one of the best in 
the global capital goods industry.

order booking during Fy 15 has been healthy, especially, for 
product exports and aftermarket services. orders on hand as 
on april 1, 2015 increased by 5% versus april 1, 2014, after 
accounting for 23% of growth in turnover during Fy 15. we 
expect another substantial increase in turnover and profitability 
on a consolidated basis in the financial year 2016. our 
projection for robust order booking in Fy 16 is even better, and 
its achievement will help sustain the projected growth in Fy 17 
as well.

the company’s return on equity at 44% and return on capital 
employed at 65% are one of the best in the industry, and are 
as a result of constant focus on value engineering and supply 
chain cost reduction initiatives. the r&D team continues to 
bring out 10/12 new models or variants every year, and they 
cater to the changing needs of our customers, and enable the 
company to keep pace with international competitors. Quality 
and customer satisfaction is a top priority for the company and 
is benchmarked to international standards. we are proud of the 
recognition from domestic and international customers, which is 
also reflected in the repeat business given to us.

Dividend

the board of Directors are pleased to recommend a final dividend 
of ` 0.60 per equity share of face value of ` 1/- each (60%). the 
total equity dividend for Fy 15, including the interim dividend 
of ` 0.25 per equity share (25%) amounts to ` 0.85 per equity 
share (85%) and the total outgo on account of equity dividend is 
` 334.83 million including dividend distribution tax.  
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Subsidiary Companies

the performance of the subsidiary company, ge triveni limited 

(getl), has been good with getl achieving profitability for 

the first time in the current financial year. getl is having a 

strong enquiry pipeline and its marketing efforts in focused 

geographies are expected to achieve sizeable order bookings in 

the coming years. 

During the year, the company set up international structures 

to give a boost to the international marketing of its products 

and services. accordingly, it has incorporated an international 

subsidiary, namely, triveni turbines europe pvt. ltd. (tte), 

domiciled in the uk, on December 23, 2014. Subsequently, tte 

acquired 100% equity interest in triveni turbines Dmcc (ttD) 

domiciled in Dubai, uae, effective march 31, 2015. the focused 

efforts by these subsidiaries will help to target customers 

effectively. 

accordingly, as on march 31, 2015, the company had two 

direct subsidiaries and one step down subsidiary. a statement 

containing salient features of the financial statement of 

subsidiaries is provided in Annexure A in the prescribed format.

Material Subsidiaries

in accordance with clause 49 (v)(D) of the listing agreement, 

none of the subsidiaries is a material non listed subsidiary. the 

company has formulated a policy for determining material 

subsidiaries. the policy has been uploaded on the website of the 

company at http://www.triveniturbines.com/key-policies.

Consolidated Financial Statements 

in accordance with the accounting Standard 21, and provisions 

of the companies act 2013 on consolidated Financial 

Statements, your Directors have pleasure in attaching the 

consolidated financial statements of the company which form a 

part of the annual report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

a)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial 

year ended march 31, 2015, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed and there are no material 

departures;

b)  the directors have selected such accounting policies and 

applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 

company for that period;

c)  the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding 

the assets of the company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)  the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 

‘going concern’ basis;

e)  the directors have laid down internal financial controls 

to be followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and are operating 

effectively; and

f)  the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Corporate Governance

a separate report on corporate governance is given in 

Annexure B along with the auditors’ statement on its 

compliance in Annexure C.

Related Party Transactions

the company has formulated a related party transactions policy 

which has been uploaded on its website 

at http://www.triveniturbines.com/key-policies. it is the 

endeavour of the company to enter into related party 

transaction on commercial and arms’ length basis with a view to 

optimise the overall resources of the group.

in terms of Section 134(3)(h) of the companies act 2013 

read with rule 15 of the companies (meetings of board and 

its power rules) 2014, the particulars of the contracts or 

arrangements with related parties in the prescribed forms are 

provided in Annexure D.

Risk management Policy and Internal financial 
controls 

the company has a risk management policy the objective of 

which is to lay down a structured framework and system to 

identify potential threats to the organisation and likelihood 

of their occurrences and then taking appropriate action to 

address the most likely threats. the policy recognises that all 

the risks in the business cannot be eliminated but these could 

be diluted or minimised through effective mitigation measures, 

good internal controls and by defining risk limits. pursuant to 

the risk management policy, the company has instituted a 

comprehensive risk management framework. a risk committee 

has been constituted and detailed identification of risks has 

been carried out along with categorisation thereof based on 
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their impact on the organisation, its directors and the reputation 
of the company. Such categorisation gives the highest 
weightage to the risks which have the potential to threaten the 
existence of the company.  

as a part of internal financial controls of the company, the 
company has elaborate and adequate financial controls with 
respect to timely preparation of reliable financial statements. 
apart from the competent and trained manpower, clear cut-off 
procedures have been defined in respect of accrual of costs/
expenses and revenue recognition which is also largely aided 
by an efficient erp system in force. it helps in minimising the 
manual errors and omissions. besides subjecting all major items 
to a detailed scrutiny, the financial statements are also subject 
to quality overview by qualified finance personnel and are 
extensively analysed to have proper and adequate reasons for all 
variances.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

as per the provisions of the companies act, 2013 (act), 
mr. Dhruv m Sawhney will retire by rotation at the ensuing 
annual general meeting (agm) of the company and being 
eligible, seek re-appointment. the board has recommended his 
re-appointment. 

the company has received declarations of independence in terms 
of Section 149 of the companies act, 2013 read with clause 49 
of the listing agreement from all the independent Directors.

the appointment of key managerial personnel, namely, 
chairman and managing Director, vice chairman and managing 
Director, executive Director, chief Financial officer and company 
Secretary were taken on record with effect from may 27, 2014 
and they continue to hold that office as on this date.

Employees Stock Option

During the year under report, with the exercise of outstanding 
vested stock options by employees, ttl nSoS stands terminated 
and the required disclosures in respect thereof are provided in 
Annexure E. During the year, no stock options were issued 
under ttl eSop, 2013.

Auditors 

at the annual general meeting held on august 08, 2014, m/s 
J.c. bhalla & co., chartered accountants (Jcb), were appointed 
as Statutory auditors of the company for a period of three 
consecutive years until the conclusion of 22nd annual general 
meeting of the company. the company has received letter 
from Jcb that they are eligible for continuation as Statutory 
auditors of the company and consented to continue in office 
on ratification by the shareholders.

m/s virmani & associates, chartered accountants (va), who 

were appointed as the branch auditors of the company’s works 

at bengaluru, shall hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing 

annual general meeting of the company. 

the board recommends the ratification of the appointment of 

Jcb as Statutory auditors for Fy 2015-16 for the entire audit 

(including the branch audit) of the company.

Cost Audit

in terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the act read with 

the companies (audit and auditors) rules, 2014 and the 

notifications issued by ministry of corporate affairs, the  

cost audit is applicable to the company for the Fy 16.  

m/s J.H & associates, cost accountants, bengaluru have been 

appointed as cost auditor to conduct the audit of cost records 

of your company for the financial year 2015-16. the board 

recommends the ratification of the remuneration to the  

cost auditors.

Secretarial Audit Report

in terms of Section 204 of the act read with the companies 

(appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel) rules 

2014, the board appointed m/s Sanjay grover & associates, 

a firm of company Secretaries in practice to undertake the 

Secretarial audit of the company for the financial year ended 

march 31, 2015. the report on secretarial audit is enclosed in 

Annexure F. the report does not contain any qualification.

Disclosures

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

a cSr policy was formulated by the cSr committee which, on 

its recommendation, was approved by the board. the cSr policy 

is available on the company’s website at 

http://www.triveniturbines.com/key-policies. 

the composition of cSr committee and annual report on cSr 

activities as approved by the cSr committee is provided in 

Annexure G annexed to this report.

Audit Committee

the composition of audit committee is provided in the 

corporate governance report that forms part of this annual 

report.

Vigil Mechanism

the company has established a vigil mechanism through a 

whistle blower policy and through the audit committee, 

oversees the genuine concerns expressed by the employees 

and other Directors. the company has also provided adequate 
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safeguards against victimisation of employees and Directors who 
may express their concerns pursuant to this policy. the company 
has also provided a direct access to the chairman of the audit 
committee on reporting issues concerning the interests of the 
employees and the company. the policy is uploaded on the 
website of the company at  
http://www.triveniturbines.com/key-policies.

Disclosure under the sexual harassment of women 
at workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) 
Act 2013

the company has in place an anti Sexual Harassment policy in 
line with the requirements of sexual harassment of women at 
work place (prevention, prohibition and redressal) act 2013. 
the internal complaint committee (icc) has been set up to 
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. During 
the period under review, no complaint was received by the icc.

Board Meetings 

During the year, six board meetings were held, the details of 
which are given in the corporate governance report that forms 
part of this annual report.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments 
made under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

the particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the companies act, 2013 are 
given in the notes forming part of the financial statements 
provided in the annual report.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo

the particulars required under Section 134(3)(m) of the 
companies act, 2013 read with the relevant rules are provided 
in Annexure H to this report.

Personnel

the information as required under Section 197 of the 
companies act 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the companies 
(appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel) 
rules, 2014 is set out in Annexure I. 

the particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess 
of limits set out in the rule 5(2) of companies (appointment 
and remuneration of managerial personnel) rules, 2014 is set 
out in Annexure J. However, as per the provisions of Section 
136 of the companies act 2013, the annual report is being sent 
to all the members of the company excluding the aforesaid 
information. the said information is available for inspection by 
the members at the registered office of the company up to 
the date of the ensuing annual general meeting. any member 

interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the 
company Secretary at the registered office of the company.

Deposits

the company has not accepted any public deposits under 
Section 73 of the companies act, 

Extracts of Annual Return 

pursuant to section 92(3) of the companies act, 2013 and rule 
12(1) of the companies (management and administration) 
rules, 2014, extracts of the annual return in the prescribed form 
is annexed as Annexure K.

Significant and material orders

there are no significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunal impacting the going concern 
status and company’s operations in future. 

Human Resources

the company is in a technology intensive environment, and the 
complete team is geared to delivering a technologically superior, 
value for money and a robust product meeting the highest 
quality standards. to meet this objective, the company has state 
of the art manufacturing facilities, and innovative and highly 
motivated teams to undertake the marketing, value engineering, 
r&D, order execution and after sales service functions. 

the company’s learning centre provides facilities for company’s 
employees at all levels to be trained regularly and keep abreast 
of market developments. the learning centre conducts a 
number of programmes on product familiarisation, skill building 
and leadership. the company has an effective performance 
appraisal system which drives employees to achieve their 
stated kras and targets. During the year, the attrition rate was 
contained at 5.7% and each employee including workmen 
received an average training of 3.2 man days.

Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration

the policy of the company on directors’ appointment and 
remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters 
provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the companies 
act, 2013, adopted by the board is annexed as Annexure L to 
this report.

Board Evaluation Mechanism

pursuant to the provisions of companies act 2013 and clause 
49 of the listing agreement, the board has carried out annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, those of 
directors individually as well as evaluation of its committees. 
the evaluation criteria as defined in the nomination and 
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remuneration policy of the company, covered various aspects 
of board such as, composition, performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance. 

the performance of individual directors was evaluated on 
parameters, such as, number of meetings attended, contribution 
in the growth and formulating the strategy of the company, 
independence of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the 
company and minority shareholders, time devoted apart from 
attending the meetings of the company etc. the directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Appreciation

your directors wish to take the opportunity to express their 
sincere appreciation to our customers, suppliers, shareholders, 
employees, the central and karnataka government, financial 
institutions, banks and all other stakeholders for their 
whole-hearted support and co-operation. your Directors also 
wish to record their appreciation for the continued 
co–operations and support received from the Joint venture 
partner. 

we look forward to their continued support and encouragement.

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

place: noida (u.p.) Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Date: may 6, 2015 chairman and managing Director
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 ` million

Name of the subsidiary GE Triveni 
Ltd.

(GETL)

Triveni Turbines Europe 
Pvt. Ltd. (TTE)

Triveni Turbines 
 DMCC (TTD)

Place of incorporation India United Kingdom United Arab Emirates

Date of incorporation / acquisition 28.05.2010 23.12.2014 31.03.2015

1.  reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, 
if different from the holding company’s 
reporting period

na From 23.12.2014 to 
31.03.2015

From 31.03.2015 to 
31.03.2015

2.  reporting currency and exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant Financial year in the 
case of foreign subsidiaries

na   gbp
gbp=inr 91.62

aeD
aeD = inr 16.95

3. Share capital 160.00 4.58 0.85

4. reserves & surplus (25.10) (1.47) (4.02)

5. total assets 1132.77 9.84 0.59

6. total liabilities 997.87 7.57 3.76

7. investments 168.97 *0.84 __

8. turnover 694.26 5.08 __

9. profit before taxation 39.92 (1.47) (4.02)

10. provision for taxation (13.93) __ __

11. profit after taxation 53.85 (1.47) (4.02)

12. proposed Dividend nil nil nil

13. % of shareholding 50%+1 share 100% 100%

(*) in the equity share capital of ttD

Notes:

1. The Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture Company. However, GE Triveni Ltd., a joint venture 

with General Electric Inc., is a subsidiary of the Company.

2. TTD, a wholly owned subsidiary of TTE, is yet to commence business operations.

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/
Associate companies/ Joint ventures

Annexure-A

For and on behalf of the board of Directors  

Deepak Kumar Sen
general manager & cFo

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
chairman & managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
company Secretary

Amal Ganguli
Director & chairman audit committee

place: noida (u.p.)
Date: may 6, 2015
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Annexure-B
Corporate Governance Report 
Company’s Philosophy on code of Governance 

your company is of the belief that sound corporate 

governance is vital to enhance and retain stakeholders’ trust. 

good governance underpins the success and integrity of the 

organisation, institutions and markets. it is one of the essential 

pillars for building efficient and sustainable environment, 

system and practices to ensure that the affairs of the company 

are being managed in a way which ensures accountability, 

transparency, fairness in all its transactions in the widest sense 

and meet its stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectation. 

your company is committed to the adoption of best governance 

practices and its adherence in the true spirit at all times and 

envisages the attainment of a high level of transparency and 

accountability in the functioning of the company and conduct 

of its business internally and externally.

in line with the above philosophy, your company continuously 

strives for excellence through adoption of best governance 

and disclosure practices. the company recognises that 

good governance is a continuing exercise and thus reiterates 

its commitment to pursue highest standard of corporate 

governance in the overall interest of its stakeholders.

your company is conscious of the fact that the success of 

a company is reflection of the professionalism, conduct and 

ethical values of its management and employees.

in addition to the compliance with the regulatory requirements 

as per clause 49 of the listing agreement, your company’s 

endeavours to ensure that the highest standard of ethical and 

responsible conduct are met throughout the organisation. 

I Board of Directors (“Board”)

the company is managed and guided by the board of 

Directors. the board formulates the strategy and regularly 

reviews the performance of the company. the board has 

been entrusted with the requisite powers, authorities and 

duties to enable it to discharge its responsibilities and 

provide effective leadership to the business. 

the company has an optimum combination of executive, 

non-executive and independent Directors who are eminent 

persons with professional expertise and valuable experience 

in their respective areas of specialisation and bring a wide 

range of skills and experience to the board. 

the chairman and managing Director of the company 

provides vision and leadership for achieving the approved 
strategic plan and business objectives. He presides over the 
board and the Shareholders’ meetings. the chairman and 
managing Director with the support of the vice chairman 
and managing Director, executive Director and Senior 
executives oversees the operations of the company.

as on the date of this report the board comprises of 8 
(eight) Directors, which include 4 (four) non-executive 
independent Directors including one women Director, 1 
(one) non-executive non independent Director and 3 (three) 
executive Directors. none of the independent Directors of 
the company serve as an independent Director in more than 
seven listed companies. the composition of the board is in 
line with clause 49 of the listing agreement.

Independent Directors

the shareholders at the 19th annual general meeting held on 
august 8, 2014 approved appointment of all the independent 
Directors to hold office for a term upto three to five consecutive 
years. the company issued letter of appointment to all the 
independent Directors as per Schedule iv to the companies act, 
2013 and the terms and conditions of their appointment have 
been disclosed on the website of the company 
(weblink http://www.triveniturbines.com/key-policies).

the company has a familiarisation programme for independent 
Directors with regard to their roles, rights, responsibilities in 
the company, nature of the industry in which the company 
operates, the business models of the company etc. the 
definition of independence of directors is derived from clause 
49 of the listing agreement executed with the stock exchanges. 
all the independent Directors of the company made declaration 
to the company regarding their independence status. all such 
declarations were placed before the board.

none of the Directors on the board is a member on more than 
10 committees, and chairman of more than 5 committees 
across the companies in which he is a Director. the necessary 
disclosures regarding committee positions have been made by 
the Directors.

Meetings of the Board 

the board of Directors met six times during the financial year 
2014-15 ended on march 31, 2015. board meetings were 
held on may 27, 2014, august 11, 2014, September 8, 2014, 
november 12, 2014, December 16, 2014 and February 10, 2015. 
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the maximum gap between any two board meetings was less than one hundred twenty days. During the year, separate meeting of 
the independent Directors was held on march 18, 2015 without the attendance of non-independent directors and members of the 
management. all the independent Directors attended the said meeting. 

the company has proper systems to enable the board to periodically review compliance reports of all laws applicable to the 
company, as prepared by the company as well as steps taken by the company to rectify instances of non-compliances. the board 
reviewed compliance reports prepared by the company on quarterly periodicity.

Composition of Board

the composition of the board of Directors, their attendance at the meetings during the year and at the last annual general meeting 
as also the detail with regard to outside Directorships and committee positions are as under:–

Name of Director and DIN No. of Board 
Meeting 
attended 

(Total Meetings 
held: 6)

Attendance 
at  last
AGM

No. of other 
Directorships 

###

No. of Committee positions 
held in other companies ####

Chairman Member

mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney #
chairman & managing Director
Din-00102999

5 yes 5 1 nil

mr. nikhil Sawhney #
vice chairman and  
managing Director
Din-00029028

6 yes 3 nil 1

mr. tarun Sawhney #
Din-00382878

5 yes 3 nil 2

mr. arun prabhakar mote ##
executive Director
Din-01961162

4 yes  1 nil nil

lt. gen. k.k. Hazari (retd.)##
Din-00090909

4 yes 3 2 1

mr. amal ganguli
Din-00013808

3 no 7 5 2

mr. Shekhar Datta ##
Din-00045591   

5 yes 4 2 2

Dr. (mrs) vasantha 
S bharucha 
Din-02163753

6 yes 2 nil nil

#  mr. tarun Sawhney and mr. nikhil Sawhney are sons of mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney, chairman & managing Director of the 
company and are thus related.

##   lt. gen k.k. Hazari (retd), mr. Shekhar Datta and mr. arun prabhakar mote participated in the meeting on 16.12.2014 
through audio conference.

###  excludes Directorships in indian private limited companies, Foreign companies, Firms, partnerships including llps, Section 8 
companies and membership of various chambers and other non-corporate organisations.

####  the committees considered for the purpose are those prescribed under clause 49 of the listing agreement i.e. audit 
committee and Stakeholders’ relationship committee of public limited companies. 
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Board Functioning and procedure

•	  Board Meeting Frequency and circulation of Agenda 
papers: the board and its committees meet at regular 

intervals for discussion on agenda circulated well in 

advance by the company. all material information is 

incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful 

and focused discussion at the meeting. where it is not 

practical to attach or send the relevant information as a 

part of agenda papers, the same are tabled at the meeting. 

to meet the business exigencies or urgent matters the 

resolutions are passed by the Directors by circulation.

•	  Presentations by the Management: the senior 

management of the company is invited at the board 

meetings to make presentations covering performance 

of the businesses of the company, Strategy and business 

plans and to provide clarifications as and when necessary.

•	  Access to Employees: the Directors bring an independent 

perspective on the issues deliberated by the board. they 

have complete and unfettered access to any information of 

the company and to any employee of the company.

•	  Availability of Information to Board members include:

(i)  performance of business, business strategy going 

forward, new initiatives being taken/proposed to be 

taken and business plans of the company.

(ii) annual operating plans and budgets including capital 

expenditure budgets and any updates.

(iii) Quarterly results of the company.

(iv) minutes of the meetings of the committees of the 

board.

(v) Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty 

notices which are materially important.

(vi) Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any 

material effluent or pollution problems.

(vii) any material default in the financial obligations to 

and by the company, or substantial non-payment for 

goods sold / services provided by the company. 

(viii) any issue, which involves possible public or product 

liability claims of substantial nature, including any 

judgment or order which, may have passed strictures 

on the conduct of the company or taken an adverse 

view regarding another enterprise that can have 

negative implications on the company.

(ix) Details of any joint venture or collaboration 
agreement.

(x) transactions that involve substantial payment 
towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual 
property.

(xi) Significant labour problems and their proposed 
solutions. any significant development in Human 
resources/ industrial relations front like signing of 
wage agreement etc. 

(xii) Sale of material nature, of investments, subsidiaries, 
assets, which is not in normal course of business.

(xiii) Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures 
and the steps taken by the management to limit 
the  risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if 
material.

(xiv) non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or 
listing requirements and shareholders service such as 
non payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

(xv) Statutory compliance report of all laws applicable to 
the company.

(xvi) Details of the transactions with the related parties.

(xvii) general notices of interest of directors.

 (xviii) appointment, remuneration and resignation of 
Directors.

•	 Post Meeting follow up mechanism: the important 
decisions taken by the board/committee(s) at its 
meetings are promptly communicated to the concerned 
departments/divisions. action taken report on the decisions 
of the previous meeting(s) is placed at the immediately 
succeeding meeting of the board/ committee for 
information and review by the board/committee.  

•	 Appointment/ Re-appointment of Directors: the 
information/details pertaining to Directors seeking 
re-appointment in ensuing annual general meeting 
(agm), is provided in the notice for the agm. 

II Committees of the Board 

the board committees play a crucial role in the governance 
structure of the company and are constituted to deal with 
specific areas/activities which concern the company and 
are considered to be performed by members of the board. 
the board supervises the execution of its responsibilities 
by the committees and is responsible for their action. the 
minutes of the meetings of all the committees are placed 
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before the board. the board committees can request 
special invitees to join the meeting as appropriate. the 
board has currently constituted the following committees 
with adequate delegation of powers to discharge business 
of the company: 

1. audit committee

2. nomination and remuneration committee

3. Stakeholders’ relationship committee

4. corporate Social responsibility committee

Details of the role and composition of these committees, 
including the number of meetings held during the financial 
year and the related attendance are provided below:

1. Audit Committee 

the committee comprises of four Directors which include 
three non-executive independent Directors and one 
executive Director of the company. the chairman of the 
committee is an independent Director. the constitution 
and terms of reference of the audit committee meet 
the requirements of clause 49 of the listing agreement 
read with the relevant provisions of the companies act, 
2013. the company Secretary is the Secretary to the audit 
committee.

Meetings and Attendance

the audit committee met six times during financial year 
2014-15 ended on march 31, 2015 on may 26, 2014, 
august 11, 2014, September 8, 2014, november 11, 2014, 
February 10, 2015 and march 18, 2015. the maximum 
gap between any two meetings was less than four months.   
the attendance of each committee member is as under:- 

Name of the Members No. of meetings
Held Attended

mr. amal ganguli, chairman* 6 5
lt. gen. k.k. Hazari (retd.)** 6 4
mr. nikhil Sawhney 6 6
Dr. (mrs) vasantha S. bharucha*** 5 5

*Designated as chairman w.e.f. 6.5.2015

**Step-down as chairman w.e.f. 6.5.2015

***appointed as member w.e.f. 27.5.2014

the chairman of the audit committee attended the agm 
held on august 8, 2014 to answer the shareholders query.

The broad terms of reference of the Committee 
include:- 

(i)  reviewing the company’s financial reporting process 
and its financial statements.

(ii)  reviewing the accounting and financial policies and 
practices and compliance with applicable accounting 
standards.

(iii)  reviewing the efficacy of the internal control mechanism, 
monitor risk management policies adopted by the 
company and ensure compliance with regulatory 
guidelines. 

(iv)  reviewing reports furnished by the internal and 
statutory auditors, and ensure that suitable follow-up 
action is taken.

(v)  examining accountancy and disclosure aspects of all 
significant transactions.

(vi)  reviewing with management the quarterly, half 
yearly & annual financial statements including review 
of qualifications, if any, in the audit report before 
submission to the board for approval.  

(vii)  recommending appointment of Statutory and internal 
auditors and fixation of audit fees.

(viii)  Seeking legal or professional advice, if required.

(ix)  approval or any subsequent modifications of 
transactions of the company with related parties.

(x) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

(xi)  valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, 
wherever required.

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

the chairman of the committee is a non-executive 
independent Director. the committee comprises of the 
following Directors:

(i)  mr. Shekhar Datta, chairman

(ii) lt. gen. k. k. Hazari (retd.)

(iii) mr. amal ganguli

(iv) mr. tarun Sawhney

the constitution and term of reference of the nomination 
and remuneration committee (nrc) meet the requirements 
of clause 49 of the listing agreement read with the 
relevant provisions of the companies act, 2013.
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Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year ended on march 31, 2015, 
the committee met two times i.e. on may 26, 2014 and 
august 11, 2014. the composition and attendance record 
of each committee member is as under:- 

Name of the Members No. of meetings
Held Attended

lt. gen. k.k. Hazari (retd.) 2 2
mr. amal ganguli 2 2
mr. tarun Sawhney 2 1
mr. Shekhar Datta 2 2

The broad terms of reference of the Committee are:

•	  to identify persons who are qualified to become 
Directors (executive, non executive and independent 
Directors) and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down,

•	  to recommend to the board their appointment 
and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every 
director’s performance.

•	  to formulate the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and recommend to the board, a policy 
relating to the remuneration for the directors 
(executive, non executive and independent Directors), 
key managerial personnel and other employees.

•	  plan for succession of board members and key 
managerial personnel;

•	  Devising a policy on board diversity;

•	  Formulate and administer the company’s employee 
Stock option Scheme from time to time in accordance 
with Sebi guidelines; and

•	  to review the adequacy of aforesaid terms of 
reference and recommend any proposed change to 
the board for its approval.

Remuneration Policy 

in terms of the provisions of the companies act, 2013 and the 
listing agreement the board of Directors of the company has 
adopted nomination and remuneration policy for nomination 
and remuneration of Directors, kmp and Senior management. 

the objective and broad framework of the remuneration 
policy is to lay down criteria and terms and conditions for 
appointment of Directors (executive and non-executive), Senior 

and key managerial personnel; evaluation of their performance; 
provision of reward linked to efforts, performance, dedication 
and achievements of these personnel relating to the company’s 
operations; retaining, motivation and promoting talent so as to 
ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons 
and to create competitive advantage. the nomination and 
remuneration committee recommends the remuneration of 
Directors and key managerial personnel, which is approved by 
the board of Directors, subject to the approval of shareholders, 
wherever necessary.

Performance Evaluation

the nomination and remuneration committee has laid 
down the criteria for evaluation of performance of Directors 
based on the indicators provided in the remuneration policy. 
the chairman and managing Director, vice chairman and 
managing Director and the executive Directors evaluates the 
Senior management personnel, including kmps considering the 
competencies/indicators provided in the remuneration policy. 

Remuneration to Executive Directors 

the remuneration to the executive Directors is recommended 
by the nomination and remuneration committee to the board 
and after approval by the board, the same is put up for the 
Shareholders approval. executive Directors do not receive any 
sitting fees for attending the board and committee meetings.

During the financial year 2014-15, the company had three (3) 
executive Directors viz. mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney, chairman & 
managing Director (cmD), mr. nikhil Sawhney, vice chairman 
& managing Director (vcmD) and mr. arun prabhakar mote, 
executive Director (eD).

the details of remuneration paid/payable to cmD, vcmD & eD 
during the financial year 2014-15 are as under:

(` in million)

Name of the 
Executive 
Director

Mr. Dhruv 
M. Sawhney 

CMD

Mr. Nikhil 
Sawhney 

VCMD

Mr. Arun 
Prabhakar 

Mote 
ED

Service period 10.05.2011 
to 

09.05.2016

10.05.2011 
to 

09.05.2016

01.11.2014  
to  

31.10.2016
Salary 24.64 19.20 14.95
performance 
bonus/commission

-- 3.10 2.30

contribution to pF 
& other funds

1.85 3.24 1.73

other perquisites 1.64 2.20 1.41*
Total 28.13 27.74 20.39

* includes perquisite value of ` 0.54 million in respect of stock options 

exercised during the year.
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mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney has ceased to draw remuneration from 
this company (in his capacity as chairman and managing 
Director of the company) effective march 1, 2015 in view of 
his employment with the foreign step-down subsidiary namely, 
triveni turbines Dmcc, Dubai to internationalise the business of 
the group. 

in addition, mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney, being also the chairman 
and managing Director of triveni engineering and industries ltd., 
has also received remuneration from that company during the 
year. However, the compensation received by him from both 
the companies is within the overall ceiling prescribed under the 
companies act, 2013 and in accordance with the approval of 
the board and the shareholders of the company.

During the year, the company has not issued any stock option 
to its Directors including independent Directors under its eSop 
Schemes. However, the company had made allotment of equity 
shares to mr. arun prabhakar mote, eD on exercise of options 
granted to him earlier, details of which has been provided in 
annexure e to the Directors’ report.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

the company pays sitting fee to its non-executive Directors 
for attending the meetings of the board and its committees. 
in addition to the sitting fees, the company pays commission 
to its non-executive Directors within the limits approved by the 
shareholders of the company. the said commission is decided 
by the board and distributed to non-executive Directors based 
on their contribution during board/committee meetings, as 
well as time spent on operational/ strategic matters other than 
at meetings. the details of the remuneration paid during the 
financial year 2014-15 to non-executive Directors are as under:-

Name of 
the Non-
Executive 
Director

Sitting Fees 
for the year 

ended 
March 31, 2015

(` In million) 

Commission  
for  the year  

ended 
March 31, 2015

(` In million)

No. of 
shares 
held 
as on 

March 31, 2015

mr. tarun 
Sawhney

0.29 1.20 14,266,775

lt. gen. k.k. 
Hazari (retd.)

0.42 1.20 -

mr. amal 
ganguli

0.49 1.20 -

mr. Shekhar 
Datta 

0.29 1.20 10,000

Dr. (mrs) 
vasantha S. 
bharucha

0.61 1.20 -

* no sitting fee or commission for the Fy 15 was paid to mr. k.n. Shenoy 

who resigned from the board of the company with effect from  

may 08, 2014 

none of the independent / non-executive Directors has any 
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the company, its 
promoters and its senior management, its subsidiaries and 
associate companies except for the payment of remuneration 
as stated above. lt. gen. k.k. Hazari (retd.) and mr. Shekhar 
Datta are also on the board of Directors of triveni engineering 
& industries ltd., one of the promoter company, and have  
received sitting fees as a Director/committee member from that 
company.

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee  

the chairman of the committee is a non-executive 
independent Director. the committee comprises of 
following Directors, namely.

(i)  lt. gen. k. k. Hazari (retd.) (chairman)

(ii) mr. nikhil Sawhney

(iii) mr. tarun Sawhney

the company Secretary is the compliance officer of the 
company.

Meetings and Attendance

the committee met four times during the financial year 
2014-15 ended on march 31, 2015 on may 26, 2014, 
august 11, 2014, november 11, 2014 and February 6, 2015. 
the composition and attendance record of each committee 
member is as under:-

Name of the Members No. of meetings
Held Attended

lt. gen. k. k. Hazari (retd.) 4 3

mr. nikhil Sawhney 4 4

mr. tarun Sawhney* 3 2

*appointed as member w.e.f. 27.5.2014

Function and term of reference:

the committee is authorised to look into and review the 
actions for redressal of security holders grievances such as 
non-receipt of transferred/ transmitted share certificates/
annual report/ refund orders/ declared dividend etc. as also 
to review the reports submitted by the company Secretary 
relating to approval / confirmation of requests for share 
transfer/ transmission/ transposition/ consolidation/ issue of 
duplicate share certificates/ sub-division, remat, demat of 
shares etc. from time to time.
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Complaints received / resolved

During the financial year 2014-2015 ended on march 31, 
2015 the company has received 7 complaints from the 
various shareholders/ investors. all of them were resolved/ 
replied suitably by furnishing the requisite information/ 
documents. number of complaints received during the 
year as a percentage of total number of members as on 
march 31, 2015 is 0.024%.

Pending Complaint/Share Transfers

there was no investor complaint pending for redressal as 
on march 31, 2015. Further there was no pending share 
transfers and requests for dematerialisation as on that date.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

the chairperson of the committee is a non executive 
independent Director. the committee comprises following 
executive and non executive independent Directors:-

 (i) Dr. (mrs) vasantha S. bharucha, chairperson

 (ii) mr. nikhil Sawhney  

 (iii) mr. tarun Sawhney

 (iv) mr. arun prabhakar mote

Meetings and Attendance

the committee met two times during the financial year 
2014-15 ended on march 31, 2015 on august 8, 2014 and 

January 30, 2015. the composition and attendance record of 
each committee member is as under:-

Name of the Members No. of meetings

Held Attended

Dr. (mrs) vasantha S. bharucha, 
chairperson

2 2

mr. nikhil Sawhney 2 2

mr. tarun Sawhney 2 2

mr. arun prabhakar mote 2 1

Function and term of reference:

in accordance with the provisions of companies act, 
2013, the committee is authorised to formulate and 
recommend to the board, a cSr policy indicating the 
activity or activities to be undertaken by the company 
as specified in Schedule vii of the companies act 2013; 
recommend amounts to be spent on these activities; 
review the company’s cSr policy periodically and monitor 
the implementation of the cSr projects by instituting a 
structured and effective  monitoring mechanism 

Other Functional Committees

Operations Committee

apart from the above statutory committees, the board 
of Directors has constituted an operations committee 
comprising of four (4) Directors to oversee routine items 
that are in the normal course of the business. the board of 
Directors have delegated certain powers to this committee 
to facilitate the working of the company.

III General Body Meetings

particulars of the last three annual general meetings are as follows:

Year Date & Day Location Time Special Resolution 

2013-14 august 08, 2014 
Friday

expo centre, 
a-11, Sector-62,  
nH-24, 
noida-201301

10:30 am 1. approval to the re-appointment of mr. arun prabhakar mote as a whole 
time Director of the company (Designated as executive Director)  for a 
period of 2 years w.e.f november 1, 2014 and payment of remuneration.

2. approval for continuance of holding of office by chairman and 
managing Director, mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney, for the remaining period of 
his tenure as a Director liable to retire by rotation. 

3. alteration of articles of association by insertion/ substitution of certain 
clauses.

2012-13 august 1, 2013 
thursday   

expo centre, 
a-11, Sector-62,  
nH-24, 
noida-201301

10.30 am 1. approval to the appointment of mr. arun prabhakar mote as a whole 
time Director of the company (Designated as executive Director) and 
payment of remuneration with effect from november 1, 2012.

2. issuance of further securities/ stock options under triveni turbine limited  
eSop 2013.

2011-12 July 16, 2012, 
monday 

expo centre, 
a-11, Sector-62, nH-
24, noida-201301

11:00 am none

there was no extra-ordinary general meeting held during the financial year 2014-15 ended on march 31, 2015. 
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Postal Ballot

a.  Details of the special/ordinary resolutions passed 
by the Company through postal ballot:

  During the financial year 2014-15 ended on march 31, 
2015, no special/ordinary resolutions passed by the 
company through postal ballot.

b.  Whether any special resolution is proposed to 
be conducted through postal ballot and the 
procedure thereof:

  the company proposes to seek shareholders’ approval 
by way of special resolutions relating to exercising of 
borrowing powers and creation of charge/mortgage 
on company’s assets to secure such borrowing by the 
board of Directors and amendments to the objects 
clause and the liability clause of the memorandum 
of association through the process of postal ballot 
(including e-voting) in accordance with the procedure 
laid down under the applicable provisions of the 
companies act, 2013 and the listing agreement. the 
result of the postal ballot, as and when declared, 
will be displayed on the company’s website, besides 
communicating to the stock exchanges, where the 
company’s equity shares are listed.

IV Other Disclosures 

•	 Related	Party	Transactions

none of the transactions with any of the related 
parties was in conflict with the interest of the 
company. Detail of the transactions between the 
company and its related parties during Fy 15 are given 
in the note no. 43 to the financial statements and 
the detail of material contract and arrangement with 
the related parties are given in the annexure-D to the 
Directors report in the prescribed Form no. aoc 2. 

•	 Disclosures	of	Accounting	Treatment

no treatment different from that prescribed in 
accounting Standards has been followed by the 
company.  

•	 Risk	Management

to ensure that executive management controls risks by 
means of a properly defined framework, the company 
has a risk policy and has a structured mechanism to 
review risks and their mitigation. Further a detailed 
note on risk management is given in the Financial 
review section of management’s Discussion and 
analysis. the company has laid down adequate 
procedures to update the board members about risk 
evaluation and risk mitigation.

•	 Details of Non-Compliance by the Company, 
penalties, stricture imposed on the Company 
by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory 

authorities or any matter related to capital markets.

the company has complied with all the requirements 
of the Stock exchanges/the regulations and guidelines 
of Sebi and other Statutory authorities on all matters 
relating to capital markets. no penalties or strictures 
have been imposed by Sebi, Stock exchanges or any 
statutory authorities on matters relating to capital 
markets during the last three years. 

•	 Code	for	prevention	of	Insider	Trading

the company has instituted code on prevention of 
insider trading in compliance with the Sebi (prohibition 
of insider trading) regulations. the code lays down 
the guidelines which advise on procedures to be 
followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing in 
shares of the company and the consequences of the 
non-compliances.

•	 	Whistle	Blower	Policy	and	Affirmation	that	no	
personnel has been denied access to the Audit 
Committee

the company has established a vigil mechanism 
through a whistle blower policy for directors and 
employees to report concerns about unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
the company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. the 
mechanism  provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimisation of director(s) / employee(s) who express 
their concerns and also provides for direct access to 
the chairman of the audit committee in exceptional 
cases. During the year under review, no personnel was 
denied access to the audit committee.

•	 Code	of	conduct	for	Directors	and	Senior	
Executives

the company has laid down a code of conduct for 
all board members and the Senior executives of the 
company. the code of conduct is available on the 
company’s website www.triveniturbines.com. the 
code of conduct was circulated to all the members of 
the board and senior management personnel and they 
have affirmed their compliance with the said code of 
conduct for the financial year ended march 31, 2015. 
a declaration to this effect signed by the chairman & 
managing Director is given below:

To the Shareholders of Triveni Turbine Ltd. 
Sub.: Compliance with Code of Conduct

i hereby declare that all the board members and 
the Senior management personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct as adopted by 
the board of Directors.

Date: may 6, 2015 Dhruv M. Sawhney 
place: noida chairman and managing Director
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CEO/CFO Certification

the chairman and managing Director, executive Director and 
general manager & cFo have certified to the board of Directors, 
inter-alia, the accuracy of financial statements and adequacy of 
internal controls for the financial reporting purpose as required 
under clause 49 (iX) of the listing agreement, for the year ended  
march 31, 2015. the said certificate forms part of the annual 
report.

Subsidiaries Companies  

During the year, the company has incorporated an international 
subsidiary i.e. triveni turbines europe pvt. ltd. (tte), domiciled 
in the uk, on December 23, 2014. Subsequently, tte acquired 
100% equity interest in triveni turbines Dmcc (ttD) domiciled 
in Dubai, uae, effective march 31, 2015. besides the company 
has  ge triveni limited an unlisted indian subsidiary company, 
wherein the company holds 50% plus one equity share. none 
of these subsidiaries are “material non-listed Subsidiary” in 
terms of clause 49 of the listing agreement. the company 
regularly places before the board minutes of the subsidiaries 
company. accordingly, as on march 31, 2015, the company had 
two direct subsidiaries and one step down subsidiary.

Training of Board/Committee Members

the board/committee members are provided with the necessary 
documents/brochures, reports and internal policies, codes of 
conduct to enable them to familiarise with the company’s 
procedure and practices. Directors are regularly updated on 
performance of the business of the company, business strategy 
going forward and new initiative being taken/proposed to be 
taken by the company through presentation. Factory visits are 
organised from time to time for the Directors.

V. Details of compliance with mandatory 
requirement and adoption of the non-mandatory 
requirement of this clause

the details of mandatory requirements are mentioned 
in this report and adoption of the non-mandatory 
requirement is as under:

Audit Qualification

it is always the company’s endeavour to present 
unqualified financial statements.

VI Means of Communication

(a) Quarterly Results: the unaudited quarterly/ half 
yearly financial results and the annual audited 
financial results of the company were published in 
leading national english and Hindi newspapers and 
displayed on the website of the company at 
www.triveniturbines.com and the same were also sent 
to all the Stock exchanges where the equity shares of 
the company are listed. the investor’s brief were also 
sent to Stock exchanges.

(b) Website www.triveniturbines.com: Detailed 
information on the company’s business and products; 
quarterly/half yearly/nine months and annual financial 
results, investor brief and the quarterly distribution of 
Shareholding are displayed on the company’s website.

(c) Teleconferences and Press conferences, 
Presentation etc.: the company held quarterly investors 
teleconferences and press conferences for the investors 
of the company after the declaration of the Quarterly/
annual results. the company made presentations to 
institutional investors/analysts during the period which 
are available on the company’s website.

(d) Exclusive email ID for investors: in terms of clause 
47 (f) of the listing agreement, the company has 
designated the email id shares.ttl@trivenigroup.com 
exclusively for investor servicing, and the same is 
prominently displayed on the company’s website 
www.triveniturbines.com. the company strives to reply 
to the complaints within a period of 6 working days.

(e) Annual Report: annual report contains inter-alia 
audited annual accounts, consolidated Financial 
Statement, Directors’ report, auditors’ report. the 
management perspective, business review and 
Financial Highlights are also part of the annual report.

(f) The Management Discussion & Analysis: the 
management Discussion & analysis report forms part 
of the annual report.

(g) Intimation to Stock Exchanges: the company 
intimates stock exchanges all price sensitive information 
or such other information which in its opinion are 
material & of relevance to the shareholders. the 
company also submits electronically various compliance 
reports/statements periodically in accordance with the 
provisions of the listing agreement on nSe and bSe’s 
electronic Filing Systems.

VII General Shareholder Information

(a) General Information
annual general meeting
Date & Day : august 6, 2015
time : 11.00 a.m.
venue :  expo centre, a-11, 

Sector - 62, n.H. 24, 
noida - 201 301

Dates of book closure for : tuesday, august 4, 2015  
payment of final dividend    to thursday, august 6,  
  2015 (both days inclusive).
Dividend payment Date :  on or before august 25, 

2015.
Financial year : april to march
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(b) Financial Calendar (tentative & subject to change)

Financial reporting for the 1st Quarter 
ending June 30, 2015

by mid of 
august, 2015 

Financial reporting for the 2nd Quarter  
ending September 30, 2015

by mid of 
november, 2015

Financial reporting for the 3rd Quarter 
ending December 31, 2015

by mid of 
February, 2016

Financial reporting for the annual 
audited accounts ending march 31, 
2016

by the end of 
may, 2016

(c) Unclaimed Dividend

During the financial year 2014-15 no amount was 
required to be transferred to the investor education 
and protection Fund (iepF), administered by the central 
government under Section 205c of the companies 
act, 1956. the dividends which remain unclaimed for 
7 years will be transferred by the company to the said 
iepF on the due dates as given hereunder:

Financial 
Year/Period

Whether
Interim/Final

Date of 
declaration 
of dividend

Due date for 
transfer to 

IEPF

2011-12 1st interim 
dividend

27.10.2011 26.10.2018

2011-12 2nd interim 
dividend

13.01.2012 12.01.2019

2011-12 Final 
dividend

16.07.2012 15.07.2019

2012-13 interim 
dividend

29.10.2012 28.10.2019

2012-13 Final 
Dividend 

01.08.2013 31.07.2020

2013-14 interim 
Dividend

06.11.2013 05.11.2020

2013-14 Final 
Dividend

08.08.2014 07.08.2021

2014-15 interim 
Dividend

08.09.2014 07.09.2021

Shareholders who have not so far encashed their 
dividend warrant(s) or have not received the same are 
requested to seek issuance of duplicate warrant(s) by 
writing to the company confirming non-encashment/
non-receipt of dividend warrant(s).

(d) Outstanding GDR/ADR or Warrants 

as on date there are no global Depository receipts 
(gDr), american Depository receipt (aDr), warrants 
or any other instrument. 

(e) Listing on Stock Exchanges 

the company’s equity shares are listed at the 
following Stock exchanges:

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of Stock 
Exchanges

Stock Code

1. bSe ltd.
phiroze Jeejeebhoy towers
Dalal Street, Fort, mumbai – 400 023.

533655

2. national Stock exchange of india ltd.
exchange plaza, 5th Floor 
plot no. c/1, g block, bandra (e)
mumbai – 400 051.

triturbine

the company has paid the listing fees for the Financial year 

2015-2016 to both the aforesaid Stock exchanges. 

(f) Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on  
March 31, 2015

Group of 
Shares

Number of 
Shareholders

% to total 
Shareholders

Number of 
Shares held

% to 
Total 

Shares 

1-500 26204 91.26 2759415 0.84

501-1000 1141 3.97 889983 0.27

1001-2000 640 2.23 947943 0.29

2001-3000 203 0.71 520291 0.16

3001-4000 96 0.33 336614 0.10

4001-5000 82 0.29 385798 0.12

5001-10000 123 0.43 941079 0.28

10001 & 
above

225 0.78 323191027 97.94

Total 28714 100.00 329972150 100.00

(g) Shareholding Pattern of Equity Shares as on 
March 31, 2015

Category Number of 
Shares held

Shareholding 
% 

indian promoters 231004533 70.01

mutual Funds/uti 12748158 3.86

banks, Financial 
institutions, insurance 
cos.

14321 0.00

Fiis 60749521 18.41

Foreign portfolio investor  2815615 0.85

bodies corporate 5601932 1.70

indian public(*) 15626765 4.74

nris/ocbs 1259675 0.38

others – clearing 
members & trust

151630 0.05

Total 329972150 100.00

(*) includes 109650 equity shares held by directors 
and their relatives.
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to the Depository participant (Dp) with whom he/
she has opened a Depository account.

•	 DP	will	process	the	DRF	and	generates	a	unique	
number Drn.

•	 Dp will forward the DrF and share certificates to the 
company’s registrar and Share transfer agent.

•	 The	Company’s	Registrar	and	Share	Transfer	
agent after processing the DrF will confirm or 
reject the request to the Depositories.

•	 Upon	confirmation,	the	Depository	will	give	
the credit to shareholder in his/her depository 
account maintained with Dp.

  as on march 31, 2015, 99.94% of total equity 
share capital of the company were held in 
dematerialised form. the iSin allotted in respect 
of equity shares of  ` 1/- each of the company 
by nSDl/cDSl is ine152m01016. confirmation 
in respect of the requests for dematerialisation 
of shares is sent to nSDl and cSDl within the 
stipulated period. 

(k) Share Transfer System

the company’s share transfer authority has been 
delegated to the company Secretary/ registrar and 
transfer agent m/s alankit assignments ltd. who 
generally approves and confirm the request for share 
transfer/ transmission/ transposition/ consolidation/ 
issue of duplicate share certificates/ sub-division, 
consolidation, remat, demat and perform other 
related activities in accordance with the listing 
agreement and Sebi (Depositories and participants) 
regulations, 1996 and submit a report in this regard 
to investors’ grievance and Share transfer committee 
at every meeting.

the shares sent for physical transfer are registered and 
returned within the stipulated period from the date 
of receipt of request, if the documents are complete 
in all respects. as per the requirement of clause 47(c) 
of the listing agreement with Stock exchanges, 
a certificate on half yearly basis confirming due 
compliance of share transfer/transmission formalities 
by the company from practicing company Secretary 
has been submitted to Stock exchanges within 
stipulated time.

(l) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

as stipulated by Sebi, a qualified practising company 
Secretary carries out reconciliation of Share capital 
audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with 
nSDl and cDSl and the total issued and listed 

 (h) Stock Price Data: Financial Year 2014-15

During the year under report, the trading in 
company’s equity shares was from 1st april 2014 
to 31st march, 2015. the high low price during this 
period on the bSe and nSe was as under:-

Month Bombay Stock 
Exchange (BSE) 

(in `)

National Stock 
Exchange (NSE)

(in `)

High Low High Low

april, 2014 79.65 67.30 79.75 68.10

may, 2014 103.00 68.00 103.00 68.60

June, 2014 101.80 85.60 101.40 85.00

July, 2014 100.00 90.10 100.00 90.10

august, 2014 96.85 80.60 97.85 81.25

September, 2014 105.60 83.00 105.40 83.00

october, 2014 98.00 85.25 97.75 85.30

november, 2014 120.00 89.00 120.00 89.10

December, 2014 125.95 95.05 125.00 95.30

January, 2015 120.50 104.00 120.35 103.65

February, 2015 131.00 104.25 127.55 104.00

march, 2015 137.90 119.20 151.75 118.35

(i) Stock Performance Graph
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(j) Dematerialisation of Shares & Liquidity 

the company’s equity shares are compulsorily traded 
in the electronic form. the company has entered 
into an agreement with nSDl and cDSl to establish 
electronic connectivity of its shares for scripless 
trading. both nSDl & cDSl have admitted the 
company’s equity share on their system.

the system for getting the shares dematerialised will 
be as under:

•	 	Share	Certificate(s)	along	with	Demat	Request	
Form (DrF) will be submitted by the shareholder 
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capital. this audit is carried out every quarter and the 
report thereon is submitted to the Stock exchanges. 
the audit confirms that the total listed and paid-up 
capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the 
total number of shares in dematerialised form and in 
physical form.

(m) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

m/s alankit assignments ltd., 

unit: triveni turbine limited

205-208, anarkali complex Jhandewalan extension, 
new Delhi-110 055.

phone: 011-42541234, 23541234, 

Fax: 011-42541967

email: rta@alankit.com

(n) Locations

registered office

a-44, Hosiery complex, 

phase ii extension, 

noida-201305, (u.p.) 

StD code: 0120

phone: 4748000, Fax: 4243049

Share Department and Address for Correspondence

mr. rajiv Sawhney

company Secretary

triveni turbine ltd. 
8th Floor, express trade towers,

15-16, Sector 16a, noida-201 301, (u.p.)

phone: 0120-4308000; Fax:- 0120-4311010-11

email: shares.ttl@trivenigroup.com

Detailed information on plant/business locations is 
provided elsewhere in the annual report. 

(o) Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance 
from the Auditor

the certificate dated may 6, 2015 from the 
Statutory auditors of the company (m/s J. c. bhalla 
& co.) confirming compliance with the corporate 
governance requirements as stipulated under clause 
49 of the listing agreement is annexed hereto.

the above report has been adopted by the board of 
Directors at their meeting held on may 6, 2015.



43

Financial StatementSmanagement StatementScorporate overview Statutory reportS 

annual report 2014-15triveni turbine limiteD

management DiScuSSion & analySiS  |  Financial review  |  riSk review  |  DirectorS’ report 

Auditors’ Certificate on Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
with the Stock Exchanges.

to  
the members of 
triveni turbine limited

we have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by triveni turbine limited for the financial year 2014-15 
ended 31st march, 2015 as stipulated in clause 49 of the listing agreement of the said company with stock exchange(s) in india.

the compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. our examination was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate 
governance as stipulated in the said clause. it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the 
company.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company has 
complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned listing agreement.

we state that, such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company, nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For and on behalf of
J C BHALLA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
FRN NO. 001111N

(SUDHIR MALLICK)
place: noida (u.p.)  partner
Date: may 6, 2015 membership no. 80051

Annexure-C
Auditors' Certificate On Corporate Governance
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CEO/CFO Certification

to 
the board of Directors 
triveni turbine limited

Sub: ceo/cFo certification under clause 49 of the listing agreement

we, Dhruv m. Sawhney, chairman and managing Director, arun prabhakar mote, executive Director and Deepak kumar Sen, 
general manager & cFo certify to the board that:

(a) we have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended march 31, 2015 and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

(c) we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) we have indicated to the auditors and the audit committee:

(i)  that there were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements; and

(iii) that there were no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

Deepak Kumar Sen Arun Prabhakar Mote Dhruv M. Sawhney 
general manager & cFo  executive Director chairman and managing Director

place: noida (u.p.) 
Date: may 6, 2015
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Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in  
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the companies act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso thereto:

i)  there was no contract or arrangement or transaction entered into during the financial year ended march 31, 2015 which was 
not at arm’s length basis.

ii) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

the material contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the company with its related parties mentioned hereunder, 
are such contracts/arrangements/transactions which exceed in the aggregate, the threshold limits for the relevant category of 
transactions prescribed under section 188 of the companies act, 2013 and the relevant rules framed thereunder.

i. (a) name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship triveni engineering & industries ltd. (teil) – investing party 
holding substantial interest

(b) nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions contract for supply of goods and services under a 
turbine extended scope project outsourced by teil to the 
company, which was awarded to teil by its customer. 

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions long-term contract awarded by teil during Fy 12 and 
expected to be completed in Fy 17

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any:

the subject contract was being negotiated with a customer 
while the company’s activities were carried on as an 
undertaking of teil prior to its demerger in the company. 
the contract was awarded to teil and teil, in turn, 
completely outsourced the execution of the contract to 
the company on back-to-back basis, after retaining some 
financial obligation and incurrence of certain specific costs. 
the company shall indemnify and bear all claims and 
damages raised against teil by the customer in respect of 
execution and satisfactory performance under the contract.

the total contract value awarded by teil to the company 
is ` 1571 million (exclusive of taxes & duties)

During the current financial year the company has 
supplied goods/rendered services aggregating to ` 502.53 
million (inclusive of taxes and duties) under the aforesaid 
contract.

(e) amount paid as advances, if any: ` 157.10 million (received from teil in Fy 13)

ii. (a)  name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship triveni engineering & industries ltd. (teil) – investing party 
holding substantial interest

(b)  nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 1. Supply of 1 no. 6 mw turbine to Sabitgarh unit of teil;

2. Sale of turbine spares to the sugar units of teil

 (c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Supply of turbine: Specific order executed during the year.

Sale of spares: recurring orders executed during the year

Annexure-D
Form No AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub–section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 
Companies Accounts Rules, 2014)
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 (d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any:

1. Supply of turbine: 

•	 prices are F.o.r. bangalore

•	 transportation& insurance to be borne by teil. 

•	 payment term – advance 40% (in stages), at time of 
despatch -50%, balance 10% by 15.01.2015.

•	 value of turbine supplied during the year: ` 35.40 
million (inclusive of taxes & duties)

2. Sale of spares: 

•	 prices are F.o.r bangalore 

•	 Delivery within 8 weeks

•	 payment terms are 100% against performa invoice 

•	 value of Spares supplied during the year: ` 3.05 million

 (e) amount paid as advances, if any: against supply of turbine: ` 12.70 million

against sale of spares: nil

iii. (a)  name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship triveni engineering & industries ltd. (teil) – investing party 
holding substantial interest

(b)  nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions purchase of gears/gear-boxes and spares thereof from teil

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions recurring orders are placed during the year. execution 
period depends upon the size of gears/gear-boxes – 
normally within 4-8 months.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any:

prices are ex-works mysore and payment terms are 30 days 
from receipt of material by the company. 

value of purchases of gears/gearboxes and spares : 
` 315.70 million (inclusive of taxes and duties)

(e) amount paid as advances, if any: nil

note: appropriate approvals have been taken for the related party transactions.

For and on behalf of the board of Directors  

place: noida (u.p.)
Date: may 6, 2015

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
chairman & managing Director
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Nature of Disclosure Particulars 

a) number of options granted  under nSoS from inception 40000 options representing the right to apply for a 
maximum of 1,84,000 equity shares.

b) the pricing formula in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Scheme 
of arrangement and Sebi guidelines, the adjustment to 
the outstanding vested stock options has been made, 
considering the global best practices and ensuring that the 
fair value of options before and after the corporate action 
remains unchanged.  the fair value has been arrived using 
black Scholes option pricing formula.

accordingly, a fair and reasonable adjustment has been 
made in the entitlement to shares under the options, the 
exercise price having been determined based upon the 
market price.

c) options outstanding and vested at the beginning of the year 6,000 

d) options granted during the year nil

e) options vested during the year nil

f) options lapsed during the year nil

g) options exercised during the year 6,000

h) the total number of equity shares arising as a result of exercise 
of options  

27,600

i) money realised by exercise of options ` 1.44 million

j) variation of terms of options none 

k) total number of options in force at the end of the year nil

l) employee wise detail of options granted  during the year:

(i) Senior managerial personnel none

(ii) any other employee who receives a grant in any one year 
of options amounting to 5% or more of options granted 
during the year. 

none 

(iii)   identical employees who were granted option , during 
one year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital 
(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the 
company at the time of grant.

none 

m) Diluted earnings per share (epS) pursuant to issue of shares on 
exercise of options calculated in accordance with accounting 
Standard (aS) 20 earnings per share. 

` 2.76 per share

ANNEXURE E TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT DETAIL OF THE TRIVENI TURBINE LIMITED   
NEW STOCK OPTION SCHEME (NSOS)  

Annexure-E
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n) method of calculation of employee compensation cost. 

Difference between the employee compensation cost 
computed using the intrinsic value of the stock options and 
the employee compensation cost that shall been recognised 
if the fair value of the options granted had been used and its 
impacts on profits and epS of the company.

the employee compensation cost is calculated using the 
intrinsic value method to account for the stock options. the 
stock-based compensation cost as per the intrinsic value 
method for the financial year is nil, since the exercise price 
was determined based upon the market value of the shares, 
on the date of grant.

the difference in the employee compensation cost under 
the two methods has already been reported in earlier years. 
During the current year the outstanding options have been 
fully exercised. 

accordingly there is no impact during the year on the profits 
or on the epS (basic / Diluted) of the company, if the fair 
value method of accounting for options had been followed. 

o) (i)  weighted average exercise prices and weighted average 
fair value of options whose exercise price equals the 
market price of the stock. 

(ii)  weighted average exercise prices and weighted average 
fair value of options whose exercise price exceeds the 
market price of the stock. 

(iii)  weighted average exercise prices and weighted average 
fair value of options whose exercise price is less than the 
market price of the  stock. 

weighted average exercise price per option as granted on 
corporate adjustment: ` 239.20 per option (or ` 52.00 per 
share entitled under the option).

weighted average fair value per option: ` 29.30.

no such grants. 

p) a description of the  method and significant assumptions 
used during the year to estimate the fair value of the options, 
including the following weighted average information.  

the fair value of the options granted on corporate 
adjustment, have been determined using the black-Scholes 
option pricing formula and the significant assumptions made 
in this regard are as follows:

(i) risk Free interest rate 8.36%

(ii) expected life 1.99 years

(iii) expected volatility 46.53%

(iv) expected Dividend 1.20%

(v)  the price of the underlying share in market at the time of 
options granted

` 52 per share 
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to,
the members,
triveni turbine limited
(cin: l29110up1995plc041834)
a-44, Hosiery complex, phase-ii extension,
noida-201305 

we have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by triveni turbine limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) we have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the secretarial records. the verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. we believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) we have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the company.

d) where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliances of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

e) the compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of 
the management. our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

f) the Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the 
conduct of Secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st march, 2015 (“audit period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company 
has proper board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

Secretarial Audit Report
For The Financial Year Ended 31St March, 2015

Annexure-F

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company for the 
financial year ended on 31st march, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(i)  the companies act, 2013 (the act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)  the Securities contracts (regulation) act, 1956 (‘Scra’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) the Depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign exchange management act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
investment, overseas Direct investment and external commercial borrowings;

(v)  the following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and exchange board of india act, 1992 (‘Sebi act’):-

(a)  the Securities and exchange board of india (Substantial acquisition of Shares and takeovers) regulations, 2011;

(b)  the Securities and exchange board of india (prohibition of insider trading) regulations, 1992;

(c)  the Securities and exchange board of india (issue of capital and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2009;

(d)  the Securities and exchange board of india (employee Stock option Scheme and employee Stock purchase Scheme) 
guidelines, 1999;

(e)  the Securities and exchange board of india (issue and listing of Debt Securities) regulations, 2008;

(f)  the Securities and exchange board of india (registrars to an issue and Share transfer agents) regulations, 1993;

(g) the Securities and exchange board of india (Delisting of equity Shares) regulations, 2009; and

(h)  the Securities and exchange board of india (buyback of Securities) regulations, 1998;

we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the listing agreements entered into by the company with  
bSe limited and the national Stock exchange of india limited.

During the period under review, the company has complied with the provisions of the act, rules, regulations and guidelines, to the 
extent applicable, as mentioned above.

(vi) the company is a leading manufacturer of industrial steam turbine. Following are some of the laws specifically applicable to the 
company, being in heavy industry:-

•	 Batteries	(Management	and	Handling)	Rules,	2001	and	made	under	Environment	(Protection)	Act,	1986;

•	 Petroleum	Act,	1934	&	Rules	made	thereunder;

we have checked the compliance management system of the company to obtain reasonable assurance about the adequacy of 
systems in place to ensure compliance of specifically applicable laws and this verification was done on test basis. in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we believe that the compliance management system of the 
company seems adequate to ensure compliance of laws specifically applicable to the company.

We further report that the board of Directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive Directors, 
non-executive Directors and independent Directors. the changes in the composition of the board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the act.
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adequate notices of at least seven days were given to all directors for the board meetings. Further, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent in advance of the meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on 
the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the company has allotted 27,600 equity shares under “new Stock option Scheme”. 
Further, during the audit period, there were no instances of:

(i) public/rights/preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity.

(ii) redemption/ buy back of securities.

(iii) Decisions by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the act.

(iv) merger/amalgamation/reconstruction.

(v) Foreign technical collaborations.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Companies Secretaries

 Sanjay Grover

Date: may 6, 2015  FcS no.: 4223
place: new Delhi  cp no.: 3850
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1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of the projects or programmes proposed to be 
undertaken and reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programmes 

 in accordance with the provisions of the companies act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, the board of Directors of the 
company have, on the recommendation of the cSr committee, adopted a cSr policy for undertaking and monitoring the cSr 
programmes, projects in the areas stated in Schedule vii of act. the policy has been uploaded on the website of the company at 
http://www.triveniturbines.com/key-policies

 During the year under review, cSr initiatives have been made mainly in the areas of healthcare, education and environment 
sustainability.

2. The composition of the CSR Committee: 

(i)  Dr. (mrs) vasantha S. bharucha, chairperson 

(ii) mr. nikhil Sawhney

(iii) mr. tarun Sawhney 

(iv) mr. arun p. mote

3. Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3 financial years: ` 1319.19 million

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of amount): ` 26.38 million

5. Details of CSR activities/projects undertaken during the year:

a) total amount spent / committed to be spent for the financial year: ` 22.40 million

b) amount unspent, if any: ` 3.98 million

Annexure-G
REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES/ INITIATIVES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder]
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c) manner in which the amount spent during financial year is detailed below:

(` in million)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr No CSR project/ activity 

identified 
Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects/
Programmes

1.  Local area/
others- 

2.  Specify the 
state /district 
(Name of the 
District/s, 
State/s 
where 
project/
programme 
was 
undertaken)

Amount outlay 
(budget) project/ 
programme wise

Amount spent 
on the project/ 

programme

Sub-heads:

1.  Direct 
expenditure 
on project/ 
programme,

2. Overheads:

Cumulative 
spend 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent: 
Direct/ through 
implementing 

agency

1. women health 
programme 

preventive 
healthcare

1. other

2. Delhi

5.90 Direct:  1.72

overheads: 0.28

total: 2.00

2.00 through 
implementation 
agency - tirath 
ram Shah 
charitable 
Hospital, Delhi

2. aid/support  to nursing 
School

education 1. other

2. Delhi

2.90 2.00 2.00 through 
implementation 
agency - tirath 
ram Shah 
charitable 
Hospital, Delhi

3.

(a) 
 
 
 
 

(b) 
 

(c)

projects with respect to-

common effluent 
treatment plants 
(cetps) in india; 
challenges, 
opportunities and way 
forward

india water tool 
(watershed evaluation 
tool)

Development and 
implementation of 
training courses 
for operators of 
wastewater treatment 
plants (cepts / etps)

environment 
sustainability

1. other

2. Delhi 4.30 
 
 
 
 

3.50 
 

3.80

4.30 
 
 
 
 

3.50 
 

3.80

4.30 
 
 
 
 

3.50 
 

3.80

through 
implementation 
agency - cii water 
institute, Delhi

 4. providing free, 
nutritious mid-day 
meals to under-
privileged children

eradicating 
hunger, 
poverty and 
malnutrition

1. local area

2. bengaluru

0.40 0.40 0.40 through 
implementation 
agency - akshaya 
patra Foundation
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5

(a) implementation of a 
leadership development 
program called 
“leadership adoption 
program in Schools 
(leapS)

education/ 
Special 
education

1. local area

2. bengaluru

0.50 0.50 0.50 through 
implementation 
agency - people 
pro trainers and 
consultants pvt. 
ltd.

(b) providing education 
to under-privileged 
children at govt. model 
pre-nursery School by 
sponsoring the salary of 
the teachers, books for 
the student and salary 
of the staff. 

1. local area

2. bengaluru

0.11 0.11 0.11 Directly

(c) caring for the 
differently abled 
children

0.30 0.30 0.30 through 
implementation 
agency - aruna 
chetana, 
bangalore

(d) caring for the disabled 
people

0.30 0.30 0.30 through 
implementation 
agency - 
Dharithree trust, 
bangalore

6. welfare of animals animal 
welfare

1. local area

2. bengaluru

0.40 0.40 0.40 through 
implementation 
agency - 
compassion 
unlimited plus 
action (cupa)

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net profit of the last 3 financial years or any part 
thereof, reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report

 as a responsible corporate, the company is cognizant of its responsibility towards society and environment by contributing 
in community welfare programmes. the company has put a structured system in place and partnered with implementing 
agencies of repute with clear cSr objectives in the medium term. the sound foundation of the framework and clear objectives 
will help the company in discharging its cSr obligations in an effective manner.

 the cSr committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of cSr policy, is in compliance with cSr objectives and 
policy of the company.

 Dhruv M. Sawhney Dr. (Mrs) Vasantha S. Bharucha 
 chairman and managing Director chairperson of cSr committee

place: noida (u.p.) 
Date: may 6, 2015
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(A) Conservation Of Energy 

i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

•	 existing Hp lamps for shop floor illumination are 
being replaced with energy efficient leD lamps. 
this will result into power savings of about 
84000 kwH per year.

•	 upS power connection is extended to air 
compressors to ensure uninterrupted supply 
of compressed air to cnc machines in case of 
power failure. this has avoided the need of 
restarting the cycle from the beginning after 
power supply resumption, thereby saving in 
energy of about 2160 kwH/month.

•	 the machining cycle time in high end cnc 
machines is reduced through introduction of 
new tooling and modified process plans. this 
has enabled increase in production of blades 
per unit of power consumed, thereby giving an 
equivalent saving of 7417 kwH/year.

•	 additional rain water harnessing pits have been 
strategically provided to improve ground water 
yield. this has enabled charging of ground water 
table and has improved the yield of bore-wells 
dug in the premises. 

•	 additional energy meters are being installed to 
monitor the energy consumptions in production, 
utilities, administration and general lighting. 
this will provide specific inputs for initiating 
further energy conservation measure in these 
respective areas. 

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate 
sources of energy;

Survey completed to tap the solar energy and utilize 
the same through grid connected system. expected 
potential energy generation is 200kw equivalent to 
310250 units per annum.

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments;

Funds of ` 24 million for purchase and installation of 
grid connected solar power plant has been allocated. 

Annexure-H

(B) Technology absorption –

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption;

 the company has a vibrant in-house r&D department 
which is engaged continually  in the development 
of more robust, compact, cost effective and highly 
efficient turbines to fulfill the requirements of 
the global market. the technology developed is 
extensively validated before commercial use and the 
performance parameters in field are closely monitored 
to make modifications, as may be considered 
necessary. thus, the company has well defined 
processes for development, testing,  field feedback 
and continuous advancement of technology, 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution;

a) in view of indigenous technology and value 
engineering, the company is able to develop 
cost competitive models with much reduced 
carbon footprints so as to provide power 
solutions need of our varied international and 
domestic customers.

b) market penetration and field stabilisation of 
models in higher steam parameter segment 
which is in demand.

c) with modular approach, flexible product 
platform being developed to address customised 
turbine requirements, also resulting in 
optimisation of inventory.

d) extended reaction based turbine platform to 
meet domestic and export market needs.

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year)-

a) the details of technology imported; - not applicable

b) the year of import; - not applicable 
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c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; - not applicable

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; - not applicable

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

Expenditure on R&D (` in million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

a) capital 7.72 30.21

b) recurring  53.94 50.68

c) total 61.66 80.89

d) total r&D expenditure as percentage of turnover 0.99% 1.60%

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo                   (` in million)

Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 2,360.65

Foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows 483.06

For and on behalf of the board of Directors  

place: noida (u.p.)
Date: may 6, 2015

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
chairman & managing Director
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(i) the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, cFo and cS during the Fy 15, ratio of remuneration of each Director 
to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the Fy 15.

(` in million)

Name of Director/KMP and Designation Remuneration for  
FY 15

% increase of 
remuneration in the 

FY 15

Ratio of remuneration 
to Median 

Remuneration

mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney
chairman and managing Director

28.13 14 49.5

mr. nikhil Sawhney
vice chairman and managing Director

27.74 10 48.8

mr. arun prabhakar mote
executive Director

20.39 6 35.9

mr. tarun Sawhney
non executive Director

1.49 27.02 2.61

lt. gen. k. k. Hazari (retd.)
non executive independent Director

1.62 19.56 2.84

mr. Shekhar Datta
non executive independent Director

1.49 33.03 2.61

mr. amal ganguli
non executive independent Director

1.69 34.12 2.96

Dr. (mrs.) vasantha S bharucha*
non executive independent Director

1.81 na 3.17

mr. Deepak Sen
chief Financial officer

  3.58 5 na

mr. rajiv Sawhney
company Secretary

 1.86 20 na

(*) Detail not given as Dr. bharucha was a director only for part of the Fy 14.

note:  the remuneration of the non-executive directors include sitting fees for attending board or committee meetings.

Annexure-I
Particulars of Employees Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014

(ii) the median remuneration of employees during the 

financial year was ` 0.57 million.

(iii) in the financial year, there was an increase of 4.12% in 

the median remuneration of employees.

(iv) there were 630 permanent employees (522 officers 

108 workmen) on the rolls of the company as on 

march 31, 2015.

(v) relationship between average increase in 

remuneration and company’s performance:  

the profitability (pbt) has increased by 33.75% in 

the Fy 15 against a decline of 35.30% in Fy 14. the 

average increase in the remuneration for all employees 

(including kmps) was 10.5% in the current year. the 

overall increase in the remuneration is in line with 

the performance of the company and benchmark 
industry trends.

(vi) the market capitalisation as on march 31, 2015 was 
` 42850 million versus ` 23780 million as on  
march 31, 2014, i.e. an increase of about 80%.

(vii) the price earnings ratio was 47.05 as at 
march 31, 2015 against 34.80 as at march 31, 2014, 
an increase of about 35%.

(viii) the company, after getting listed in october 2011 
pursuant to a Scheme of arrangement duly approved 
by the allahabad High court, has not come out with 
any public offer. 

(ix) the average percentile salary increase of employees 
other than managerial personnel was 4.04% against 
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9.98% in the managerial remuneration. the increase 
of remuneration of managerial and non managerial 
is normal as per industry standard and is reflective of 
challenges to internationalise the products.

(x) comparison of remuneration of each of the key 
managerial personnel (kmp) against the performance 
of the company:

 the increase in the remuneration of each kmp is 
provided in (i) above and the increase is within a range 
of 5% to 20% as against increase in profitability (pbt) 
of the company by 33.75% during the year. 

(xi) the key parameters for any variable component of 
remuneration availed by the directors: 
in accordance with the provisions of the act and the 
approval of the shareholders, the executive Directors 
are entitled to a variable component of salary in the 

form of performance bonus which is approved by 
the board on the recommendation of nomination 
and remuneration committee which is based on  
individual’s performance, management challenges 
and the company’s performance.  

 non-executive and independent directors are entitled 
to commission based on their contribution and the 
performance of the company within the ceilings as 
provided in the act. 

(xii) During the financial year no employee received 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director.

(xiii) it is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid 
during the financial year ended march 31, 2015 is as 
per the nomination and remuneration policy of the 
company. 

For and on behalf of the board of Directors  

place: noida (u.p.)
Date: may 6, 2015

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
chairman & managing Director
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Annexure-K

FORM NO MGT-9

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) cin : l29110up1995plc041834 

ii) registration Date : 27/06/1995

iii) name of the company : triveni turbine limiteD

iv) category / Sub-category of the company :  company limiteD by SHareS / inDian 
non-government company

v) address of the registered office and contact details :  a-44, HoSiery compleX, pHaSe ii 
eXtenSion, noiDa-201305 (u.p.) 
pH. 0120-4748000

vi) whether listed company yes / no : yeS

vii) name, address and contact details of registrar & transfer agents (rta), if any :  m/s alankit aSSignmentS ltD., 
205-208 anarkali compleX, 
JHanDewalan eXtenSion, new 
DelHi-110055 
pHone 42541234, 23541234, 
FaX 42541967

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of main products / 
services

NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the 
Company

1 manufacture  of steam turbines & parts thereof 281-manufacture of general purpose 
machinery

89.38

2. Servicing, operation and maintenance of steam 
turbines.

331-  repair of fabricated metal products, 
machinery and equipment

10.62

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
Sl. No. NAME AND

ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY
CIN/GLN HOLDING/

SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

1. ge triveni ltD., bangalore, inDia u29253ka2010plc053834    Subsidiary 50% +1 SHare 2 (87)

2. triveni turbineS europe private 
limiteD, uk 

    Foreign company Subsidiary 100.00 2 (87)

3. triveni turbineS Dmcc, Dubai, uae     Foreign company Subsidiary 100.00 2 (87)

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]
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IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
shareholder

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
% Change 
during the 

year    Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total 

% of Total 
Shares

(A) Promoter                

(1) Indian                

(a) individuals/ HuF 77992116 0 77992116 23.638 71674116 0 71674116 21.721 -1.917

(b)
central 
government 

               

(c)
State 
government(s)

(d) bodies corporate 159330417 0 159330417 48.290 159330417 0 159330417 48.286 -0.004

(e) bank /Fi                

(f) any other                

  Sub-Total (A)(1) 237322533 0 237322533 71.928 231004533 0 231004533 70.007 -1.921

(2) Foreign                

(a) nri - individuals                

(b) other - individuals

(c) bodies corporate                

(d) bank /Fi                 

(e) any other                

  Sub-Total (A)(2)                  

 

Total 
Shareholding of 
Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

237322533 0 237322533 71.928 231004533 0 231004533 70.007 -1.921

(B) Public shareholding 

(1) Institutions  

(a) mutual Funds/uti 15291752 0 15291752 4.635 12748158 0 12748158 3.864 -0.771

(b) bank / Fi 0 0 0 0.000 14321 0 14321 0.004 0.004

(c)
central 
government 

      

(d)
State 
government(s)

(e)
venture capital 
Funds 

      

(f)
insurance 
companies

      

(g) Fiis 56875462 0 56875462 17.238 60749521 0 60749521 18.411 1.173

(h)
Foreign venture 
capital investors

      

(i) any other (specify)       

(j)
Foreign portfolio 
investor (corporate)

    2815615 0 2815615 0.853 0.853

  Sub-Total (B)(1) 72167214 0 72167214 21.873 76327615 0 76327615 23.132 1.259
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(2) Non-institutions          

(a) bodies corporate

i) indian 4157676 1 4157677 1.260 5601931 1 5601932 1.698 0.438

ii) overseas

(b) individuals -          

 

i. individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital up to 
`1 lakh.*

9345284 268686 9613970 2.914 8655902 191093 8846995 2.681 -0.233

ii. individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of 
`1 lakh.

4990217 0 4990217 1.512 6494481 0 6494481 1.968 0.456

(c) any other (specify)          

 

[i] nri 1255753 50 1255803 0.381 1259625 50 1259675 0.382 0.001

[ii] HuF 283746 0 283746 0.086 285289 0 285289 0.086 0.000

[iii] clearing 
member

144390
0 144390

0.044 133770 0
133770 0.041

-0.003

[iv] trust 9000 0 9000 0.003 17860 0 17860 0.005 0.002

Sub-total (b)(2)  20186066 268737 20454803 6.199 22448858 191144 22640002 6.861 0.662

 
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

92353280 268737 92622017 28.072 98776473 191144 98967617 29.993 1.921

(C)
Shares held by 
Custodians for 
GDRs & ADRs 

         

 
GRAND TOTAL  
(A)+(B)+(C)

329675813 268737 329944550 100 329781006 191144 329972150 100.000 0.000

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. No.
Shareholders’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year
Shares holding at the end of the year % change 

in the 
shareholding 

during the 
year

 

  No. of Shares  % of total 
shares of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledge / 

encumbered 
of total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

 % of total 
shares of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledge / 

encumbered 
of total 
shares

(a) Individual/Hindu Undivided Family  

1 mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney 28124645 8.524 0 24924645 7.553 0 -0.971

2 mrs. rati Sawhney 16824914 5.099 0 13706914 4.154 0 -0.945

3 mr. tarun Sawhney 14266775 4.324 0 14266775 4.324 0 0.000

4 mr. nikhil Sawhney 15071557 4.568 0 15071557 4.567 0 -0.001

5 manmohan Sawhney (HuF) 3679225 1.115 0 3679225 1.115 0 0.000

6 mrs. tarana Sawhney 25000 0.008 0 25000 0.008 0 0.000

  Total (a) 77992116 23.638 0 71674116 21.721 0 -1.917
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(b) Bodies Corporate  

1
umananda trade & Finance 
limited

20157589 6.109 0 20157589 6.109 0 0.000

2
triveni engineering & 
industries ltd.

72000000 21.822 0 72000000 21.820 0 -0.002

3
tarnik investments & trading 
limited.

18680527 5.662 0 18680527 5.661 0 -0.001

4
Subhadra trade & Finance 
limited

16307375 4.942 0 16307375 4.942 0 0.000

5 Dhankari investments limited 14049045 4.258 0 14049045 4.258 0 0.000

6 kameni upaskar limited 10328525 3.130 0 10328525 3.130 0 0.000

7
toFSl trading & investments 
ltd. 

5052351 1.531 0 5052351 1.531 0 0.000

8
the engineering & technical 
Services limited

1683755 0.510 0 1683755 0.510 0 0.000

9 accurate traders limited 648500 0.197 0 648500 0.197 0 0.000

10 carvanserai limited 422750 0.128 0 422750 0.128 0 0.000

Total (b) 159330417 48.290 0 159330417 48.286 0 -0.004

TOTAL(a+b) 237322533 71.928 0 231004533 70.007 0 -1.921

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 
Sl. 
No.

Shareholder's 
Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Date Increase / 
Decrease in the 
shareholding

Reason Cumulative shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
1 mr. Dhruv m. 

Sawhney
28124645 8.524 06.06.2014 -3200000 transfer 24924645 7.553

2 mrs. rati Sawhney 16824914 5.099 06.06.2014 -3118000 transfer 13706914 4.154

Note: During the year there is no change in other promoters’ shareholding, except as stated above.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl. No. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 
Date Increase / 

Decrease in the 
shareholding 

Reason Cumulative shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

1 nalanda india Fund 
limited

25788000 7.815  - 0  - 25788000 7.815

2 amansa Holding pvt. ltd. 14393750 4.362 30.09.2014 2031 transfer 14395781 4.363

      31.10.2014 246325 transfer 14642106 4.437

        14.11.2014 63844 transfer 14705950 4.457

3 nalanda india equity Fund 
limited

9802350 2.971  - 0  - 9802350 2.971

4 icici prudential value 
Discovery Fund

4148943 1.257  - 0  - 4148943 1.257
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Sl. No. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Date Increase / 
Decrease in the 
shareholding 

Reason Cumulative shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

5* Sbi magnum maynum 
global Fund

3300000 1.000 13.06.2014 -986110 transfer 2313890 0.701

      25.07.2014 -226548 transfer 2087342 0.633

      01.08.2014 -444225 transfer 1643117 0.498

      12.09.2014 -257875 transfer 1385242 0.420

      31.10.2014 -1144154 transfer 241088 0.073

        07.11.2014 -241088 transfer 0 0.000

6 veritable l.p. a/c vemF 
-a l.p.

2019864 0.612  - 0  - 2019864 0.612

7 akash bhanshali 2000000 0.606 31.10.2014 750000 transfer 2750000 0.833

8 DSp blackrock micro cap 
Fund

1466500 0.444 25.04.2014 -2635 transfer 1463865 0.444

      02.05.2014 -650 transfer 1463215 0.443

      09.05.2014 -12273 transfer 1450942 0.440

      16.05.2014 -298100 transfer 1152842 0.349

      23.05.2014 -77136 transfer 1075706 0.326

      30.05.2014 -17802 transfer 1057904 0.321

      22.08.2014 534240 transfer 1592144 0.483

      18.09.2014 242180 transfer 1834324 0.556

9* ashmore Sicav indian 
Small cap equity Fund

1448643 0.439 06.06.2014 -99615 transfer 1349028 0.409

      13.06.2014 -1349028 transfer 0 0.000

10* icici prudential 
infrastructure Fund

1400000 0.424 04.04.2014 13696 transfer 1413696 0.428

      11.04.2014 14524 transfer 1428220 0.433

      18.04.2014 858 transfer 1429078 0.433

      25.04.2014 3514 transfer 1432592 0.434

      16.05.2014 21176 transfer 1453768 0.441

      23.05.2014 43737 transfer 1497505 0.454
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Sl. No. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Date Increase / 
Decrease in the 
shareholding 

Reason Cumulative shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

11** nomura Singapore limited 0 0 23.05.2014 230100 transfer 230100 0.070

      30.05.2014 198410 transfer 428510 0.130

      06.06.2014 108607 transfer 537117 0.163

      13.06.2014 340058 transfer 877175 0.266

      04.07.2014 129912 transfer 1007087 0.305

      11.07.2014 66595 transfer 1073682 0.325

      18.07.2014 16793 transfer 1090475 0.330

      08.08.2014 43967 transfer 1134442 0.344

      05.09.2014 91380 transfer 1225822 0.371

      12.09.2014 327782 transfer 1553604 0.471

      10.10.2014 12350 transfer 1565954 0.475

      07.11.2014 19000 transfer 1584954 0.480

      14.11.2014 47535 transfer 1632489 0.495

      06.02.2015 80527 transfer 1713016 0.519

      13.02.2015 246500 transfer 1959516 0.594

      20.02.2015 313733 transfer 2273249 0.689

      27.02.2015 164303 transfer 2437552 0.739

      06.03.2015 168000 transfer 2605552 0.790

      13.03.2015 207251 transfer 2812803 0.852

      20.03.2015 180191 transfer 2992994 0.907

      27.03.2015 53000 transfer 3045994 0.923

12** tata aia life insurance 
co. ltd.-whole life mid 
cap equity Fund-uliF 009 
04/01/07 wle 110

0 0 13.06.2014 2740000 transfer 2740000 0.830

      31.03.2015 -41216 transfer 2698784 0.818

13** vanaja Sundar iyer 499950 0.152 18.04.2014 50 transfer 500000 0.152

      11.07.2014 66329 transfer 566329 0.172

      18.07.2014 50061 transfer 616390 0.187

      25.07.2014 206065 transfer 822455 0.249

      01.08.2014 23153 transfer 845608 0.256

      04.08.2014 354392 transfer 1200000 0.364

      08.08.2014 42372 transfer 1242372 0.377

      22.08.2014 7628 transfer 1250000 0.379

      21.11.2014 250000 transfer 1500000 0.455

      28.11.2014 151413 transfer 1651413 0.500

      05.12.2014 9499 transfer 1660912 0.503

      12.12.2014 134292 transfer 1795204 0.544

        19.12.2014 4796 transfer 1800000 0.546

*ceased to be in the list of top 10 shareholders as on 31.3.2015. However, the same has been reflected above since the 
shareholder was one of the top 10 shareholders as on 01.04.2014.

**not in the list of top 10 shareholders as on 01.04.2014. However, the same has been reflected above since the shareholder was 
one of the top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2015.
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(v). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Date Increase / 
Decrease in the 
shareholding

Reason Cumulative shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company
A. DIRECTORS

1 mr. Dhruv m. Sawhney 28124645 8.524 06.06.2014 -3200000 transfer 24924645 7.553

2 mr. tarun Sawhney 14266775 4.324  - 0  - 14266775 4.324

3 mr. nikhil Sawhney 15071557 4.568  - 0  - 15071557 4.567

4 mr. arun prabhakar 
mote

64400 0.020 07.05.2014 27600 allotment* 92000 0.028

      04.06.2014 -6000 transfer 86000 0.026

      05.06.2014 -5000 transfer 81000 0.025

      06.06.2014 -3000 transfer 78000 0.024

      13.06.2014 -2000 transfer 76000 0.023

        09.09.2014 -4000 transfer 72000 0.022

5 lt. gen. k.k. Hazari 
(retd.)

0 0.000  - 
0

 - 0 0.000

6 mr. Shekhar Datta 10000 0.003  - 0  - 10000 0.003

7 mr. amal ganguli 0 0.000  - 0  - 0 0.000

8 Dr. (mrs.) vasantha S. 
bharucha

0 0.000  - 
0

 - 0 0.000

B. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

9 mr. Deepak k Sen 0 0.000  - 0  - 0 0.000

10 mr. rajiv Sawhney 35475 0.011  - 0  - 35475 0.011

*Allotted on exercise of stock options under TTL NSOS.

V.  INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
 (` In million)

Secured Loans
excluding

deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 
year 1.4.2014

i)  principal amount 77.75 - - 77.75

ii)  interest due but not paid - - - -

iii)  interest accrued but not due         0.07 - -  0.07

total (i+ii+iii) 77.82 - - 77.82

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

addition 3.84 - - 3.84

reduction 66.56 - - 66.56

net change (62.72) - - (62.72)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i)  principal amount 15.03 - - 15.03

ii)  interest due but not paid - - - -

iii)  interest accrued but not due 0.06 - - 0.06

Total (i+ii+iii) 15.09 - - 15.09
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(` In million)

Sl.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total

Amount
Mr. Dhruv M. 

Sawhney 
Mr. Nikhil 
Sawhney 

Mr. Arun 
Prabhakar 

Mote

1

.

gross salary

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
income-tax act, 1961

26.18 20.63 15.71 62.52

(b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2) income-tax act, 1961 0.10 0.77 0.11 0.98

(c)  profits in lieu of salary under17(3) income-tax act, 1961 --- --- --- ---

2. Stock option --- --- 0.54 0.54

3. Sweat equity --- --- --- ---

4. commission

- as % of profit

- others (performance bonus) --- 3.10 2.30 5.40

5. others (retiral benefits) 1.85 3.24 1.73 6.82

Total (A) 28.13 27.74 20.39 76.26
ceiling as per the act ` 143.40 million (being 10% of the net profits of the company 

calculated as per Section 198 of the companies act, 2013).

B.  Remuneration to other directors: 
(` In million)

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Fee for 
attending 

board/ 
committee 

meetings

Commission Others, please 
specify

Total 
Amount

1. Independent Directors

lt. gen. k.k. Hazari (retd.) 0.42 1.20 -- 1.62

mr. amal ganguli 0.49 1.20 -- 1.69

mr. Shekhar Datta 0.29 1.20 -- 1.49

Dr. (mrs.) vasantha S. bharucha 0.61 1.20 -- 1.81

Total (1) 1.81 4.80 -- 6.61

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

mr. tarun Sawhney 0.29 1.20 -- 1.49

Total (2) 0.29 1.20 -- 1.49

Total (B) = (1+2) 2.10 6.00 8.10

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 84.36

overall ceiling as per the act ` 14.34 million (being 1% of the net profits of the company calculated as per 
Section 198 of the companies act, 2013).
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C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER/WTD
 (` In million)

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

ceo               cFo cS total

1 gross salary

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
income-tax act, 1961 na 3.09 1.59 4.68

(b)  value of perquisites u/s 17(2) income-tax act, 1961
na 0.17 0.15 0.32

(c)  profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) income-tax 
act, 1961 na nil nil nil

2 Stock option na nil nil nil

3 Sweat equity na nil nil nil

4 commission
- as % of profit
- others

na
na

nil
nil

nil
nil

nil
nil

5 others (retiral benefits) na 0.32 0.12 0.44

Total NA 3.58 1.86 5.44

VII.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty /

Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
[RD/
NCLT

/
COURT]

Appeal
made,
if any
(give

Details)

A. COMPANY

penalty

nonepunishment

compounding

B. DIRECTORS

penalty

nonepunishment

compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

penalty

nonepunishment

compounding
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Annexure-L
Nomination and Remuneration Policy
Introduction:
in pursuance of the company’s policy to consider human 
resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable remuneration 
to all Directors, key managerial personnel (kmp) and employees 
of the company, to harmonize the aspirations of human 
resources consistent with the goals of the company and in 
terms of the provisions of the companies act, 2013 and the 
listing agreement as amended from time to time, this policy 
on nomination and remuneration of Directors, kmp and 
Senior management has been formulated by the nomination 
and remuneration committee and approved by the board of 
Directors on august 11, 2014.

Objective and purpose of the Policy:
•	 To	lay	down	criteria	and	terms	and	conditions	with	regard	to	

identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors 
(executive and non-executive) and persons who may be 
appointed in Senior management and key managerial 
positions and to determine their remuneration.

•	 To	determine	remuneration	based	on	the	complexity	and	
challenges of job, company’s size and financial position 
and trends and practices on remuneration prevailing in peer 
companies in the industry or sector wherein the company 
operates.

•	 To	carry	out	evaluation	of	the	performance	of	Directors,	as	
well as key managerial and Senior management personnel.

•	 To	provide	them	reward	linked	directly	to	their	effort,	
performance, dedication  and achievement relating to the 
company’s operations.

•	 To	retain,	motivate	and	promote	talent	and	to	ensure	long	
term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create 
competitive advantage.

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee:

the ‘nomination and remuneration committee’ comprises of 
following Directors:

(i) mr. Shekhar Datta – chairman

(ii) lt. gen k.k. Hazari (retd.)

(iii) mr. amal ganguli 

(iv) mr. tarun Sawhney

the board has the power to reconstitute the committee 
consistent with the company’s policy and applicable statutory 
requirement.

Definitions:
•	 ‘Board	of	Directors’	or	‘Board’	means	the	collective	body	of	

the Directors of the company.

•	 ‘Directors’	means	a	Director	appointed	to	the	Board	of	the	
company.

•	 ‘Committee’	means	‘Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee’ of the company as constituted or 
reconstituted by the board from time to time.

•	 ‘Company’	means Triveni Turbine Limited.

•	 ‘Independent	Director’	means	a	Director	referred	to	in	
Section 149 (6) of the companies act, 2013.

•	 ‘Key	Managerial	Personnel’	means-

(i) chairman & managing Director, or vice chairman & 
managing Director, or whole-time Director, if any

(ii) chief Financial officer;

(iii) company Secretary; and

(iv) Such other officer as may be prescribed under the 
applicable statutory provisions / regulations.

•		 ‘Senior	 Management’	 means	 personnel	 of	 the	 Company,	
who are the members of core management team and 
one level below the executive Director including corporate 
Functional Heads and business Heads of the company.

unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions 
used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in the 
companies act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall 
have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

Applicability
the policy is applicable to the Directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees of triveni turbine limited 
(company).

General
this policy is divided in three parts:

 -  part – a covers the matters to be dealt with and 
recommended by the committee to the board;

 - part – b covers the appointment and nomination; and

 - part – c covers remuneration and perquisites etc.

 the key features of this company’s policy shall be included 
in the board’s report.
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Part – A
Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to 
the Board by the Committee:

The Committee shall:
•	 Formulate	the	criteria	for	determining	qualifications,	

positive attributes and independence of a director.

•	 Identify	persons	who	are	qualified	to	become	Director	and	
the persons who may be appointed in key managerial 
and Senior management positions in accordance with the 
criteria laid down in this policy.

•	 Recommend	to	the	Board,	appointment	and	removal	of	
Director and Senior management personnel.

Part – B
Policy for appointment and removal of Directors, Senior 
Management Personnel

•	 Appointment criteria and qualifications

1. the committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, 
qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 
appointment as Director and at Senior management level 
and recommend to the board his / her appointment. 
However, the committee may delegate to the managing 
Director, executive Director the power to identify, appoint 
and remove the Senior management personnel.

2. a person should possess adequate qualification, expertise 
and experience for the position he / she is considered for 
appointment. the committee has discretion to decide 
whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed 
by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned 
position.

3. the company shall only appoint or continue the 
employment of any person as managing Director or 
whole-time Director beyond the age of seventy years if 
the contribution of the concerned individual is invaluable 
to the company and his vacancy may be detrimental to 
the interest of the company. provided that the term of 
the person holding this position may be extended beyond 
the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders 
by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory 
statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating 
the justification for extension of appointment beyond 
seventy years.

•	 Term	/	Tenure:

1. Managing/Whole-time Director
the company shall appoint or re-appoint any person 
as its executive chairman, managing Director or 
whole-time Director or executive Director for a term 
not exceeding five years at a time. no  
re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year 
before the expiry of term.

2. Independent Director
an independent Director shall hold office for such 
term upto a maximum of five consecutive years on 
the board of the company, as may be recommended 
by the committee and approved by the board and 
Shareholders and will be eligible for re-appointment 
on passing of a special resolution by the company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the board’s 
report.

no independent Director shall hold office for more 
than two consecutive terms, but such independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry 
of three years of ceasing to become an independent 
Director. provided that an independent Director 
shall not, during the said period of three years, be 
appointed in or be associated with the company 
in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 
However, if a person who has already served as an 
independent Director for 5 years or more in the 
company as on 1st october, 2014 or such other 
date as may be determined by the committee as per 
regulatory requirement, he / she shall be eligible for 
appointment for one more term up to 5 years only.

at the time of appointment of independent Director, 
it should be ensured that number of his directorship 
is restricted to seven listed companies as an 
independent Director and three listed companies as 
an independent Director in case such person is serving 
as a whole-time Director of a listed company.

•	 Evaluation:
the committee shall carry out evaluation of performance 
of every Director at regular intervals based on the indicators 
provided in the policy. Similarly, the chairman and 
managing Director, vice chairman and managing Director 
and the executive Directors shall evaluate the Senior 
management personnel (including kmps other than the 
Directors of the company) considering the 
competencies/indicators provided in the policy.

•	 Removal	of	Directors
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the 
companies act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any 
other applicable act, rules and regulations, the committee 
may recommend, to the board with reasons recorded in 
writing, removal of a Director, subject to the provisions and 
compliance of the said act, rules and regulations.

•	 Retirement:
the whole time Director and Senior management 
personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of 
the companies act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the 
company. the board will have the discretion to retain 
the Director Senior management personnel in the same 
position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining 
the retirement age, for the benefit of the company.
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Part – C
Policy relating to the remuneration for the Managing 
Director/Whole-time Director, KMP, Senior Management 
Personnel and other employees

the remuneration to be paid to the Directors, kmps, Senior 
management and other employees will be decided taking into 
consideration the following key factors/attributes:

•	 Strategic	vision	for	the	growth	of	business	and	alignment	
with the company’s goal,

•	 Competence,	experience	and	performance,

•	 Leadership	and	team	building	qualities,

•	 Innovative	and	creative	thinking,

•	 Market	compensation	levels	for	similar	profile	

Remuneration Policy

(a) Executive Directors
the remuneration of the executive Directors will be 
recommended by the nomination and remuneration 
committee to the board of Directors and after approval 
by the board the same will be put up for the shareholders 
approval.

the evaluation of the executive Directors will be made 
by the nrc based on the following attributes which  will 
in addition to all attributes applicable to non-executive 
directors as mentioned below:

•	 assessment of leadership and direction provided to 
the business

•	 assessment of performance or functions directly 
under their responsibility and control

•	 assessment of managing business challenges and 
related risks

•	 assessment of policies and efforts in promoting and 
expanding the business

•	 people development processes and organisational 
values

(b) Non Executive Directors
non-executive Directors will be paid commission as 
approved by the board within the limits approved by 
the shareholders of the company. the amount of such 
commission taken together for all the non executive 
Directors, will not exceed 1% of the net profits of the 
company in any financial year calculated as per the 
requirements of Section 198 of the companies act 2013.

the said commission shall be decided each year by the 
board of Directors of the company and distributed 
amongst the non executive Directors based on their 
evaluation and the following attributes

•	 Attendance	in	the	Board	/	Committee	meetings

•	 Inputs	and	contribution	made	in	the	meetings

•	 Creativity	and	idea	generation

•	 Proactive,	positive	and	strategic	thinking

•	 Understanding	of	Company’s	business

•	 Time	spent	on	operational	and	strategic	matters	other	
than the meetings.

the company shall reimburse the travelling, hotel and 
other out of pocket expenses incurred by the Directors for 
attending the meetings and for other work on behalf of 
the company.

(c) Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management 
and other employees
the company’s remuneration policy of key managerial 
personnel (other than executive Directors covered above), 
Senior management and other employees is driven by 
their success and performance of the company and other 
attributes mentioned below. the company endeavours 
to attract, retain, develop and motivate high performance 
workforce. the company follows a compensation mix of 
fixed pay, performance based variable pay, benefits and 
perquisites. the performance of the individuals is measured 
through performance appraisal process. the company 
will ensure that level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate all 
employees to contribute to their potential and in turn run 
the company successfully.

the Stock options may be used as an instrument to actively 
engage senior management to achieve the objectives of 
the company, to reward them for their performance, to 
motivate and retain them.

the parameters of the assessment of the senior 
management will be the same as applicable to the 
executive directors but in the case of corporate functional 
heads, JDs may be different based on the uniqueness and 
domain responsibility of the function. the company has 
institutionalised a comprehensive pmS which will continue 
to be applicable to the senior management. the applicable 
competencies are:

•	 Driving and managing change

•	 business acumen

•	 capability building

•	 managing critical partnership

•	 Decision making

•	 excellence orientation

•	 customer Focus

•	 resource management

•	 Domain area of responsibility

•	 benchmarks of similar positions in similar comparable 
industries

•	 Functional expertise

•	 commitment and ownership
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To the Members of Triveni Turbine Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Triveni Turbine Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, in which are 
incorporated the returns for the year ended on that date audited 
by the Branch Auditors of the Company’s unit at Bangalore.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone 
Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into 
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the 
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

Independent Auditor's Report

Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 

preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 

view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 

by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

standalone financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion,  and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information required by 

this Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 

in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2015 and its profit and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Act, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters 

specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.
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2) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our  knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
it appears from our examination of those books 
& proper returns adequate for the purpose of our 
audit have been received from Bangalore unit of the 
Company not visited by us ;

c) the report on the accounts of the Bangalore unit of 
the company audited under sub-section (8) of section 
143 by the branch auditors have been sent to us and 
have been properly dealt with by us  in preparing this 
report.

d) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss 
and the cash flow statement dealt with in this report 
are in agreement with the books of account and with 
the returns received from the Bangalore unit of the 
Company not visited by us;

e) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

f) on the basis of written representations received from 
the directors as on March 31, 2015 and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of 
the Act;

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i) the Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigation on its financial position in its 
financial statements. Refer note no. 31 of the 
financial statements;

ii) the Company did not have any long term 
contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii) there were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

For J. C. Bhalla and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRn : 001111n

 Sudhir Mallick                          
Place : noida (u.P.) Partner        
Date : May 6, 2015 Membership no. 80051
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Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditors’ Report 
of even date under the heading “Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements” to the members of Triveni Turbine 
Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the 
year ended March 31, 2015.

We report that:

1) a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets. 

b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by 
the management during the year. As explained to 
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification as compared to the book records.  In our 
opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the company and nature 
of its activities.

2) a)  Inventories have been physically verified by the 
Management to the extent practicable at reasonable 
intervals during the year. In our opinion the frequency 
of verification is reasonable.

b) According to information given to us, the procedures 
for physical verification of the inventories followed 
by the management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the Company and nature of its 
business. 

c) The Company is maintaining proper records of 
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification as compared to the book records were not 
material having regard to the size and nature of the 
operations of the Company and have been properly 
adjusted in the books of account. 

3) The Company has not given any loan, secured or unsecured 
to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register 

Annexure to Independent Auditor's Report 

maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly 
paragraphs 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2015  are not applicable to the Company. 

4) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, and having regard to the unique and specialized 
nature of the certain items involved, there are adequate 
internal control procedures commensurate with the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business for the 
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of 
goods and services.  During the course of our audit, we 
have not observed any continuing failure to correct major 
weaknesses in internal control system.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public under the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act 
or other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed 
there under.

6) The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the 
Act for any of the products manufactured and services 
rendered by the Company for the year.

7) a)  The Company is generally regular in depositing 
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service 
tax, customs duty,  excise duty, value added tax, cess 
and other statutory dues applicable to it.   According  
to the information and explanations given to us, no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid 
dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2015 for a period  
of  more  than  six  months  from  the  date  they  
became  payable. 

 b)  According to the information and explanations given to 
us, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax, customs 
duty, value added tax and cess which have not been 
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deposited on account of any dispute. Disputed income tax, service tax and excise duty which have not been deposited on 
account of matters pending before appropriate authorities is as under:

S.
No.

Name of the
Statue

Nature of
Dues

Amount
(` in Million)

Amount
Paid

(` in Million)

Period to which 
it relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

1) Income-tax Act 
1961

Income-tax 4.58 - Fy 2010-11 Commissioner of Income-tax 
(Appeals)

2) Income-tax Act 
1961

Income-tax 0.25 - Fy 2011-12 Commissioner of Income-tax 
(Appeals)

3) Finance 
Act 1994 

Service Tax
Interest
Penalty

3.25
3.14
3.25

3.57 Fy 2008-09 to
Fy 2011-12

CeSTAT, Bangalore

4) Finance Act 
1994

Service Tax
Interest
Penalty 

10.32
12.67
10.32

1.27 Fy 2007-08 to 
Fy 2011-12

CeSTAT, Bangalore

5) Central excise
Act, 1944

excise Duty
Interest
Penalty

2.16
2.47
2.16

0.09 Fy 2007-08 CeSTAT, Bangalore

c) There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor education and Protection 
Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956(1 of 1956) and rules made 
thereunder. 

8) The  Company  has  no accumulated losses as at 
March 31, 2015 and has not incurred any cash losses in 
the financial year covered by our audit and immediately 
preceding financial year.

9) Based on our audit procedures and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of dues to banks during the year. The company has no 
outstanding dues in respect of financial institutions or 
debenture holders.

10) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 
by others from banks or financial institutions. 

11) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the 
purpose for which they were raised. 

12) During the course of our examination of the books of 
accounts and records carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices and  according to 
the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on 
or by the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year nor have we been informed of such case by the 
management.

For J.C. Bhalla and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRn : 001111n

Sudhir Mallick
Place : noida (u.P.)    Partner        
Date : May 6, 2015 Membership no.80051
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Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March 2015

(`  In Million)

Particulars Note No.  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
1. Shareholder's Funds
 Share capital 2  329.97  329.94 
 Reserves and surplus 3  2,026.07  1,481.83 

 2,356.04  1,811.77 
2. Non-current liabilities
 Long-term borrowings 4  5.09  5.16 
 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5  91.28  96.43 
 Other long-term liabilities 6  -    8.06 
 Long-term provisions 7  44.35  33.72 

 140.72  143.37 
3. Current liabilities
 Short-term borrowings 8  6.60  69.19 
 Trade payables 9  1,120.47  1,287.97 
 Other current liabilities 10  1,072.21  914.68 
 Short-term provisions 7  404.64  400.51 

 2,603.92  2,672.35 
TOTAL  5,100.68  4,627.49 

II ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
 Fixed assets
 (i) Tangible assets 11  1,291.71  1,017.50 
 (ii) Intangible assets 12  44.57  58.88 
 (iii) Capital work-in-progress  61.03  2.64 

 1,397.31  1,079.02 
 non-current investments 13  84.67  80.00 
 Long-term loans and advances 14  106.85  511.47 
 Other non-current assets 19  169.43  114.81 

 1,758.26  1,785.30 
2. Current assets
 Current investments 15  60.00  -   
 Inventories 16  1,187.26  1,113.85 
 Trade receivables 17  1,533.93  1,057.43 
 Cash and bank balances 18  40.29  6.52 
 Short-term loans and advances 14  389.36  213.26 
 Other current assets 19  131.58  451.13 

 3,342.42  2,842.19 
TOTAL  5,100.68  4,627.49 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying note nos.1 to 51 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of  
J. C. Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership no. 80051

Deepak Kumar Sen
General Manager & CFO

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
Company Secretary

Amal Ganguli 
Director & Chairman Audit Committee

Place : noida (u.P.)
Date : May 6, 2015
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As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of  
J. C. Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership no. 80051

Deepak Kumar Sen
General Manager & CFO

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
Company Secretary

Amal Ganguli 
Director & Chairman Audit Committee

Place : noida (u.P.)
Date : May 6, 2015

(` in Million)

Particulars Note No.  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Continuing operations
INCOME
Revenue from operations (gross) 20  6,446.30  5,256.89 

Less : excise duty  191.08  174.23 

Revenue from operations (net)  6,255.22  5,082.66 
Other Income 21  282.55  83.72 

Total revenue   6,537.77  5,166.38 
EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 22  3,587.70  3,068.44 

Decrease / (Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 23  59.75  (293.15)

employee benefit expenses 24  600.91  567.01 

Other expenses 25  754.34  675.88 

Total  5,002.70  4,018.18 
Earnings before exceptional item, extraordinary item, interest, tax, 
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

 1,535.07  1,148.20 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 26  145.04  128.60 

Finance costs 27  6.38  5.99 

Profit before exceptional item,extraordinary item and tax  1,383.65  1,013.61 
exceptional item 28  27.98  -   

Profit before extraordinary item and tax  1,355.67  1,013.61 
extraordinary item  -    -   

Profit before tax  1,355.67  1,013.61 
Tax expense 29  444.83  329.09 

Profit after tax  910.84  684.52 
earning per equity share of ` 1/ each 30

 Basic (in ` ) 2.76 2.07

 Diluted (in ` ) 2.76 2.07

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying note nos.1 to 51 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Statement of Profit and Loss  
for the year ended 31st March 2015



78

(`  in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax  1,355.67  1,013.61 

non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation / amortisation  145.04  128.60 

Loss on sale of fixed assets  0.76  3.72 

net gain on sale of current investments  (7.45)  (11.36)

Interest expense  16.55  5.99 

Interest income  (0.20)  (2.05)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,510.37  1,138.51 
Movements in working capital :

Change in Liabilities  (26.61)  201.92 

Change in Trade Receivables  (531.10)  58.55 

Change in Inventories  (73.42)  (448.74)

Change in Loans and Advances  (142.15)  (53.58)

Change in Other Current Assets  319.55  (304.19)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  1,056.64  592.47 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (462.16)  (301.80)

Corporate Social Responsibility payment  (17.61)  -   

Net cash flow from / (used in ) operating activities (A)  576.87  290.67 
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets  (111.03)  (380.02)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  1.11  0.28 

Purchase of non-current investments  (4.67)  -   

Purchase of current investments  (1,615.00)  (1,120.00)

Proceeds from sale / maturity of current investments  1,562.45  1,181.36 

Bank deposits (having original  maturity of more than three months)  -    6.61 

Interest received  0.20  2.08 

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)  (166.94)  (309.69)

Cash Flow Statement  
for the year ended 31st March 2015
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Cash Flow Statement  
for the year ended 31st March 2015

(`  in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital  1.44  3.35 

Redemption of preference share capital  -    (28.00)

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  3.84  4.76 

Repayment of long-term borrowings  (3.98)  (4.28)

Increase / (Decrease) in of short-term borrowings  (62.59)  69.19 

Interest paid  (6.38)  (5.99)

Dividend paid on equity shares  (263.81)  (249.79)

Tax on equity dividend paid  (44.86)  (42.49)

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)  (376.34)  (253.25)

net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C)  33.59  (272.27)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  5.91  278.18 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  39.50  5.91 

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of  
J. C. Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership no. 80051

Deepak Kumar Sen
General Manager & CFO

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
Company Secretary

Amal Ganguli 
Director & Chairman Audit Committee

Place : noida (u.P.)
Date : May 6, 2015
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Preparation
 The financial statements of the Company have been 

prepared as a going concern on an accrual basis 
of accounting under the historical cost convention 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in India. The financial statements comply in 
all material respects with the applicable accounting 
standards notified under the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) in accordance 
with  section 133  of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current 
or non-current as per the criteria set out in Schedule III 
of the Companies Act, 2013.  In line with the normal 
operating cycle of the main product, i.e., manufacture 
and supply of turbine packages, the Company has 
considered a period of 12 months for the purpose of 
determination of classification between current and 
non-current assets and liabilities.

b) Use of Estimates
The presentation of financial statements requires 
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Differences between the actual results and estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the results are 
known/materialise.

c) Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less 
accumulated depreciation. Cost includes taxes, duties 
(excluding excise Duty and vAT for which CenvAT/
vAT credit is available), freight and other incidental 
expenses relating to acquisition and installation of 
such fixed assets.

d) Recognition of Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The 
following specific recognition criteria are applied for 
revenue recognition:

i) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised 
when all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have been passed to 
the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. 
The Company collects sales taxes and/ or value 
added taxes (vAT) on behalf of the government 
and therefore, these are not economic benefits 

Notes to Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2015

flowing to the Company and accordingly they 
are excluded from revenue. excise duty deducted 
from revenue (gross) is the amount that is 
included in the revenue (gross).

ii) In contracts involving the rendering of services, 
revenue is recognised as and when the services 
are rendered. The Company collects service tax 
on behalf of the government and therefore, 
it is not an economic benefit flowing to the 
Company and accordingly it is excluded from 
revenue. 

iii) Revenue from construction contracts is 
recognised on the percentage of completion 
method, measured  by the proportion that 
contract costs incurred for work performed till 
the reporting date bear to the estimated total 
contract cost. Contract cost for this purpose 
includes:

a) Costs that relate directly to the specific 
contract;

b) Costs that are attributable to contract 
activity in general and can be allocated to 
the contract; and

c) Such other costs as are specifically 
chargeable to the customer under the terms 
of the contract.

   Foreseeable losses, if any, are provided for 
immediately.

iv) Income and  expenditure  relating to the prior   
period  and prepaid  expenses  which  do   not 
exceed ` 10,000/- in each case, are treated as 
income/expenditure of the current year.

e) Foreign Currency Transactions
i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies 

are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the 
dates of the transactions.

ii) Foreign currency monetary items (including 
forward contracts) are translated at rates 
prevailing at the reporting date. exchange 
differences arising on settlement of transactions 
and translation of monetary items (including 
forward contracts) are recognised as income or 
expense in the year in which they arise.

iii) The premium or discount on foreign currency 
forward contracts not relating to firm 
commitments or highly probable forecast 
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transactions and not intended for trading or 
speculative purposes is amortised as expense or 
income over the life of each contract. 

iv) In respect of derivative contracts relating to 
firm commitments or highly probable forecast 
transactions, provision is made for mark-to-
market losses, if any, at the balance sheet 
date.  Gains, if any, on such contracts are not 
recognised till settlement.

f) Investments
Investments, that are readily realisable and intended 
to be held for not more than one year from the date 
on which such investments are made, are classified 
as current investments. All other investments 
are classified as long term investments. Current 
investments are carried at lower of cost and fair 
value determined on an individual investment basis. 
Long term investments are carried at cost.  However, 
provision for diminution is made to recognise a 
decline, other than temporary, in the value of long-
term investments, such reduction being determined 
and made for each investment individually. 

g) Inventories
i) Inventories of raw materials and components, 

stores and  spares are valued at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value.  Cost for the purpose 
of valuation of inventories is determined on 
weighted average basis. 

ii) Finished goods and work-in-progress are valued 
at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost 
of finished goods and work-in-progress includes 
raw material costs, direct cost of conversion and 
allocation of indirect costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and 
condition. excise duty is included in the value of 
finished goods.

iii) Patterns, loose tools, jigs and fixtures are 
amortised equally over three years.

h) Depreciation
i)  Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on 

the straight line method in accordance with 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Schedule II provides the useful lives of various 
categories of fixed assets and allows the 
Company to use higher / lower useful lives and 
residual values if such lives and residual values 
can be technically supported and the justification 
for any difference is disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

 Accordingly, the management has re-estimated 
the useful lives and residual values of all its 
fixed assets and adopted useful lives as stated 
in Schedule II along with residual values of 5% 
except for the following:

•	 Based	on	the	experience	and	assessment,	
mobile phones costing ` 5,000/- or more 
are depreciated over 2 years.

•	 Assets	costing	less	than	` 5,000/-  are fully 
depreciated  in the year of purchase.

ii)  Double or triple shift depreciation, as the case 
may be, is provided in respect of machines on 
the basis of actual number of days for which 
such machines work on double or triple shift.

iii)  Intangible assets are recognised as specified 
in the applicable accounting standard and are 
amortised as follows:

Particulars Period of amortization
Computer software 36 months
Website development cost 36 months
Design and drawings 72 months

i) Employee Benefits
i)  Short term employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render related services are classified 
as short term employee benefits and are 
recognised as expenses in the period in which 
the employees render the related service.  The 
Company recognises the undiscounted amount 
of short term employee benefits expected to 
be paid (including compensated absences) in 
exchange for services rendered, as a liability.

ii) Post-employment benefits

a)  Defined contribution plans: 

Defined contribution plans are retirement 
benefit plans under which the Company 
pays fixed contributions to separate entities 
(funds) or financial institutions or state 
managed benefit schemes. The Company’s 
contributions under the employees’ 
Provident Fund Scheme, employees’ State 
Insurance Scheme and Officers’ Pension 
Scheme for certain employees are defined 
contributions plans. The Contributions paid/
payable under the schemes are recognised 
during the period in which the employees 
render the related service.
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b)  Defined benefit plans: 

Defined benefit plans are plans under 
which the Company pays certain defined 
benefits to employees following their 
retirement/resignation/death based on rules 
framed for such schemes. The employees’ 
Gratuity Scheme is a defined benefit plan. 
The present value of the obligation under 
a defined benefit plan is determined 
based on the actuarial valuation using 
the Projected unit Credit method, which 
recognises each period of service as giving 
rise to an additional unit of employee 
benefit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present 
value of the estimated future cash flows. 
The discount rate used for determining 
the present value of the obligation under a 
defined benefit plan is based on the market 
yields on Government securities as at the 
balance sheet date, with maturity periods 
approximating the terms of the related 
obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
immediately in the statement of profit and 
loss.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or 
settlement of any defined benefits plan 
are recognised when the curtailment of 
settlement occurs. Past service cost is 
recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the 
benefits become vested.

iii) Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected 
to occur within twelve months after the end 
of the period in which the employee renders 
related services are recognised as a liability at the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the balance sheet date on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation. The discount rates used for 
determining the present values of the obligation 
under defined benefit plans, are based on the 
appropriate market yields on Government 
securities as at the balance sheet date.

iv) Employee Stock Options :

Compensation cost in respect of stock options 
granted to eligible employees is recognised 
using the intrinsic value of the stock options 
and is amortised over the vesting period of such 
options granted.

j) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the 

acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalised upto the 
period such assets are ready for their intended use. All 
other borrowing costs are charged in the statement of 
profit and loss.

k) Taxes on Income
i) Current tax on income is determined on the basis 

of taxable income computed in accordance with 
the applicable provisions of the Income-tax Act, 
1961.

ii) Deferred tax is recognised for all timing 
differences between the accounting income 
and the taxable income for the year and 
quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted 
or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet 
date.

iii) Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried 
forward only to the extent that there is a 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised, except in 
the case of unabsorbed depreciation or carried 
forward of losses under the Income-tax Act 
1961, where deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that there is virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against 
which deferred tax assets can be realised.

iv) Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit is recognised 
as an asset only when and to the extent there 
is convincing evidence that the Company will 
be in a position to avail of such credit under the 
provisions of the Income-tax Act 1961.

l) Impairment of Assets
Impairment of individual assets/cash generating unit 
(a group of assets that generates identified 
independent cash flows) are identified using external 
and internal sources of information and impairment 
loss, if any, is determined and recognised in 
accordance with the applicable accounting standard.

m) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and 
Contingent assets
Provisions are recognised, if :  

a)  the Company has a present obligation as a result 
of a past event.;

b)  a probable outflow of resources is expected to 
settle the obligation; and

c)  the amount of the obligation can be reliably 
estimated.

   Reimbursements expected in respect of expenditure 
required to settle a provision are recognised only 
when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will 
be received.
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  A contingent liability is disclosed in the case of

a)  a present obligation arising from a past event, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation; 
or

b) a possible obligation, unless the probability of 
outflow of resources is remote.

  Contingent assets are not recognised .

n) Research and Development
Revenue expenditure on research and development 

2. Share Capital
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

AUTHORISED
450,000,000 equity Shares of ` 1/- each  450.00  450.00 

5,000,000 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of  ` 10/- each  50.00  50.00 

 500.00  500.00 
ISSUED,SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP

Equity

329,972,150 (329,944,550) equity Shares of ` 1/- each  329.97  329.94 

 329.97  329.94 

 a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.
  Equity Shares

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

No of Shares  ` in Million No of Shares  ` in Million 

At the beginning of the year  329,944,550  329.94  329,880,150  329.88 

Add:  Issued during the year pursuant to 
exercise of employee stock options  27,600  0.03  64,400  0.06 

Outstanding at the end of the year  329,972,150  329.97  329,944,550  329.94 

  Preference Shares

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

No of Shares  `  in Million No of Shares  ` in Million 

At the beginning of the year  -    -    2,800,000  28.00 

Less : Redeemed during the year  -    -    2,800,000 28.00 

Outstanding at the end of the year  -    -    -    -   

 b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

   The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of ` 1/- per share. each holder of equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

   In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company, after meeting all liabilities and distribution of all  preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

is charged under the respective heads of account. 
Capital expenditure on research and development is 
included as part of fixed assets and depreciated on 
the same basis as other fixed assets.

o) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
CSR spends by the Company,  not being a part of 
its normal business activity, are considered as an 
appropriation of profit. no provision is made in the 
accounts in respect of any shortfall in CSR spends, 
as determined in accordance with section 135 of the 
Companies Act 2013 unless a contractual liability has 
been incurred under a CSR activity already undertaken 
by the Company.
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 c)  Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash (during the 5 
years immediately preceding)

   257,880,150 equity shares of ` 1/- each were allotted on May 10, 2011,as fully paid up to the shareholders of Triveni 
engineering & Industries Ltd (TeIL) in the ratio of one equity share for every one equity share held by them in TeIL, pursuant 
to the Scheme.

 d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

No of Shares % holding No of Shares % holding

Equity Shares of ` 1/- each fully paid
Triveni engineering & Industries Limited 72,000,000 21.82 72,000,000 21.82

Dhruv M. Sawhney 24,924,645 7.55 28,124,645 8.52

nalanda India Fund Limited 25,788,000 7.82 25,788,000 7.82

umananda Trade & Finance Limited 20,157,589 6.11 20,157,589 6.11

Rati Sawhney 13,706,914 4.15 16,824,914 5.10

Tarnik Investments & Trading Limited 18,680,527 5.66 18,680,527 5.66

 e) Shares reserved for issue under options - Nil

  Refer note no. 37

3. Reserves and Surplus

General reserve (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last financial statements  700.00  600.00 

Add: Amount transferred from surplus in the statement of profit and loss  150.00  100.00 

Less: Impact of revision of useful lives of fixed assets pursuant to Schedule II to the

 Companies Act,2013 (Refer note no. 35)  10.77  -   

Closing Balance  839.23  700.00 

Capital redemption reserve (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last financial statements  28.00  -   

Add: Amount transferred from surplus in the statement of profit and loss  -    28.00 

Closing Balance  28.00  28.00 

Securities premium   (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last financial statements  3.28  -   

Add: Amount received during the year pursuant to exercise of employee stock options  1.41  3.28 

Closing Balance  4.69  3.28 
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Surplus in the statement of profit and loss (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last financial statements  750.55  483.97 

Add: net profit after tax transferred from statement of profit and loss  910.84  684.52 

Amount available for appropriation (A)  1,661.39  1,168.49 

Appropriations:

 Transfer to General reserve  150.00  100.00 

 Transfer to Capital redemption reserve  -    28.00 

 Corporate social responsibility expenditure  22.41  -   

 Dividend on equity shares (Interim)  82.50  65.98 

 Dividend on equity shares (earlier year)  0.02  0.01 

 Dividend on preference share  -    0.37 

 Proposed dividend on equity shares  197.98  181.47 

 Tax on equity dividend (Interim)  14.03  11.21 

 Tax on equity dividend (earlier year) [Current year ` 3,484/- (Previous year ` 1,006/-)] 0.00 0.00

 Tax on preference dividend  -    0.06 

 Tax on proposed equity dividend  40.30  30.84 

Total appropriations (B)  507.24  417.94 

Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss (A-B)  1,154.15  750.55 

Total reserves and surplus  2,026.07  1,481.83 

4. Long-Term Borrowings (` in Million)

Particulars Non- Current portion  Current maturities

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Term loans (Secured)

 - From banks  -    0.20  0.20  1.06 

 - From others  5.09  4.96  3.14  2.34 

 5.09  5.16  3.34  3.40 

Less :  Amount disclosed under the head "other 
current liabilities” (Refer note no. 10)  3.34  3.40 

 5.09  5.16  -    -   

 Details of Securities and other terms :-

Name of the Bank / Others Total loan 
outstanding 
(` in Million) 

Repayment 
termssof loan 
outstanding

Rate of interest 
(per annum)

Nature of Security

1. Axis Bank (vehicle loan) 0.20 

(1.26) 

In equated monthly 
instalments ranging 
from nil to 8 months 
(5 to 20 months)

At fixed rates 
ranging from 9.90% 
to 10.00%

Secured by 
hypothecation of 
vehicles acquired 
under the respective 
vehicle loans.

2. Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd (vehicle loan) 8.23  

(7.30) 

In equated monthly 
instalments ranging 
from 15 to 56 
months (24 to 46 
months)

At fixed rates 
ranging from 9.93% 
to 10.92%

Secured by 
hypothecation of 
vehicles acquired 
under the respective 
vehicle loans.

 Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.
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5. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

 (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Deferred Tax Liabilities :
Difference in net book value of fixed assets as per books and tax laws  128.55  138.24 

Deferred Tax Assets :

expenses allowable on payment basis  11.69  11.71 

Others  25.58  30.10 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities  91.28  96.43 

6. Other Long-Term Liabilities

 (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Deposit from customers (Refer note no. 34)  -    8.06 
 -    8.06 

7. Provisions

 (` in Million)

Particulars Long-term Short-term
 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Provisions for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer note no. 45)  8.72  4.22  -    -   

Compensated absences  18.36  18.00  4.32  2.93 

Other provisions
Proposed dividend *  -    -    197.98  181.47 

Tax on proposed dividend  -    -    40.30  30.84 

Warranty  17.27  11.50  14.48  17.96 

Liquidated damages  -    -    38.66  49.50 

Cost to completion  -    -    62.43  75.27 

Corporate social responsibility 
(Refer note no. 47)  -    -    4.80  -   

excise duty on closing stock  -    -    16.84  -   

Income Tax [net of advance tax of 
` 453.94 million (` 761.65 million) & 
includes wealth  tax ` 0.18 million  
(` 0.12 million)]  -    -    24.83  42.54 

 44.35  33.72  404.64  400.51 

*  Represents dividend proposed by the Board of Directors at ` 0.60 (previous year ` 0.55) per equity share of ` 1/- each, which is subject to the 
approval by the shareholders.  
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Disclosures required by Accounting Standard (AS) 29 - Provisions,Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets.

 Movement in provisions
 (` in Million)

Particulars of disclosure  Nature of Provisions 

 Warranty Liquidated 
Damages 

 Cost to 
Completion 

Opening balance  29.46  49.50  75.27 

 (66.90)  (60.43)  (149.56)
Provision made during the year  30.89  4.38  2.10 

 (19.69)  (1.11)  (5.50)
Provision used during the year  11.61  0.91  12.80 

 (40.67)  (2.18)  (28.19)
Provision no longer required reversed  16.99  14.31  2.14 

 (16.46)  (9.86)  (51.60)
Closing balance  31.75  38.66  62.43 

 (29.46)  (49.50)  (75.27)

Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.

Nature of Provisions

Warranties: The Company gives warranties on certain products and services, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail 
to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provisions made as at March 31,2015 represent the amount of the expected 
cost of meeting such obligations. The timing of the outflows is expected to be within the period of two years.

Liquidated damages: In respect of certain products, the Company has contractual obligations towards customers for matters 
relating to delivery and performance. The provisions represent the amount estimated to meet the cost of such obligations. The 
timing of the outflow is expected to be within one year.

Cost to completion: The provision represents the costs of materials and services required for erection and integration of turbine 
packages at the site, prior to commissioning.

8. Short-Term Borrowings 
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Repayable on demand (Secured)

Cash credits from banks *  6.60  69.19 

 6.60  69.19 

*  Secured by hypothecation of stocks-in-trade, raw materials, stores & spare parts, work-in-progress and trade receivables and a second charge 
on movable and immovable assets both present and future on a pari-passu basis. Interest rates range from 12.25% to 12.50% per annum.

9. Trade Payables
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Trade payables (Refer note no.39 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)  1,120.47  1,287.97 

 1,120.47  1,287.97 
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10. Other Current Liabilities
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note no 4)  3.34  3.40 
Creditors for purchases of capital assets  4.08  0.48 
Advances from customers  1,009.03  865.82 
Security deposits  0.02  0.02 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.06  0.07 
Interest payable pursuant to court decision (Refer note no. 34)  10.17  -   
employee benefits & other dues  16.67  22.70 
Deferred premium on foreign exchange forward contracts  6.69  3.20 
Indirect taxes & duties payable  1.16  0.99 
Statutory dues relating to employees  4.97  5.10 
Income tax deducted at source  8.12  6.80 
unpaid dividend *  0.78  0.61 
Creditors for other liabilities  7.12  5.49 

 1,072.21  914.68
* There are no amounts as at the end of the year which are due and outstanding to be credited to the Investors education and Protection Fund.

11. Tangible Assets 
(` in Million)

Particulars Free hold Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and Vehicles Computers Total
Land* Machinery Equipment Fixtures  

Gross block
As at April 1, 2013  36.42  334.28  1,116.47  25.48  43.20  26.30  60.07 1,642.22 

Additions  -    7.58  0.93  0.46  0.45  6.58  4.12  20.12 
Deductions  -    13.06  -    -    1.61  14.67 

As at March 31, 2014  36.42  341.86  1,104.34  25.94  43.65  32.88  62.58 1,647.67 
Additions  388.65  0.42  6.42  1.59  1.45  7.34  10.29  416.16 
Deductions  -    0.01  0.57  2.57  2.95  2.18  3.40  11.68 

As at March 31, 2015  425.07  342.27  1,110.19  24.96  42.15  38.04  69.47 2,052.15 
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2013  -    74.24  385.92  7.54  15.64  5.95  42.33  531.62 

Charge for the year  -    10.89  87.21  1.24  2.61  2.87  4.40  109.22 
Deductions  -    9.14  -    -    1.53  10.67 

As at March 31, 2014  -    85.13  463.99  8.78  18.25  8.82  45.20  630.17 
Charge for the 
year**  -    7.95  92.20  6.88  6.54  3.79  6.40  123.76 
Transfer to 
General Reserve#  8.04  0.26  4.40  0.33  0.32  2.96  16.31 
Deductions  -    0.01  0.23  2.39  2.80  1.15  3.22  9.80 

As at March 31, 2015  -    101.11  556.22  17.67  22.32  11.78  51.34  760.44 
Net Block
As at March 31, 2014  36.42  256.73  640.35  17.16  25.40  24.06  17.38 1,017.50 
As at March 31, 2015  425.07  241.16  553.97  7.29  19.83  26.26  18.13 1,291.71 

*   Refer note no. 48

** Includes amount capitalised ` 0.12 million (Previous year ` nil)

#   Refer note no. 35
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12. Intangible Assets (Other than internally generated)
(` in Million)

Particulars Computer 
Software

Website Design and 
Drawings

Total

Gross block
 As at April 1, 2013  102.20  1.25  58.19  161.64 

Additions  12.35  0.18  28.32  40.85 

Disposals  -    -    -    -   
As at March 31,  2014  114.55  1.43  86.51  202.49 

Additions  6.59  -    0.50  7.09 

Disposals  -    -    -    -   
As at March 31,  2015  121.14  1.43  87.01  209.58 
Amortisation
 As at April 1, 2013  86.90  0.30  37.03  124.23 

Charge for the year  10.76  0.46  8.16  19.38 
Disposals  -    -    -   

As at March 31,  2014  97.66  0.76  45.19  143.61 
Charge for the year  9.96  0.44  11.00  21.40 

Disposals  -    -    -    -   
As at March 31,  2015  107.62  1.20  56.19  165.01 

Net Block
As at March 31,  2014  16.89  0.67  41.32  58.88 
As at March 31,  2015  13.52  0.23  30.82  44.57 

13. Non-Current Investments
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Long Term
Trade  

UNQUOTED

SHAReS - Fully paid-up - Subsidiary Companies 

8,000,001 (8,000,001) equity shares of ` 10/- each of  Ge Triveni Limited (At cost)  80.00  80.00 

50,000 (nil) Ordinary shares of GBP 1/- each of  Triveni Turbines europe Private Ltd (At cost)  4.67  -   

 84.67  80.00 

 Aggregate  book value of unquoted investments  84.67  80.00 
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14. Loans and Advances

 (` in Million)

Particulars Long-term Short-term

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Capital advances

unsecured, considered good  1.78  372.26  -    -   

(A)  1.78  372.26  -    -   

Security deposit

unsecured, considered good 2.59   2.76 1.05 0.91

(B)  2.59  2.76  1.02  0.91 
Other loans and advances 

unsecured, considered good

Prepaid expenses  1.73  2.02  18.67  14.35 

Loans to employees  0.30  0.46  2.45  2.48 

Advances to suppliers  -    -    119.71  107.32 

Service tax recoverable  4.84  4.52  7.87  12.83 

excise duty (Cenvat Balance)  -    -    48.76  19.86 

earnest money deposit  -    -    1.88  3.89 

Works contract tax recoverable  -    -    1.25  0.87 

Advance payment of tax  12.68  12.68  -    -   

Amount recoverable from hedging banks  -    -    89.48  6.30 

vAT recoverable  82.61  90.67  97.32  23.90 

excise duty recoverable (Refer note no. 34)  0.09  25.87  0.49  20.43 

Other amounts recoverable  0.23  0.23  0.46  0.12 

(C)  102.48  136.45  388.34  212.35 
Total (A+B+C)  106.85  511.47  389.36  213.26 

15. Current Investments (Unquoted)
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

(valued at lower of cost or fair value)

134,076.954 (nil) Mutual Funds units of Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Growth - Direct Plan  30.00  -   

787,711.698 (nil) Mutual Funds units of JM High Liquidity Fund - Direct Growth Option  30.00  -   

 60.00  -   

   Aggregate  book value of unquoted investments  60.00  -   

16. Inventories 
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

 (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw material and components [includes stock in transit ` 3.11 million (` 2.84 million)]  554.88  438.20 

Work-in-progress  462.65  500.32 

Finished goods [Incudes stock in transit ` nil (` 160.25 million)]  155.01  160.25 

Stores and spares   0.25  0.18 

Patterns     11.15  12.43 

Tools, jigs and fixtures  3.28  2.43 

Others (Scrap)  0.04  0.04 

 1,187.26  1,113.85 
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17. Trade Receivables

 (` in Million)

Particulars  Non-Current Current 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Over Six Months 
Secured - considered good - - - -

unsecured - considered good  -    -    323.40  290.95 

Considered doubtful  -    -    42.70  48.70 

 -    -    366.10  339.65 

Less : Provision for doubtful debts  -    -    42.70  48.70 

(A)  -    -    323.40  290.95 

Others

Secured - considered good - - - -

unsecured - considered good  169.30  114.69  1,210.53  766.48 

(B)  169.30  114.69  1,210.53  766.48 

Total (A+B)  169.30  114.69  1,533.93  1,057.43 
Less:  Amount disclosed under other non-current 

assets (Refer note no.19)  169.30  114.69 

- -  1,533.93  1,057.43 

18. Cash and Bank Balances

 (` in Million)

Particulars  Non-Current Current 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks

Current accounts  -    -    39.10  5.62 

Cheques / drafts on hand (Current year 
` 738/-)   -    -   0.00    -   

Cash on hand  -    -    0.40  0.29 

(A)  -    -    39.50  5.91 
Other bank balances

earmarked balances:

unpaid dividend account  -    -    0.79  0.61 

Balances under lien/margin/kept as security:

Fixed / margin deposits (original maturity 
more than one year)  0.10  0.10  -    -   

(B)  0.10  0.10  0.79  0.61 
Total (A+B)  0.10  0.10  40.29  6.52 

Less:  Amount disclosed under other 
non-current assets (Refer note no.19)  0.10  0.10 

 -    -    40.29  6.52 
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 19. Other Assets
 (` in Million)

Particulars  Non-Current Current 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Long-term trade receivables (Refer note no. 17)  169.30  114.69  -    -   

non-current cash and bank balances 
(Refer note no.18)

 0.10  0.10  -    -   

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  0.03 0.02    -    - 

Due from customers (Turnkey Project revenue 
adjustment)

 -    -    93.80  433.41 

Duty drawback receivable  -    -    37.78  17.72 

 169.43  114.81  131.58  451.13 

20. Revenue from Operations
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Sale of products
Finished goods

Turbines (including related equipments and supplies)  4,596.80  3,079.49 

Spares  1,185.17  750.02 

Others  -    0.21 

Sale of services

Servicing, operation and maintenance  380.10  444.91 

erection and commissioning  56.14  152.19 

Turbine extended scope project  145.47  790.53 

Other operating revenue

Technical know-how fee  14.09  -   

Sale of scrap  3.96  6.85 

Selling commission  8.08  3.55 

Royalty  9.34  3.36 

export incentives  47.15  25.78 

 6,446.30  5,256.89 

21. Other Income
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Profit on sale/redemption of current investment  7.45  11.36 

Rent received  5.91  4.65 

Interest income 

Bank Deposits  0.05  0.30 

Customers  0.15  1.75 

exchange fluctuation gains *  242.50  -   

Credit balances written back  6.99  2.90 

Provision of liquidated damages reversed (net) - (Refer note no 7)  9.93  8.75 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances written back  6.00  -   

Provision of cost to completion for earlier year reversed (Refer note no 7)  2.14  51.60 

excess provision of expenses written back  -    1.41 

Miscellaneous Income  1.43  1.00 

 282.55  83.72 

 * Includes premium/discount earned on foreign currency forward contracts ` 112.53 million (previous year ` nil) 
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22. Cost of Raw Material and Components Consumed
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Stock at commencement  438.20  280.16 

Purchases  3,704.38  3,226.48 

 4,142.58  3,506.64 

Less: Stock at close  554.88  438.20 

  3,587.70  3,068.44 

Details of raw material and components consumed

Alternators, elecric panels and other direct bought-outs  1,395.19  1,282.62 

Iron and steel  410.79  249.36 

Gear boxes and accessories  440.65  337.82 

Others  1,341.07  1,198.64 

 3,587.70  3,068.44 

23. Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Stock at commencement

- Work-in-progress (Turbines)  500.32  367.42 

- Finished goods (Turbines)  160.25  -   

 660.57  367.42 

Stock at close

- Work-in-progress (Turbines)  462.65  500.32 

- Finished goods (Turbines)  155.01  160.25 

 617.66  660.57 

Add/(Less):Impact of excise duty on finished goods  16.84  -   

 59.75  (293.15)

24. Employee Benefit Expenses
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Salaries, wages and bonus  508.19  477.09 

Contributions to provident and other funds  35.12  34.48 

Gratuity  15.05  14.70 

employee welfare  43.12  40.74 

 601.48  567.01 

Less: Amount capitalised  0.57  -   

 600.91  567.01 
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25. Other Expenses
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Stores, spares and tools consumed  140.06  106.27 

Power and fuel  22.34  18.32 

Design and engineering charges  8.29  3.16 

Repairs and maintenance

Machinery  4.63  10.31 

Buildings  1.73  4.28 

Others  10.19  8.92 

Travelling and conveyance  115.43  96.59 

Rent  5.46  6.58 

Rates and taxes  3.48  4.13 

Insurance  2.31  2.74 

Directors' sitting fees  2.11  0.98 

Directors' commission  6.00  5.00 

Certification & consultation  38.92  36.57 

Group shared service cost  39.18  33.96 

Bank charges and guarantee commission  14.20  12.23 

exchange fluctuation loss *  -    40.40 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  -    10.59 

Bad debts/sundry amounts written off  22.04  2.20 

Warranty expenses [Includes provision for warranty (net of reversals) of ` 13.90 million

(Previous year: ` 3.23 million)] (Refer note no. 7)  27.78  19.06 

Payment to Auditors (Refer note no. 50)  2.09  2.14 

non moving/obsolete inventory written off  2.54  18.11 

Loss on sale of assets  0.76  3.72 

Packing and forwarding  43.26  29.03 

Freight outward  70.45  59.35 

Selling commission  72.53  49.41 

Miscellaneous expenses  99.49  91.83 

 755.27  675.88 

Less: Amount capitalised  0.93  -   

 754.34  675.88 

* net off premium/discount earned on foreign currency forward contracts ` nil (previous year ` 36.03 million)

26. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Depreciation  123.64  109.22 

Amortisation  21.40  19.38 

 145.04  128.60 

27. Finance Costs
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Interest expenses [Includes ` 0.00 million (Current year ` 463 /-) towards interest on income tax 
(previous year  ` 0.46 million)]  4.04  5.36 

Other borrowing cost [Includes ` 1.85 million towards prior period exps (previous year ` nil)]  2.34  0.63 

 6.38  5.99 
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28. Exceptional Item
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

excise duty liability (including interest of ` 10.17 million) pertaining to earlier years

 on dismissal of special leave petition by the Supreme Court of India (Refer note no 34)  27.98  -   

 27.98  -   

29. Tax Expense
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

For Current year

- Current Tax expense  454.40  318.41 

- Deferred Tax expense/(Income)  (9.96)  13.86 

 444.44  332.27 

For earlier years 

- Current Tax expense/(Income)  (9.96)  (7.92)

- Deferred Tax expense/(Income)  10.35  4.74 

 0.39  (3.18)

 444.83  329.09 

30. Earnings per share (EPS)
(` in Million)

Basic EPS  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

net profit  after tax 910.84 684.52

Less: Dividend on preference shares (including dividend distribution tax) nil 0.44

Adjusted net profit / (loss) after tax and preference dividend  [A] 910.84 684.08

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  [B] 329,969,428 329,881,385

Basic earnings per share – ` /Share [A/B] 2.76 2.07

Diluted EPS  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Adjusted net profit / (loss) after tax and preference dividend, as above  [A] 910.84 684.08

Weighted average number of equity shares deemed to be issued under options without 
consideration, outstanding during the year

nil 1,976

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  [B] 329,969,428 329,883,361

Diluted earnings per share ` /Share [A/B] 2.76 2.07

31. Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts : 

(` in Million)

SL No Particulars Amount of Contingent Liability Amount Paid

1 excise duty 6.79 0.09

(40.15)  (26.15)

2 Service tax 42.97 4.84

(44.52) (4.52)

3 Others 3.08 -

(2.08) (-)

Total 52.84  4.93 

(86.75) (30.67)

Figures in brackets pertains to the previous year.
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The amounts shown above represent the best estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties, 
possible payments and reimbursements are dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked 
by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be, and therefore cannot be predicted accurately.  The Company engages 
reputed professional advisors to protect its interests and has been advised that it has a strong legal position against such disputes.

32. estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided   for ` 43.51 million (previous year 
` 24.83 million) after adjusting advances paid aggregating to ` 1.78 million (previous year ` 4.40 million). 

33. In respect of working capital facilities sanctioned by a bank to the subsidiary company, M/s Ge Triveni Ltd (GeTL), the Company 
has given an undertaking not to dispose of its investments in the equity shares of GeTL aggregating ` 80.00 million during the 
tenure of the facilities.

34. A claim of ` 26.15 million against the Company in respect of excise duty which was the subject matter of special leave petition 
filed by the Company before the Supreme Court of India has been decided against the Company. The disputed duty had already 
been deposited by the Company under protest and the Company had also recovered and retained as a deposit, amount of ` 8.06 
million from its customers. upon dismissal of its special leave petition the Company  has  during the  year  recognized  expenses  of  
` 17.81 million (net of recoveries of ` 8.06 million made from customers & ` 0.28 million recognised in earlier years) and interest 
of  ` 10.17 million thereon,  in the statement of profit and loss as an exceptional item of expense (note no.28 above).

35. In accordance with the requirements of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 , the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets 
have been technically assessed and revised with effect from 1st April, 2014. Accordingly, the depreciation expense for the  current  
year  is  higher  by  ` 13.71 million and for the assets whose revised useful lives had expired prior to April 1, 2014, the net book 
value of ` 10.77 million (net of deferred tax of ` 5.54 million) has been adjusted from the General Reserve.

36. Title to certain fixed assets vested in the Company under the Scheme of Arrangement  and arising out of business conducted till 
the date the Scheme became effective, has not yet been transferred in the name of the Company. These assets are being held in 
trust, by Triveni engineering & Industries Ltd. The requisite stamp duties, if any, on determination thereof by the Authorities, will 
be paid and accounted for by the Company appropriately.

37. 40,000 stock options had been granted to an employee of the Company on April 30, 2010, while he was an employee of 
Triveni engineering & Industries Ltd. (TeIL), prior to the demerger of its steam turbine business and vesting of the same in the 
Company under a Scheme of Arrangement, duly approved by the Court. As per the Scheme of Arrangement, an employee stock 
option scheme styled as ‘new Stock Option Scheme’ was formulated by the Company during Financial year 2013-14 and the 
employee was granted 40,000 stock options in lieu of the stock options held by him in TeIL. In accordance with the Scheme of 
Arrangement, and in line with the best practices, adjustment was made for the corporate action of demerger, by adjusting the 
exercise price and share entitlement ratio under the options granted, so as to ensure that the fair value of options immediately 
prior to and immediately subsequent to the corporate action remained unchanged. 

 Consequent to the grant of options under the ‘new Stock Option Scheme’ framed in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, 
the stock options were deemed to have been granted from the appointed date of the Scheme of Arrangement i.e., 01.10.2010. 
The required disclosures of the new Stock Option Scheme are as under:
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(a) employee Stock Option Scheme:

no. of Options granted 40,000

Original grant date of Options 30.04 2010

Date of grant under new Stock Option Scheme (to give effect to corporate action) 10.04.2013

number of equity shares entitlement in respect of the Options granted under the 

new Stock Option Scheme

184,000

vesting Plan Graded vesting as under:

20,000 options to vest on 30.04.2011

20,000 options to vest on 30.04.2012

normal exercise Period Within 2 years from the date of vesting

exercise Price per share (`) 52

(b) Movement of Options Granted

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,000 40,000
Granted during the year nil nil
exercised during the year 6,000 14,000
Lapsed during the year nil 20,000
Outstanding at the end of the year nil 6,000
unvested at the end of the year nil nil
exercisable at the end of the year nil 6,000

(c) Fair valuation

  The fair value of options used to compute proforma net income and earning per equity share has been done by an independent 

professional valuer using the Black Scholes Options pricing formula.

 The key assumptions in Black Scholes Options pricing for calculating fair value are as follows:

(a) Risk free rate 8.36%

(b) Option life 1.99 years

(c) expected volatility 46.53%

(d) expected dividend 1.20%

(e) exercise price of each underlying share under the option ` 52

The weighted average fair value of each option of the Company as on the date of the corporate adjustment, issued under new 
Stock Option Scheme was ` 29.30. 
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Had the compensation cost for the stock options granted been determined based on the fair value approach, the Company’s net 

profit and earning per share would have been the proforma amounts indicated below:
(` in Million)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

net Profit (as reported) 910.84 684.52

Less : Preference dividend (including tax thereon) nil 0.44

Add : Compensation cost under eSOP considered in the net profit nil nil

Less/(Add) : Compensation cost/(Compensation cost reversals) under eSOP as per fair value * nil (0.59)

net Profit (fair value basis) attributable to equity shareholders 910.84 684.67

Basic earnings per share (as reported) – ` /Share 2.76 2.07

Basic earnings per share (fair value basis) – ` /Share 2.76 2.07

Diluted earnings per share (as reported) – ` /Share 2.76 2.07

Diluted earnings per share (fair value basis) – ` /Share 2.76 2.07

*  The compensation expenses on a fair value basis has been computed with reference to the fair value as on 03.05.2011, i.e., the date with 
reference to which the corporate adjustment was carried out in respect of the stock options originally granted.

38. The Company has incurred an expenditure of ` 61.66 million (Previous year ` 80.89 million) on research and development 
activities as shown below:

(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

a) Capital expenditure 7.71 30.21

b) Revenue expenditure 53.95 50.68

 Total 61.66 80.89

39. Based on information received from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development 
Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided below:- 

(` in Million)

S. No Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

1 Amounts due to Micro and Small enterprises as at the end of the year  

i) Principal amount 90.47 60.24

ii) Interest due on above nil nil

2 i) Principal amount paid after due date or appointed day during the year nil nil

ii) Interest paid during the year on (i) above nil nil

3 Interest due & payable (but not paid) on principal amounts paid during the year after 
the due date or appointed day. nil nil

4 Total interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at the end of the year nil nil

5 Further interest in respect of defaults of earlier years due and payable in current year 
upto the date when actually paid nil nil

40. i)  The Company has taken various residential and office premises under operating leases. These leases are not non-cancellable 
and the unexpired period ranges between six to forty eight months. The lease agreements are renewable by mutual consent 
on mutually agreeable terms. The Company has given refundable interest- free security deposits under certain agreements.  

a)  Lease  payments   under   operating   leases  aggregating  ` 5.46 million  ( previous  year ` 6.58 million) are recognised  in 
the statement of profit and loss under “Other expenses” in note no.25.

b) There are no minimum future lease payments as there are no non-cancellable leases.

c) There are no contingent rent expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

d) There are no sub-lease arrangements entered into by the Company.
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ii)  The Company has also given certain portions of its office premises under cancellable as well as non-cancellable operating leases. 

These leases are extendable by mutual consent and on mutually agreeable terms. The gross carrying amount, accumulated 

depreciation and depreciation recognised in the statement of profit and loss in respect of such portions of the leased premises 

are not separately identifiable.  There is no impairment loss in respect of such premises.  no contingent rent income has been 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for the 

period the facilities are expected to be occupied is shown below: 

(` in Million)

Unexpired period of lease  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 
Not later than one year

not later than one year 5.59 5.08

Later than one year but not later than five years 5.59 10.16

Later than five years - -

Initial direct costs incurred, if any, to earn revenues from an operating lease are recognised   as an expense in the statement of 

profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

41. The information required to be disclosed in respect of construction contracts in progress as at the end of the year is shown below:
(` in Million)

Sl No. Particulars of disclosure  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 
Not later than one year

i) Amount of contract revenue recognised as revenue during  the year 145.47 790.53

ii) Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised losses) 
upto the reporting date

1,535.65 1,390.18

iii) Advances received 157.10 157.10

iv) Retentions 169.30 114.70

v) Gross amount due from customers for contract work 93.80 433.41

vi) Gross amount due to customers for contract work - -

42. The Company primarily operates in one business segment – Power Generating equipment and Solutions. There are no reportable 

geographical segments.

43. Information regarding Related Parties and transactions with them is given below:

a) Related Party where control exists

i)  Subsidiary Companies

Ge Triveni Limited

Triveni Turbines europe Private Limited (wholly owned)*

Triveni Turbines DMCC (step-down subsidiary)*

*Incorporated during the year

ii) Person holding substantial interest

Mr. Dhruv M. Sawhney - Chairman and Managing Director (Key Management Person) 

b) Details of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :   

Name of related Party Relationship

Triveni engineering & Industries Ltd (TeIL) Investing company holding substantial interest

Ge Triveni Limited (GeTL)  Subsidiary Company

Triveni Turbines europe Private Limited (TTePL) Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

Mr. Dhruv M. Sawhney (DMS)  Chairman & Managing Director (Key Management Person)

Mr. nikhil Sawhney (nS)  vice Chairman and Managing Director (Key Management Person)

Mr. Tarun Sawhney (TS)  Relative of Key Management Person (Son of DMS)

Mr. Arun Mote (AM) executive Director (Key Management Person)

Tirath Ram Shah Charitable Trust (TRSCT) enterprise in which Key Management  Personnel or their relatives have  significant influence
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c) Details of transactions with the related parties during the year :

(` in Million)

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction TEIL GETL TTEPL DMS NS TS AM TRSCT Total

1 Sales and rendering of services  544.63  464.43  2.47  -  -  -  -  -  1,011.53 

(508.37)  (133.31)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (641.68)

2 Purchase of goods and  361.08  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  361.08 

receiving of services  (300.56)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (300.56)

3 Donation paid  -    -  -  -  -  -  -  -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (7.50)  (7.50)

4 Rent paid  2.09 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  2.09 

 (2.97)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (2.97)

5 expenses incurred  by the 
party on behalf of the 
Company/ (-) by the Company 
on behalf of the party - net

 4.82
(5.38) 

 -
 (-) 

 - 
 (-)

 -
 (-) 

 - 
 (-)

 - 
 (-)

 - 
 (-)

 -
 (-) 

 4.82
 (5.38) 

6 Remuneration  -   -  -  28.13  27.75  -  20.40  -    76.28 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (32.76)  (25.23)  (-)  (21.72)  (-)  (79.71)

7 Selling commission received  -    9.08  -  -  -  -  -  -  9.08 

 (-)  (3.92)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (3.92)

8 Royalty received  -    10.49  -  -  -  -  -  -  10.49 

 (-)  (3.77)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (3.77)

9 Investment in shares  -    -    4.67  -  -  -  -  -  4.67 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) (-)   

10 Rent received  -    6.64  -  -  -  -  -  -  6.64 

 (0.02)  (5.19)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (5.21)

11 Directors'  sitting fee  -    -  -  -  -  0.29  -  -  0.29 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) (0.11)  (-)  (-)  (0.11)

12 Directors'  commission  -    -  -  -  -  1.20  -  -  1.20 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) (1.00)  (-)  (-)  (1.00)

13 Redemption of preference  -    -  -  -  -  -    -  -  -   

shares  (28.00)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (28.00)

14 Amount received by company 
upon exercise of options under 
stock option scheme for issue 
of equity shares

-
 (-) 

- 
(-) 

- 
(-) 

- 
(-) 

-
 (-) 

-
 (-) 

 1.44
(3.35)

-
 (-) 

1.44  
(3.35)

15 Corporate social responsibility  -    -  -  -  -  -    -  4.00  4.00 

expenditure  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

16 Provision against corporate 
social responsibility  -    -  -  -  -  -    -  4.80  4.80 

 expenditure  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

17 Outstanding balances as at year 
end

A. Receivable      209.61  217.44  2.47  -  -  -  -  -    429.52 

 (239.14)  (129.33)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (368.47)

B. Payable  43.86  120.16  -  0.34  0.04  -    0.41  -    164.81 

 (130.98)  (85.57)  (-)  (0.09)  (0.04)  (-)  (0.29)  (-)  (216.97)

 Figures in brackets pertain to the previous year.
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44. a) Derivatives outstanding at the balance sheet date

Forward Contract to Sell Purpose

1. uS$,9.52 million (` 592.16 million)

 [Prev. yr.: uS$ 8.62 million (` 511.56 million)]

Hedging of receivables and highly probable forecast transactions.

2. euro 15.22 million (` 1,018.11 million)

 [Prev. yr.:  euro 0.39 million (` 31.79 million)]

Hedging of receivables and highly probable forecast transactions

3. euro nil Hedged to uSD (uSD nil) 

 [Prev. yr.euro 0.25 million (uSD 0.34 million)]

Hedging of receivables and highly probable forecast transactions

4. GBP 0.43 million (` 38.94 million) 

 [Prev. yr.:  GBP 1.13 million (` 110.90 million)]

Hedging of highly probable forecast transactions.

Forward Contract to Buy Purpose

1. euro nil  (` nil) 

 [Prev. yr:.euro 0.43 million(` 35.99 million]

Hedging of highly probable forecast transactions.

  The equivalent currency amounts for the foreign currency hedges have been considered at the corresponding exchange rates 
prevalent at the balance sheet date.

b) Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposures at the balance sheet date

Import trade payables 

1. uS$ 0.08 million (` 5.13 million) [Prev. yr.: uS$ 0.13 million (` 7.76 million)]

2. euro 0.32 million (` 21.67 million) [Prev. yr.: euro 0.14 million (` 11.46 million)]

3. CHF 0.03 million (` 2.01 million) [Prev. yr.: CHF 0.003 million (` 0.23 million)]

4. GBP 0.12 million (` 11.08 million) [Prev. yr.: GBP 0.09 million (` 8.83 million)]

5. JPy 13.55 million (` 7.13 million) [Prev. yr.: JPy 19.94 million (` 11.77 million)]

Export trade receivable

1. uS$ 1.60 million (` 99.41 million) [Prev. yr..: uS$ 0.36 million (` 21.19 million)]

2. euro 0.03 million (` 2.02 million) [Prev. yr.: euro 0.03 (` 2.64 million)]

3. GBP 0.03 million (` 2.70 million) [Prev. yr.: GBP 0.32 million (` 31.34 million)]
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45. The Company has made provisions during the year for employee benefits relating to its obligations towards defined contributions 
and defined benefit plans. The required disclosures are given below:

 i) Defined Contribution Plans
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 
Employer’s contribution to  employees’ provident      

employer’s contribution to  employees’ provident fund scheme     24.66     24.02

employer’s contribution to employees’ state insurance scheme      0.27      0.32

employer’s contribution to officers’ pension  scheme    7.94     7.81

 ii) Defined Benefit Plans

  Changes in present value of obligation

(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (funded) Compensated absence (un-funded) 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Present value of obligation as at the beginning 
of the year 

65.87 60.60 20.03 21.10

Interest cost 4.85 4.59 1.53 1.67

Current service cost 7.82 6.10 1.99 1.36

Past service cost 0.05 - - -

Benefits paid (10.56) (13.07) (1.93) (2.82)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 8.48 7.65 (0.06) (1.28)

Present value of obligation as at the end of the 
year

76.51 65.87 21.56 20.03

Changes in value of plan assets

(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (funded) Compensated absence (un-funded)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the 
year 

61.65 40.50 - -

expected return on plan assets 5.39 3.54 - -

Contributions 10.56 30.58 - -

Benefits paid (10.56) (13.07) - -

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets 0.75 0.10 - -

Fair value of plan assets at the end of  year 67.79 61.65 - -

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (funded) Compensated absence (un-funded)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 76.51 65.87 21.56 20.03

Funded status / difference 67.79 61.65 - -

net assets / (liability) recognised in the balance 
sheet

(8.72) (4.22) (21.56) (20.03)

(8.72) (4.22) (21.56) (20.03)
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Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (funded) Compensated absence (un-funded)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Current service cost 7.82 6.10 1.99 1.35

Past service cost 0.04 - - -

Interest cost 4.85 4.59 1.53 1.67

expected return on plan assets (5.39) (3.54) - -

net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised during the 
year

7.73 7.55 (0.06) (1.28)

expenses recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss

15.05 14.70 3.46 1.74

experience adjustment
(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity Compensated absence

31.03.2015 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.13 31.03.12

Defined benefit obligation 76.51 65.87 60.60 57.51 21.56 20.03 21.10 20.44

Fair value of Plan Assets 67.79 61.65 40.50 - - - - -

Surplus/ (deficit) (8.72) (4.22) (20.10) (57.51) (21.56) (20.03) (21.10) (20.44)

experience adjustment on 
Plan Liabilities-(Gain) / Loss

2.00 2.85 2.26 2.17 (2.55) (4.02) (3.43) (5.13)

experience adjustment on 
Plan Assets-(Gain) / Loss

(0.75) 0.20 - - - - - -

The amount of contribution expected to be made to the gratuity fund during the financial year ending 31-03-2016 is 
` 15.09 million.

Major actuarial assumptions 
(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity Compensated absence 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Discounting rate 8.00% 8.50% 8.00% 8.50%

Future salary increase 7.50% 7.00% 7.50% 7.00%

expected rate of return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75%           -             -

Mortality table IIALM 2006-08 IIALM 2006-08 IIALM 2006-08 IIALM 2006-08

Method used Projected unit credit method

The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

46. To promote the Company’s products and brand in the international market, the Company has, during the year, incorporated a 
wholly owned subsidiary, Triveni Turbines europe Private Limited (TTePL) in London, united Kingdom.  TTePL has subsequently 
incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Triveni Turbines DMCC in Dubai, uAe.
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47. In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Company  was required to spend ` 26.39 million, being two percent of 
the average net profit of the Company for the preceding three financial years, to fulfill its obligation for Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR). Of  this  amount,  the  Company  has  during  the  year  spent ` 17.61 million and a further sum of 
` 4.80 million committed by the Company under a CSR project undertaken by it, has been provided in the accounts.  This being 
the first year, it had taken time for the Company to organise and conceive suitable projects and hence there has been a shortfall 
of  ` 3.98 million in meeting the obligations.

48. During the year, the Company has acquired land capitalised at ` 388.65 million from Karnataka Industrial Areas Development 
Board on a lease-cum-sale basis. The Company is required to pay ` 0.14 million per year towards lease and maintenance 
charges for an initial period of ten years. Thereafter the ownership of the land will be transferred in favour of the Company and 
accordingly the land has been disclosed as freehold land and no amortisation is required to be provided.

49. Statement of Additional Information:

(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 
Employer’s contribution to  employees’ provident      

a) Value of imports on CIF basis
i) Raw materials 361.10 183.72

ii) Spare parts for machinery Maintenance - 6.18

iii) Capital goods           3.55 23.84

b) Expenditure in foreign currency
i) Travelling 27.76 16.05

ii) Selling Commission 72.30 34.01

iii)  erection and commissioning         11.39 6.48

iv) Warranty expenses - 21.24

v) exhibition expenses 6.12 5.84

vi) Refurbhishing Works - 7.14

vii) Others 13.66 10.35

c) Earnings in foreign currency
i) export of goods on FOB basis 2,523.62 1,258.73

ii) Service Charges 72.92 156.01

iii) Selling Commission - 0.06

d) Consumption of raw material, spare parts and components :

Particulars  31.03.2015 31.03.2014
 ` in Million  %  ` in Million  %

i) Raw material

- Directly imported 223.93 6.23% 87.82 3.14%

- Indigenous 3,363.77 93.77% 2,980.62 96.86%

Total 3,587.70 100.00% 3,068.44 100.00%
ii) Spare-parts and components  

- Directly Imported - - - -

- Indigenous 140.06 100.00% 106.27 100.00%

Total 140.06 100.00% 106.27 100.00%
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e) Remittance in foreign currencies of dividend:

The Company has not remitted any amount in foreign currencies on account of dividend during the year and does not 
have information as to the extent to which remittances, if any, in foreign currencies on account of dividend have been 
made by/on behalf of non-resident shareholders. The particulars of dividend paid to non-resident shareholders (including 
non-resident Indian shareholders) which were declared during the year are as under:

Particulars Dividend paid during 2014-15 Dividend paid during 2013-14

Final dividend for 
 FY 2013-14

Interim dividend 
for FY 2014-15

Final dividend for 
FY 2012-13

Interim dividend 
for FY 2013-14

i) number of non-resident 
shareholders 368 360 403 386

ii) number of equity Shares held 
by them 62,033,506 62,766,575 42,620,795 56,672,353

iii) Gross amount of dividend – 
(` in million)  34.12 15.69 23.44 11.33

50. Payment to Auditors represents amount paid / payable to the auditors on account of :

 (` in Million)

S. No. Particulars Statutory auditors * Branch auditors Cost auditors 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

1) Audit fee 0.27 0.21 0.45 0.40 0.06 0.06

2) Tax Audit fee 0.09 0.07 0.24 0.17 - -

3) Limited review fee 0.13 0.12 0.21 0.18 - -

4) Certification charges 0.07 0.13 0.04 0.03 - -

5) Reimbursement of expenses 0.01 0.01 0.45 0.70    - 0.00

Total 0.57 0.54 1.39 1.48 0.06 0.06

 * excluding service tax of ` 0.07 million (Previous year ` 0.06 million) charged to the statement of profit and loss.

51. The previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary, to make them comparable to those of the 

current year.

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of  
J. C. Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership no. 80051

Deepak Kumar Sen
General Manager & CFO

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
Company Secretary

Amal Ganguli 
Director & Chairman Audit Committee

Place : noida (u.P.)
Date : May 6, 2015
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Independent Auditor's Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF TRIVENI TURBINE LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of TRIVENI TURBINE  LIMITED (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the 
Group”) comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then 
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
consolidated financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Group and for preventing and detecting  frauds  and other  
irregularities;  the selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, 
as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. While conducting the 
audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, 
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report 
referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Act 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as 
at 31st March, 2015, and their consolidated profit and their 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the financial statements of one 
subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of ` 1,132.77 million as at 31st March, 2015, 
total revenues of ` 758.47 million and net cash flows 
amounting to ` 49.97 million for the year ended on 
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. These financial statements have been audited 
by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us 
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
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financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and 
our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of 
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report of the 
other auditor.

b) We did not audit the financial statements of two 
subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of ` 10.43 million as at 31st March, 2015, total 
revenues of ` 5.24 million and net cash flows amounting 
to ` 5.28 million for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. 
These financial statements are unaudited and have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms 
of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act 
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is 
based solely on such unaudited financial statements. 
In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us by the Management, these 
financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our 
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor 
and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 
of the Act, based on the comments in the auditor’s 
report of the Holding company and subsidiary company 
incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit and on the consideration of report of other 
auditor on separate financial statements of a subsidiary 
as mentioned in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters 
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept 
so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the report of the other auditor.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
31st March, 2015 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company and the report 
of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of 
the Group companies, incorporated in India is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us 
and based on the consideration of the report of 
other auditor on separate financial statements of a 
subsidiary as mentioned in sub-paragraph (a) of the 
Other Matters paragraph:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose 
the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies. 
Refer Note 30 to the consolidated financial 
statements.

ii)  The Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies did not have any material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts.

iii)  There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company, and its subsidiary company, 
incorporated in India.

For J.C. Bhalla and Co.
 Chartered Accountants

FRN : 001111N

 Sudhir Mallick
Place : Noida (U.P.)  Partner        
Date : May 6, 2015 Membership No. 80051 
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Annexure to Independent Auditor's Report 

Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report 
of even date under the heading “Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements” to the members of Triveni Turbine 
Limited on the consolidated financial statements as of and for 
the year ended March 31, 2015. The following statement is 
based on the comments in the Independent Auditor’s Report 
on the standalone financial statements of the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India.

We report that:

1) a)  In our opinion and based on the report of the other 
auditor, the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India have maintained proper 
records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

 b)  In our opinion and based on the report of the other 
auditor, the fixed assets have been physically verified 
by the respective management during the year and  no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification 
as compared to the  book records.  The frequency 
of verification is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company 
incorporated in India and nature of their activities.

2)  a) In our opinion and based on the report of the other 
auditor, inventories have been physically verified by 
the respective management of the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary company incorporated in India to the 
extent practicable at reasonable intervals during the 
year. The frequency of such verification is reasonable.

  b) In our opinion and according to information given to 
us and based on the report of the other auditor, the 
procedures for physical verification of the inventories 
followed by the respective management are reasonable 
and adequate in relation to the size of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in 
India and nature of their respective businesses. 

  c) In our opinion and based on the report of the other 
auditor, the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India are maintaining proper 
records of inventory.  The discrepancies noticed on  
physical verification as compared to the book records 
were not material having regard to the size and nature 
of the operations of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India and have 
been properly adjusted in the books of account. 

3) In our opinion and based on the report of the other 
auditor, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company 

incorporated in India have not granted any loan, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act.  Accordingly paragraphs 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of 
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015  are not 
applicable. 

4) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us  and based on the report of the 
other auditor of its subsidiary company incorporated in 
India, and having regard to the unique and specialized 
nature of the certain items involved, there are adequate 
internal control procedures commensurate with the size 
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company 
incorporated in India and the nature of  their respective 
businesses for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets 
and for the sale of goods and services.  During the course 
of our and other auditor’s audit, no continuing failure to 
correct major weaknesses in internal control system has 
been observed in any of these companies.

5)  In our opinion and according to information given to us 
and based on the report of the other auditor, the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India 
have not accepted any deposits from the public under the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act or other relevant 
provisions of the Act and rules framed there under.

6)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on the report of the 
other auditor, the Central Government has not prescribed 
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of 
the Act for any of the products manufactured and services 
rendered by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India for the year.

7) a)  In our opinion and based on the report of the other 
auditor, the Holding Company is generally regular and 
its subsidiary company incorporated in India is regular 
in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, 
service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, 
cess and other statutory dues applicable to it except for 
slight delay in deposit of advance income tax dues in 
case of the said subsidiary company.  According  to the 
information and explanations given to us   and based 
on the report of other auditor of its subsidiary company 
incorporated in India, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears as at 
March 31, 2015 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 



109

STANDALONE FINANCIALS  |  Consolidated finanCials

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSMANAGEMENT STATEMENTSCORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORy REPORTS 

Annual Report 2014-15TRIVENI TURBINE LIMITED

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the report of the other auditor 
of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax, customs duty, value added 
tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. Also, In case of a subsidiary company there are 
no dues of income tax, service tax and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. Disputed 
income tax, service tax and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of matters pending before appropriate 
authorities by the Holding Company are as under:

S.
No.

Name of the
Statue

Nature of
Dues

Amount
(` in Million)

Amount
Paid

(` in Million)

Period to
which it
relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

1) Income-tax Act 1961 Income-tax 4.58 - Fy 2010-11 Commissioner of Income-
tax (Appeals)

2) Income-tax Act 1961 Income-tax 0.25 - Fy 2011-12 Commissioner of Income-
tax (Appeals)

3) Finance 
Act 1994 

Service Tax
Interest
Penalty

3.25
3.14
3.25

3.57 Fy 2008-09 to
Fy 2011-12

CESTAT, Bangalore

4) Finance Act 
1994

Service Tax
Interest
Penalty 

10.32
12.67
10.32

1.27 Fy 2007-08 to
Fy 2011-12

CESTAT, Bangalore

5) Central Excise
Act, 1944

Excise Duty
Interest
Penalty

2.16
2.47
2.16

0.09 Fy 2007-08 CESTAT, Bangalore

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the report of the other auditor 
of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956(1 of 1956) 
and rules made thereunder. 

8) On a consolidated basis, the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India do not have 
accumulated losses as at March 31, 2015 and have not 
incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year.

9) In our opinion and according to information given to us 
and based on the report of the other auditor, the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India 
have not defaulted in repayment of their respective dues 
to their banks during the year. The Holding Company 
and its subsidiary company incorporated in India have no 
outstanding dues in respect of financial institutions or 
debenture holders.

10) In our opinion and according to information given to us 
and based on the report of the other auditor, the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India 
have not given any guarantee for loans taken by others 
from banks or financial institutions. 

11)  In our opinion and according to information given to us 
and based on the report of the other auditor, the term 
loans have been applied for the purpose for which they 
were raised by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company, incorporated in India.

12) During the course of examination of the books of accounts 
and records, of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and 
according to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on the report of the other auditor, no instances 
of fraud on or by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India have been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : May 6,  2015

For J.C. Bhalla and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
  Partner        

Membership No. 80051 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March 2015

(`  In Million)

Particulars Note No.  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
1. Shareholder's Funds
 Share capital 2  329.97  329.94 
 Reserves and surplus 3  1,956.30  1,417.65 

 2,286.27  1,747.59 
2.  Minority interest  67.45  40.52 
3. Non-current liabilities
 Long-term borrowings 4  122.68  118.65 
 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5  77.35  96.43 
 Other long-term liabilities 6  -    8.06 
 Long-term provisions 7  44.75  34.20 

 244.78  257.34 
4. Current liabilities
 Short-term borrowings 8  6.60  69.19 
 Trade payables 9  1,324.48  1,357.24 
 Other current liabilities 10  1,415.22  1,084.10 
 Short-term provisions 7  407.33  400.94 

 3,153.63  2,911.47 
TOTAL  5,752.13  4,956.92 

II ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
 Fixed assets
 (i) Tangible assets 11  1,476.75  1,019.77 
 (ii) Intangible assets 12  73.93  92.65 
 (iii) Capital work-in-progress  61.02  192.05 

 1,611.70  1,304.47 
 Long-term loans and advances 13  111.32  514.77 
 Other non-current assets 18  169.43  114.81

 1,892.45  1,934.05 
2. Current assets
 Current Investments 14  228.97  -   
 Inventories 15  1,348.89  1,116.20 
 Trade receivables 16  1,482.64  1,125.85 
 Cash and bank balances 17  108.14  92.22 
 Short-term loans and advances 13  554.72  232.98 
 Other current assets 18  136.32  455.62 

 3,859.68  3,022.87 
TOTAL  5,752.13  4,956.92 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying Note Nos. 1 to 50  form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of  
J. C. Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Deepak Kumar Sen
General Manager & CFO

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
Company Secretary

Amal Ganguli 
Director & Chairman Audit Committee

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : May 6, 2015
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(` in Million)

Particulars Note No.  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Continuing operations
INCOME
Revenue from operations (gross) 19  6,670.42  5,340.42 

Less : Excise duty  162.75  160.88 

Revenue from operations (net)  6,507.67  5,179.54 

Other Income 20  340.85  82.29 

Total revenue   6,848.52  5,261.83 
EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 21  3,903.96  3,131.20 

Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 22  (74.94)  (293.15)

Employee benefit expenses 23  621.58  578.50 

Other expenses 24  831.56  701.35 

Total  5,282.16  4,117.90 
Earnings before exceptional item,extraordinary item,interest, tax,depreciation 
and amortisation (EBITDA)

 1,566.36  1,143.93 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 25  157.76  135.36 

Finance costs 26  17.54  11.75 

Profit before exceptional item,extraordinary item and tax  1,391.06  996.82 
Exceptional item 27  27.98  -   

Profit before extraordinary item and tax  1,363.08  996.82 
Extraordinary item  -    -   

Profit before tax  1,363.08  996.82 
Tax expense 28  430.89  329.09 

Profit after tax but before Minority interest  932.19  667.73 
Less/(Add): Minority interest in subsidiary  26.93  (11.83)

Profit for the year after Minority interest  905.26  679.56 
Earning per equity share of `  1/- each 29

 Basic (in ` )  2.74  2.06 

 Diluted (in ` )  2.74  2.06 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying Note Nos. 1 to 50  form an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss  
for the year ended 31st March 2015

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of  
J. C. Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Deepak Kumar Sen
General Manager & CFO

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
Company Secretary

Amal Ganguli 
Director & Chairman Audit Committee

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : May 6, 2015
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(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax  1,363.08  996.82 

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation / amortisation  157.76  135.36 

Loss on sale of fixed assets  1.23  3.72 

Net gain on sale of current investments  (13.54)  (11.36)

Exchange difference (Translation Reserve)  (0.01)  -   

Interest expense  17.54  11.75 

Interest income  (10.10)  (3.14)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,515.96  1,133.15 

Movements in working capital :

Change in Liabilities  282.07  366.39 

Change in Trade Receivables  (411.40)  5.10 

Change in Inventories  (232.70)  (451.09)

Change in Loans and Advances  (287.93)  (72.07)

Change in Other Current Assets  319.72  (304.19)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  1,185.72  677.29 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (462.25)  (302.63)

Corporate Social Responsibility payment  (17.61)  -   

Net cash flow from / (used in ) operating activities (A)  705.86  374.66 
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets  (112.69)  (532.21)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  2.01  0.28 

Purchase of current investments  (2,143.40)  (1,120.00)

Proceeds from sale / maturity of current investments  1,927.97  1,181.36 

Bank deposits (having original  maturity of more than three months)  (26.85)  20.11 

Interest received  9.67  3.66 

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)  (343.29)  (446.80)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  
for the year ended 31st March 2015
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  
for the year ended 31st March 2015

(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital  1.44  3.35 

Redemption of preference share capital  -    (28.00)

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  3.84  122.42 

Repayment of long-term borrowings  (0.15)  (4.53)

Increase / (Decrease) in of short-term borrowings  (62.59)  69.19 

Interest paid  (7.54)  (6.10)

Dividend paid on equity shares  (263.81)  (249.79)

Tax on equity dividend paid  (44.86)  (42.49)

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)  (373.67)  (135.95)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C)  (11.11)  (208.09)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  91.61  299.70 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  80.50  91.61 

As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of  
J. C. Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Deepak Kumar Sen
General Manager & CFO

Dhruv M. Sawhney 
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajiv Sawhney
Company Secretary

Amal Ganguli 
Director & Chairman Audit Committee

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : May 6, 2015
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis and Principles of Consolidation
i) The consolidated financial statements of 

Triveni Turbine Ltd and its subsidiaries (“the 
Group”/“the Company”) have been prepared  
in accordance with the applicable accounting 
standard relating to preparation of consolidated 
financial statements.

ii) The consolidated financial statements comprise 
the financial statements of following entities :

•	 Triveni Turbine Ltd (TTL), the holding 
company, incorporated in India

•	 GE Triveni Ltd (GETL), a subsidiary company, 
incorporated in India and in which TTL 
holds fifty percent of the equity share 
capital plus one share.

•	 Triveni Turbine Europe Pvt Ltd (TTEPL), 
a wholly owned subsidiary  company 
incorporated in United Kingdom.

•	 Triveni Turbine DMCC (TTD), a wholly 
owned subsidiary company of TTEPL, 
incorporated in the United Arab Emirates.  

iii) The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared by a line-by-line consolidation using 
uniform accounting policies. Inter-company 
transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

b) Basis of Preparation
   The financial statements of the Group have been 

prepared as a going concern on an accrual basis 
of accounting under the historical cost convention 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in India. The financial statements comply in 
all material respects with the applicable accounting 
standards notified under the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) in accordance 
with section 133  of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

   All assets and liabilities have been classified as current 
or non-current as per the criteria set out in Schedule 
III of the Companies Act, 2013.  In line with the 
accounting and disclosure standards applicable and 
normal operating cycle of the main product, i.e., 
manufacture and supply of turbine packages, the 
Group has considered a period of 12 months for the 
purpose of determination of classification between 
current and non-current assets and liabilities.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2015

c) Use of Estimates
   The presentation of financial statements requires 

estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Differences between the actual results and estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the results are 
known/materialise.

d) Fixed Assets
   Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less 

accumulated depreciation. Cost includes taxes, duties 
(excluding excise duty and VAT for which CENVAT/
VAT credit is available), freight and other incidental 
expenses relating to acquisition and installation of such 
fixed assets.

e) Recognition of Revenue
   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 

that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following 
specific recognition criteria are applied for revenue 
recognition:

i) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised 
when all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have been passed to 
the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The 
Group collects sales taxes and/ or value added 
taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and 
therefore, these are not economic benefits 
flowing to the Group and accordingly they are 
excluded from revenue. Excise duty deducted 
from revenue (gross) is the amount that is 
included in the revenue (gross).

ii) In contracts involving the rendering of services, 
revenue is recognised as and when the services 
are rendered. The Group collects service tax on 
behalf of the government and therefore, it is not 
an economic benefit flowing to the Group and 
accordingly it is excluded from revenue. 

iii) Revenue from construction contracts is 
recognised on the percentage of completion 
method, measured by the proportion that 
contract costs incurred for work performed till 
the reporting date bear to the estimated total 
contract cost. Contract cost for this purpose 
includes:

a) Costs that relate directly to the specific 
contract;
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b) Costs that are attributable to contract 
activity in general and can be allocated to 
the contract; and

c) Such other costs as are specifically 
chargeable to the customer under the terms 
of the contract.

 Foreseeable losses, if any, are provided for 
immediately.

f) Foreign Currency Transactions
i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies 

are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the 
dates of the transactions.

ii) Foreign currency monetary items (including 
forward contracts) are translated at rates 
prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange 
differences arising on settlement of transactions 
and translation of monetary items (including 
forward contracts) are recognised as income or 
expense in the year in which they arise.

iii) The premium or discount on foreign currency 
forward contracts not relating to firm 
commitments or highly probable forecast 
transactions and not intended for trading or 
speculative purposes is amortised as expense or 
income over the life of each contract. 

iv) In respect of derivative contracts relating to 
firm commitments or highly probable forecast 
transactions, provision is made for mark-to-
market losses, if any, at the balance sheet 
date.  Gains, if any, on such contracts are not 
recognised till settlement.

v) Assets and liabilities pertaining to the Group’s 
foreign operations, being non-integral in nature, 
are translated at exchange rates prevailing on 
the balance sheet date.  Income and expenditure 
of such operations are translated at the average 
exchange rates prevailing during the relevant 
period of time when they are recognised.  
Exchange differences arising on consolidation 
of such non integral foreign operations are 
recognised in the “Foreign Exchange Translation 
Reserve” classified under Reserves and Surplus.

g) Investments
   Investments, that are readily realisable and intended 

to be held for not more than one year from the date 
on which such investments are made, are classified as 
current investments. All other investments are classified 
as long term investments. Current investments are 

carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on 
an individual investment basis. Long term investments 
are carried at cost.  However, provision for diminution 
is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, 
in the value of long-term investments, such reduction 
being determined and made for each investment 
individually. 

h) Inventories
i) Inventories of raw materials and components, 

stores and  spares are valued at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value. Cost for the purpose 
of valuation of inventories is determined on the  
weighted average/FIFO basis.

ii) Finished goods and work-in-progress are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. The cost of finished goods and work-in-
progress includes raw material costs, direct cost 
of conversion and allocation of indirect costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Excise duty is 
included in the value of finished goods.

iii) Patterns, loose tools, jigs and fixtures are 
amortised equally over three years.

i) Depreciation
i)  Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the 

straight line method in accordance with Schedule 
II of the Companies Act, 2013.  Schedule II 
provides the useful lives of various categories 
of fixed assets and allows the Company to use 
higher / lower useful lives and residual values if 
such lives and residual values can be technically 
supported and the  justification for any difference 
is disclosed in the financial statements. 

 Accordingly, the management has re-estimated 
the useful lives and residual values of all its 
fixed assets and adopted useful lives as stated 
in Schedule II along with residual values of 
5% except for the following in the case of the 
holding company:

§	 Based on the experience and assessment, 
mobile phones costing `  5,000/- or more 
are depreciated over 2 years.

§	 Assets costing less than `  5,000/-  are fully 
depreciated  in the year of purchase.

ii) Double or triple shift depreciation, as the case 
may be, is provided in respect of machines on the 
basis of actual number of days for which such 
machines work on double or triple shift.
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iii) Intangible assets are recognised as specified in the 
applicable accounting standard and are amortised 
as follows:

Particulars Period of 

amortization
Computer software 36 months

Website development cost 36 months

Design and drawings 72 months

iv) Technical Know-how

 The cost relating to Technical Know-how, which 
is acquired, are capitalised and amortised on 
a straight-line basis over their useful lives, not 

exceeding ten years.  

j) Employee Benefits
i)  Short term Employee Benefits

 All employee benefits payable wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render related services are classified 
as short term employee benefits and are 
recognised as expenses in the period in which 
the employees render the related service.  The 
Group recognises the undiscounted amount 
of short term employee benefits expected to 
be paid (including compensated absences) in 
exchange for services rendered, as a liability.

ii) Post-employment benefits

a) Defined contribution plans: 

Defined contribution plans are retirement 
benefit plans under which the Group pays 
fixed contributions to separate entities 
(funds) or financial institutions or state 
managed benefit schemes. The Group’s 
contributions under the Employees’ 
Provident Fund Scheme, Employees’ State 
Insurance Scheme and Officers’ Pension 
Scheme for certain employees are defined 
contributions plans. The Contributions paid/
payable under the schemes are recognised 
during the period in which the employees 
render the related service.

b) Defined benefit plans: 

Defined benefit plans are plans under 
which the Group pays certain defined 
benefits to employees following their 
retirement/resignation/death based on rules 
framed for such schemes. The Employees’ 
Gratuity Scheme is a defined benefit plan. 
The present value of the obligation under 
a defined benefit plan is determined 
based on the actuarial valuation using 
the Projected Unit Credit method, which 

recognises each period of service as giving 
rise to an additional unit of employee 
benefit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present 
value of the estimated future cash flows. 
The discount rate used for determining 
the present value of the obligation under a 
defined benefit plan is based on the market 
yields on Government securities as at the 
balance sheet date, with maturity periods 
approximating the terms of the related 
obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
immediately in the statement of profit and 
loss.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or 
settlement of any defined benefits plan 
are recognised when the curtailment of 
settlement occurs. Past service cost is 
recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the 
benefits become vested.

iii) Other long-term employee benefits

 Compensated absences which are not expected 
to occur within twelve months after the end 
of the period in which the employee renders 
related services are recognised as a liability at the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the balance sheet date on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation. The discount rates used for 
determining the present values of the obligation 
under defined benefit plans, are based on the 
appropriate market yields on Government 
securities as at the balance sheet date.

iv) Employee Stock Options :

 Compensation cost in respect of stock options 
granted to eligible employees is recognised 
using the intrinsic value of the stock options 
and is amortised over the vesting period of such 
options granted.

k) Borrowing costs
 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition 

of qualifying assets are capitalised upto the period 
such assets are ready for their intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are charged in the statement of profit 
and loss.

l) Taxes on Income
i)  Current tax on income is determined on the 

basis of taxable income computed in accordance   
with the applicable provisions of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961.
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ii)   Deferred tax is recognised for all timing 
differences between the accounting income 
and the taxable income for the year and 
quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted 
or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet 
date.

iii)  Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried 
forward only to the extent that there is a 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised, except in 
the case of unabsorbed depreciation or carried 
forward of losses under the Income-tax Act 
1961, where deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that there is virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against 
which deferred tax assets can be realised.

iv)  Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit is recognised 
as an asset only when and to the extent there 
is convincing evidence that the Group will be 
in a position to avail of such credit under the 
provisions of the Income-tax Act 1961.

m) Impairment of Assets
Impairment of individual assets/cash generating unit (a 
group of assets that generates identified independent 
cash flows) are identified using external and internal 
sources of information and impairment loss, if any, is 
determined and recognised in accordance with the 
applicable accounting standard.

n) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and 
Contingent assets
Provisions are recognised, if:  

a)  the Group has a present obligation as a result of 
a past event.;

b)  a probable outflow of resources is expected to 
settle the obligation ;and

c)  the amount of the obligation can be reliably 
estimated.

 Reimbursements expected in respect of 
expenditure required to settle a provision are 
recognised only when it is virtually certain that 
the reimbursement will be received.

 A contingent liability is disclosed in the case of

a) a present obligation arising from a past event, 
when it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation; or

b) a possible obligation, unless the probability of 
outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised .

o) Research and Development
Revenue expenditure on research and development 
is charged under the respective heads of account. 
Capital expenditure on research and development is 
included as part of fixed assets and depreciated on the 
same basis as other fixed assets.

p) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
CSR spends by the Company,  not being a part of 
its normal business activity, are considered as an 
appropriation of profit. No provision is made in the 
accounts in respect of any shortfall in CSR spends, 
as determined in accordance with section 135 of the 
Companies Act 2013 unless a contractual liability has 
been incurred under a CSR activity already undertaken 
by the Group.
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2. Share Capital
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

AUTHORISED
450,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 1/- each  450.00  450.00 

5,000,000 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 10/- each  50.00  50.00 

 500.00  500.00 
ISSUED,SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity

329,972,150 (329,944,550) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each  329.97  329.94 

 329.97  329.94 

 a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
  Equity Shares

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
No of Shares  ` in Million No of Shares  ` in Million 

At the beginning of the year  329,944,550  329.94  329,880,150  329.88 

Add: Issued during the year pursuant to 
exercise of employee stock options  27,600  0.03  64,400  0.06 

Outstanding at the end of the year  329,972,150  329.97  329,944,550  329.94 

  Preference Shares

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
No of Shares  ` in Million No of Shares  ` in Million 

At the beginning of the year  -    -    2,800,000  28.00 

Less : Redeemed during the year  -    -    2,800,000  28.00 

Outstanding at the end of the year  -    -    -    -   

 b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

   The holding Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of `  1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by 
the Board of Directors of the holding Company is subject to the approval of its shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. 

   In the event of liquidation of the holding Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets 
of the Company, after meeting all liabilities and distribution of all  preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

 c)  Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash (during the 5 
years immediately preceding)

   257,880,150 equity shares of ` 1/- each of the holding Company were allotted on May 10, 2011,as fully paid up to the 
shareholders of Triveni Engineering & Industries Ltd (TEIL) in the ratio of one equity share for every one equity share held by 
them in TEIL, pursuant to the Scheme.

 d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the holding Company

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
No of Shares % holding No of Shares % holding

Equity Shares of `  1/- each fully paid
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited 72,000,000 21.82 72,000,000 21.82
Dhruv M. Sawhney 24,924,645 7.55 28,124,645 8.52
Nalanda India Fund Limited 25,788,000 7.82 25,788,000 7.82
Umananda Trade & Finance Limited 20,157,589 6.11 20,157,589 6.11
Rati Sawhney 13,706,914 4.15 16,824,914 5.10
Tarnik Investments & Trading Limited 18,680,527 5.66 18,680,527 5.66

 e) Shares reserved for issue under options - Nil
  Refer Note No. 36
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3. Reserves and  Surplus

General reserve (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last consolidated financial statements  700.00  600.00 

Add: Amount transferred from surplus in the consolidated statement of profit and loss  150.00  100.00 

Less: Impact of revision of useful lives of fixed assets pursuant to Schedule II to the

  Companies Act,2013 (Refer Note No.34)  10.77  -   

Closing balance  839.23  700.00 

Capital redemption reserve (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last consolidated financial statements  28.00  -   

Add: Amount transferred from surplus in the consolidated statement of profit and loss  -    28.00 

Closing Balance  28.00  28.00 

Securities premium    (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last consolidated financial statements  3.28  -   

Add: Amount received during the year pursuant to exercise of employee stock options  1.41  3.28 

Closing Balance  4.69  3.28 

Foreign exchange translation reserve (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last consolidated financial statements  -    -   

Add/(Less): Exchange fluctuation on consolidation for the year  (0.01)  -   

Closing Balance  (0.01)  -   

Surplus in the consolidated statement of profit and loss (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Balance as per the last consolidated financial statements  686.37  424.75 
Add: Net profit after tax transferred from consolidated statement of profit and loss  905.26  679.56 
Amount available for appropriation (A)  1,591.63  1,104.31 
Appropriations:
         Transfer to General reserve  150.00  100.00 
         Transfer to Capital redemption  reserve  -    28.00 
         Corporate social responsibility expenditure  22.41  -   
         Dividend on equity shares (Interim)  82.50  65.98 
         Dividend on equity shares (Earlier year)  0.02  0.01 
         Dividend on preference share  -    0.37 
         Proposed dividend on equity shares  197.98  181.47 
         Tax on equity dividend (Interim)  14.03  11.21 
         Tax on equity dividend (Earlier year) [Current year ` 3,484/- (Previous year ` 1,006/-)] 0.00   0.00   
         Tax on preference dividend  -    0.06 
         Tax on proposed equity dividend  40.30  30.84 
Total appropriations (B)  507.24  417.94 
Net surplus in the consolidated statement of profit and loss (A-B)  1,084.39  686.37 
Total reserves and surplus  1,956.30  1,417.65 
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4. Long-Term Borrowings (` in Million)

Particulars Non- Current portion  Current maturities

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Term loans 
- From Banks

 Rupee term loans  -    0.20  0.20  1.06 

 Foreign currency loan  117.59  112.80  -    -   

- From Others  5.09  5.65  3.14  2.62 

 122.68  118.65  3.34  3.68 

The above amount includes:

 Secured loans  5.09  5.85  3.34  3.68 

 Unsecured loans  117.59  112.80  -    -   

 122.68  118.65  3.34  3.68 

Less :  Amount disclosed under the head “other 
current liabilities” (Refer Note No 10)  3.34  3.68 

 122.68  118.65  -    -   

 Details of Securities and other terms :-

Name of the Bank / Others Total loan 
outstanding  
(` in Million) 

Repayment terms 
of loan 
outstanding 

Rate of interest 
(per annum)

Nature of 
Security

1. Axis Bank (Vehicle loan)  0.20 

 (1.26)

In equated monthly 
instalments ranging 
from Nil to 8 months 
(5 to 20 months)

At fixed rates 
ranging from 9.90% 
to 10.00%

Secured by 
hypothecation of 
vehicles acquired 
under the respective 
vehicle loans.

2. Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd  (Vehicle loan)  8.23 

 (8.27) 

In equated monthly 
instalments ranging 
from 15 to 56 
months (24 to 46 
months)

At fixed rates 
ranging from 9.93% 
to 10.92%

Secured by 
hypothecation of 
vehicles acquired 
under the respective 
vehicle loans.

3. Bank of India, New york, U.S.A.  117,59 

  (112.80) 

Initial term of one 
year and roll over 
term of upto two 
years.

USD Libor plus 55 
basis points p.a.

Unsecured

 Figures in brackets relate to the previous year. 

5. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

 (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Deferred Tax Liabilities :
Difference in net book value of fixed assets as per books and tax laws  145.48  145.51 

Deferred Tax Assets :

Expenses allowable on payment basis  11.95  12.01 

Unabsorbed depreciation/business loss *  30.60  6.97 

Others  25.58  30.10 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities  77.35  96.43 

 * Represents unabsorbed depreciation / business losses in respect of subsidiary company.
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6. Other Long-Term Liabilities

 (` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Deposit from customers (Refer Note No.33)  -    8.06 

 -    8.06 

7. Provisions

 (` in Million)

Particulars Long-term Short-term

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Provisions for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note No. 44)  9.13  4.70 0.00 0.00

Compensated absences  18.35  18.00  4.72  3.36 

Other provisions
Proposed dividend *  -    -    197.98  181.47 

Tax on proposed dividend  -    -    40.30  30.84 

Warranty  17.27  11.50  14.48  17.96 

Liquidated damages  -    -    38.66  49.50 

Cost to completion  -    -    62.43  75.27 

Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note No. 45)  -    -    4.80  -   

Excise duty on closing stock  -    -    16.84  -   

Income Tax [net of advance tax of  
` 455.36 million (` 761.65 million) & includes 
wealth tax ` 0.18 million (` 0.12 million)]  -    -    27.12  42.54 

 44.75  34.20  407.33  400.94 

*  Represents dividend proposed by the Board of Directors of the holding Company at ` 0.60 (previous year ` 0.55) per equity share of  
` 1/- each, which is subject to the approval by the shareholders. 

Disclosures required by Accounting Standard (AS) 29 - Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets. 

 Movement in provisions
 (` in Million)

Particulars of disclosure  Nature of Provisions 

 Warranty  Liquidated 
Damages 

 Cost to 
Completion 

Loss on foreign 
 exchange 
derivatives

Opening balance  29.46  49.50  75.27  -   
 (66.90)  (60.43)  (149.56)  (1.79)

Provision made during the year  30.89  4.38  2.10  -   
 (19.69)  (1.11)  (5.50)  (-) 

Provision used during the year  11.61  0.91  12.80  -   
 (40.67)  (2.18)  (28.19)  (-) 

Provision no longer required reversed  16.99  14.31  2.14  -   
 (16.46)  (9.86)  (51.60)  (1.79)

Closing balance  31.75  38.66  62.43  -   
 (29.46)  (49.50)  (75.27)  (-) 

Figures in brackets relate to the previous year.
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Nature of Provisions

Warranties: The Group gives warranties on certain products and services, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail to 
perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provisions made as at March 31, 2015 represent the amount of the expected 
cost of meeting such obligations. The timing of the outflows is expected to be within the period of two years.

Liquidated damages: In respect of certain products, the Group has contractual obligations towards customers for matters 
relating to delivery and performance. The provisions represent the amount  estimated to meet the cost of such obligations. The 
timing of the outflow is expected to be within one year.

Cost to completion: The provision represents the costs of materials and services required for erection and integeration of turbine 
packages at the site, prior to commissioning.

Loss on foreign exchange derivatives: Represents provision made for mark-to-market losses on derivative contracts outstanding 
at the year-end which were entered into for hedging certain firm  commitments or highly probable forecast transactions.

8. Short-Term Borrowings  
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Repayable on demand (Secured)

Cash credits from banks *  6.60  69.19 

 6.60  69.19 

*  Secured by hypothecation of stocks-in-trade, raw materials, stores & spare parts, work-in-progress and trade receivables and a second charge 
on movable and immovable assets both present and future on a pari-passu basis. Interest rates range from 12.25% to 12.50% per annum.

9. Trade Payables
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Trade payables (Refer Note No.38 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)  1,324.48  1,357.24 

 1,324.48  1,357.24 

10. Other Current Liabilities
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

 Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note No 4)  3.34  3.68 
 Creditors for purchases of capital assets  5.52  22.47 
 Advances from customers  1,337.23  995.59 
 Security deposits  0.02  0.02 
 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.70  0.87 
 Interest payable pursuant to court decision (Refer Note No.33)  10.17  -   
 Employee benefits & other dues  16.67  22.70 
 Deferred premium on foreign exchange forward contracts  11.04  17.21 
 Indirect taxes & duties payable  2.47  2.11 
 Statutory dues relating to employees  5.15  5.22 
 Income tax deducted at source  11.52  8.13 
 Unpaid dividend *  0.78  0.61 
 Creditors for other liabilities  10.61  5.49 

 1,415.22  1,084.10 
* There are no amounts as at the end of the year which are due and outstanding to be credited to the Investors Education and Protection Fund.
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11. Tangible Assets 
(` in Million)

Particulars Land Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and Vehicles Computers Total
Freehold* Machinery Equipment Fixtures  

Gross block
 As at April 1, 2013  36.42  334.28  1,116.47  25.77  43.23  28.02  61.35  1,645.54 

Additions  -    7.58  0.93  0.46  0.45  6.57  4.71  20.70 
Deductions  -    -    13.06  -    -    -    1.61  14.67 

As at March 31,  2014  36.42  341.86  1,104.34  26.23  43.68  34.59  64.45  1,651.57 
Additions  388.65  0.42  197.13  1.73  1.45  7.34  11.10  607.82 
Deductions  -    0.01  0.57  2.57  2.95  3.90  3.40  13.40 

As at March 31,  2015  425.07  342.27  1,300.90  25.39  42.18  38.03  72.15  2,245.99 
Depreciation
 As at April 1, 2013  -    74.24  385.92  7.61  15.64  6.10  43.05  532.56 

Charge for the 
year  -    10.89  87.21  1.30  2.61  3.03  4.87  109.91 
Deductions  -    -    9.14  -    -    -    1.53  10.67 

As at March 31,  2014  -    85.13  463.99  8.91  18.25  9.13  46.39  631.80 
Charge for the 
year**  -    7.95  99.43  6.93  6.54  3.82  6.62  131.29 
Transfer 
to General 
Reserve#  -    8.04  0.26  4.40  0.33  0.32  2.96  16.31 
Deductions  -    0.01  0.23  2.39  2.80  1.50  3.23  10.16 

As at March 31,  2015  -    101.11  563.45  17.85  22.32  11.77  52.74  769.24 
Net Block
As at March 31,  2014  36.42  256.73  640.35  17.32  25.43  25.46  18.06  1,019.77 
As at March 31,  2015  425.07  241.16  737.45  7.54  19.86  26.26  19.41  1,476.75 

 *  Refer Note No. 46.  
** Includes amount capitalised ` 0.12 Million (Previous year ` Nil)  
#   Refer Note No. 34.  

12. Intangible Assets (Other than internally generated)
(` in Million)

Particulars Computer Software Website Technical Knowhow Design and Drawings Total

Gross block
 As at April 1, 2013  108.06  1.25  41.16  58.19  208.66 

Additions  12.35  0.18  -    28.31  40.84 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31,  2014  120.41  1.43  41.16  86.50  249.50 
Additions  7.37  -    -    0.50  7.87 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31,  2015  127.78  1.43  41.16  87.00  257.37 
Amortisation
 As at April 1, 2013  89.85  0.31  4.22  37.02  131.40 

Charge for the year  12.72  0.45  4.12  8.16  25.45 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31,  2014  102.57  0.76  8.34  45.18  156.85 
Charge for the year  11.03  0.44  4.12  11.00  26.59 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
As at March 31,  2015  113.60  1.20  12.46  56.18  183.44 

Net Block

As at March 31,  2014  17.84  0.67  32.82  41.32  92.65 
As at March 31,  2015  14.18  0.23  28.70  30.82  73.93 
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13. Loans and Advances

 (`  in Million)

Particulars Long-term Short-term

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Capital advances

Unsecured, considered good  1.78  373.62  -    -   

(A)  1.78  373.62  -    -   

Security deposit

Unsecured, considered good  2.59  2.76  1.02  0.91 

(B)  2.59  2.76  1.02  0.91 
Other loans and advances 

Unsecured, considered good  1.73  2.02  23.78  17.92 

Prepaid expenses  0.30  0.47  2.45  2.48 

Loans to employees  -    -    279.96  123.47 

Advances to suppliers  5.33  5.00  7.87  12.83 

Service tax recoverable  -    -    48.76  19.86 

Excise duty (Cenvat Balance)  -    -    1.88  3.89 

Earnest money deposit  -    -    1.25  0.87 

Works contract tax recoverable  3.50  -    -    -   

Advance payment of tax  12.88  14.00  -    -   

Amount recoverable from hedging banks  -    -    89.48  6.30 

VAT recoverable  82.89  90.80  97.32  23.90 

Excise duty recoverable (Refer Note No. 33)  0.09  25.87  0.49  20.43 

Other amounts recoverable  0.23  0.23  0.46  0.12 

(C)  106.95  138.39  553.70  232.07 
Total (A+B+C)  111.32  514.77  554.72  232.98 

14. Current Investments  
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

(valued at lower of cost or fair value)

UNQUOTED

      134,076.954 (Nil) Mutual Funds Units of Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Growth - Direct Plan  30.00  -   

      787,711.698 (Nil) Mutual Funds Units of JM High Liquidity Fund - Direct Growth Option  30.00  -   

      23,733.05 (Nil) Mutual Funds Units of Axis Liquidity Fund - Direct Growth Option  36.76  -   

      48,356.25 (Nil) Mutual Funds Units of ICICI Prudential Liquidity Plan - Direct Growth Option  10.00  -   

      20,901.54 (Nil) Mutual Funds Units of IDBI Liquidity Fund - Direct Growth Option  31.30  -   

      30,105.69 (Nil) Mutual Funds Units of Principal Cash Management Fund - Direct Growth 
Option

 40.91  -   

      22,228.34 (Nil) Mutual Funds Units of Reliance Liquidity Fund -Cash Plan - Direct Growth 
Option

 50.00  -   

 228.97  -   
   Aggregate  book value of unquoted investments  228.97  -   
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15. Inventories 

(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw material and components [includes stock in transit  
` 29.80 million (previous year: ` 2.84 million)  581.82  440.55 

Work-in-progress  462.65  500.32 

Finished goods [Incudes stock in transit ` 134.70 million (previous year ` 160.25 million)  289.70  160.25 

Stores and spares   0.25  0.18 

Patterns     11.15  12.43 

Tools, jigs and fixtures  3.28  2.43 

Others (Scrap)  0.04  0.04 

 1,348.89  1,116.20 

16. Trade Receivables

 (` in Million)

Particulars  Non-Current Current 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Over Six Months 
Secured - considered good  -    -    -    -   

Unsecured - considered good  -    -    324.65  297.70 

Considered doubtful  -    -    42.70  48.70 

 -    -    367.35  346.40 

Less : Provision for doubtful debts  -    -    42.70  48.70 

(A)  -    -    324.65  297.70 

Others
Secured - considered good  -    -    -    -   

Unsecured - considered good  169.30  114.69  1,157.99  828.15 

(B)  169.30  114.69  1,157.99  828.15 

Total (A+B)  169.30  114.69  1,482.64  1,125.85 
Less:  Amount disclosed under other non-current 

assets (Refer Note No 18)  169.30  114.69 

 -    -    1,482.64  1,125.85 
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17. Cash and Bank Balances

 (` in Million)

Particulars  Non-Current Current 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks

Current accounts  -    -    49.10  8.81 

Demand deposits (original maturity of less 
than three months)  -    -    31.00  82.50 

Cheques /drafts on hand 
(Current year ` 738/-)   -    -   0.00  - 

Cash on hand  -    -    0.40  0.30 

(A)  -    -    80.50  91.61 
Other bank balances

Earmarked balances:

Unpaid dividend account  -    -    0.79  0.61 

Balances under lien/margin/kept as security:

Fixed/margin deposits (original maturity 
more than one year)  0.10  0.10  -    -   

Other balances:

Demand deposits (original maturity 
exceeding three months but upto one year)  -    -    26.85  -   

(B)  0.10  0.10  27.64  0.61 
Total (A+B)  0.10  0.10  108.14  92.22 

Less:  Amount disclosed under other 
non-current assets (Refer Note No.18)  0.10  0.10 

 -    -    108.14  92.22 

 18. Other Assets
 (` in Million)

Particulars  Non-Current Current 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Long-term trade receivables (Refer Note No 16)  169.30  114.69  -    -   

Non-current cash and bank balances 
(Refer Note No 17)  0.10  0.10  -    -   

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  0.03  0.02  0.61  0.19 

Due from customers (Turnkey Project revenue 
adjustment)  -    -    93.80  433.41 

Duty drawback receivable  -    -    37.78  17.72 

Unamortised premium on forward exchange 
contracts  -    -    4.13  4.30 

 169.43  114.81  136.32  455.62 
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19. Revenue from Operations
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Sale of products
Finished goods

Turbines (including related equipments and supplies)  4,837.73  3,167.09 

Spares  1,199.49  755.57 

Others  -    0.21 

Sale of services

Servicing, operation and maintenance  377.77  440.64 

Erection, commissioning and engineering services  58.85  153.69 

Turbine extended scope project  145.47  790.53 

Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap  3.96  6.85 

Selling commission  -    0.06 

Export incentives  47.15  25.78 

 6,670.42  5,340.42 

20. Other Income
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Profit on sale/redemption of current investment  13.54  11.36 

Rent received (Current year ` 3,000/-) 0.00    0.04 

Interest income 

Bank Deposits  9.95  1.39 

Customers  0.15  1.75 

Exchange fluctuation gains *  290.67  1.79 

Credit balances written back  6.99  2.90 

Provision of liquidated damages reversed (net) - (Refer Note No 7)  9.93  8.75 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances written back  6.00  -   

Provision of cost to completion for earlier year reversed (Refer Note No 7)  2.14  51.60 

Excess provision of expenses written back  -    1.41 

Miscellaneous Income  1.48  1.30 

 340.85  82.29 

 *  Includes premium/discount earned on foreign currency forward contracts ` 112.53 million (previous year ` Nil) and reversal of provision against  
mark to market losses ` Nil (previous year ` 1.79 million).

21. Cost of Raw Material and Components Consumed
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Stock at commencement  440.55  280.16 

Purchases  4,045.23  3,291.59 

 4,485.78  3,571.75 

Less: Stock at close  581.82  440.55 

  3,903.96  3,131.20 
Details of raw material and components consumed

Alternators, elecric panels and other direct bought-outs  1,395.19  1,299.59 

Iron and steel  410.79  249.36 

Gear boxes and accessories  440.65  337.82 

 Others  1,657.33  1,244.43 

 3,903.96  3,131.20 
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22. Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Stock at commencement

- Work-in-progress (Turbines)  500.32  367.42 

- Finished goods (Turbines)  160.25  -   

 660.57  367.42 

Stock at close

- Work-in-progress (Turbines)  462.65  500.32 

- Finished goods (Turbines)  289.70  160.25 

 752.35  660.57 

Add/(Less):Impact of excise duty on finished goods  16.84  -   

 (74.94)  (293.15)

23. Employee Benefit Expenses
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Salaries,wages and bonus  527.30  487.31 

Contributions to provident and other funds  35.89  34.97 

Gratuity  15.20  14.98 

Employee welfare  43.76  41.24 

 622.15  578.50 

Less: Amount capitalised  0.57  -   

 621.58  578.50 
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24. Other Expenses
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Stores,spares and tools consumed  140.06  106.27 

Power and fuel  22.34  18.32 

Design and engineering charges  9.92  3.16 

Repairs and maintenance

Machinery  4.63  10.31 

Building  1.73  4.28 

Others  10.19  8.95 

Travelling and conveyance  120.91  97.78 

Rent  5.54  6.58 

Rates and taxes  44.62  20.31 

Insurance  2.49  2.93 

Directors' sitting fees  2.11  0.98 

Directors' commission  6.00  5.00 

Certification & consultation  38.92  36.57 

Group shared service cost  39.18  33.96 

Bank charges and guarantee commission  19.43  14.83 

Exchange fluctuation loss *  -    31.46 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  -    10.59 

Bad debts / sundry amounts written off  22.04  2.20 

Warranty expenses [Includes provision for warranty (net of reversals) of ` 13.90 million

(Previous year: ` 3.23 million)] (Refer Note No 7)  27.78  19.06 

Payments to Auditors (Refer Note No. 48)  3.20  2.98 

Non moving /obsolete inventory written off  2.54  18.11 

Loss on sale of assets  1.23  3.72 

Packing and  forwarding  43.26  29.03 

Freight outward  70.45  59.35 

Selling commission  75.92  49.41 

Miscellaneous expenses  118.00  105.21 

 832.49  701.35 

Less: Amount capitalised  0.93  -   

 831.56  701.35 

* Net off premium/discount earned on foreign currency forward contracts ` Nil (previous year ` 36.03 million)

25. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Depreciation  131.17  109.91 

Amortisation  26.59  25.45 

 157.76  135.36 
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26. Finance Costs
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Interest expenses [Includes ` 0.20 million towards interest on income tax 
(previous year ` 0.46 million)]  5.49  6.27 

Other borrowing cost [Includes ` 1.85 million towards prior period exps (previous year ` Nil)]  2.34  0.63 

Premium paid on foreign currency forward contracts  9.71  4.85 

 17.54  11.75 

27. Exceptional Item
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Excise duty liability (including interest of ` 10.17 million) pertaining to earlier years

on dismissal of special leave petition by the Supreme Court of India (Refer Note No 33)  27.98  -   

 27.98  -   

28. Tax Expense
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

For Current year

- Current Tax Expense  457.90  318.41 

- Deferred Tax Expense/(Income)  (23.89)  13.86 

 434.01  332.27 

For Earlier years 

- Current Tax Expense/(Income)  (9.96)  (7.92)

- Deferred Tax Expense/(Income)  10.35  4.74 

 0.39  (3.18)

Less: MAT Credit Entitlement  3.51  -   

 430.89  329.09 

29. Earnings per share (EPS)
(` in Million)

Basic EPS  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Net profit after tax 905.26 679.56

Less: Dividend on preference shares (including dividend distribution tax) Nil 0.44

Adjusted net profit after tax and preference dividend  [A] 905.26 679.12

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  [B] 329,969,428 329,881,385

Basic earnings per share  ` / Share [A / B] 2.74 2.06

Diluted EPS  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Adjusted net profit / (loss) after tax and preference dividend, as above  [A] 905,26     679.12

Weighted average number of equity shares deemed to be issued under options without 
consideration, outstanding during the year [C]

Nil 1,976

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  [D=B+C] 329,969,428 329,883,361

Diluted earnings per share ` / Share [A / D] 2.74 2.06
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30. Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: 

(` in Million)

SL No Particulars Amount of Contingent Liability Amount Paid

1 Excise duty 6.79 0.09

(40.15)  (26.15)

2 Service tax 42.97 4.84

(44.52) (4.52)

3 Others 3.08 -

(2.08) (-)

Total 52.84  4.93 

(86.75) (30.67)

Figures in brackets pertains to the previous year.

The amounts shown above represent the best estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties, 
possible payments and reimbursements are dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been 
invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be, and therefore cannot be predicted accurately.  The Company 
engages reputed professional advisors to protect its interests and has been advised that it has strong a legal position against 
such disputes.

31. a)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: ` 47.65  million  (previous 
year ` 26.54 million) after adjusting advances paid aggregating ` 1.78 million (previous year ` 5.76 million).

 b)  The Company, during the previous year, had imported capital goods amounting to  ` 164.61 million under Export Promotion 
Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme at zero duty. The duty foregone is ` 44.82 million, subject to export obligation of USD 4.90 
million over a period of  6 years.

32. A charge has been created as security for non fund based facilities granted by a bank to GE Triveni Ltd (GETL), on its current 
assets (excluding assets charged to other banks) on a pari-passu basis and an exclusive charge on the moveable fixed assets, 
both present and future.

33. A claim of ` 26.15 million against the Company in respect of excise duty which was the subject matter of special leave petition 
filed by the Company before the Supreme Court of India has been decided against the Company. The disputed duty had 
already been deposited by the Company under protest and the Company had also recovered and retained as a deposit, amount 
of ` 8.06 million from its customers. Upon dismissal of its special leave petition the Company  has  during  the  year recognized 
expenses of ` 17.81  million  (net  of  recoveries  of ` 8.06 million  made from customers & ` 0.28 million  recognised in earlier 
years) and interest of  ` 10.17 million thereon,  in the statement of profit and loss as an exceptional item of expense (Note No. 
27 above).

34. In accordance with the requirements of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed 
assets have been technically assessed and revised with effect from 1st April, 2014. Accordingly, the depreciation expense for the 
current year is higher by ` 13.71 million and for the assets whose revised useful lives have expired prior to April 1, 2014, the net 
book value of ` 10.77 million (net of deferred tax of ` 5.54 million) has been adjusted from the General Reserve.

35. Title to certain fixed assets vested in the holding Company under a Scheme of Arrangement  and arising out of business 
conducted till the date the Scheme became effective, has not yet been transferred in the name of the Company. These assets 
are being held in trust, by Triveni Engineering & Industries Ltd. The requisite stamp duties, if any, on determination thereof by 
the Authorities, will be paid and accounted for by the Company appropriately.

36. 40,000  stock  options  had  been  granted  to  an  employee  of  the  holding  Company  on April 30, 2010, while he was 
an employee of Triveni Engineering & Industries Ltd. (TEIL), prior to the demerger of its steam turbine business and vesting 
of the same in the holding Company under a Scheme of Arrangement, duly approved by the Court. As per the Scheme of 
Arrangement, an employee stock option scheme styled as ‘New Stock Option Scheme’ was formulated by the Company during 
Financial year 2013-14 and the employee was granted 40,000 stock options in lieu of the stock options held by him in TEIL. 
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In accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, and in line with the best practices, adjustment was made for the corporate 
action of demerger, by adjusting the exercise price and share entitlement ratio under the options granted, so as to ensure that 
the fair value of options immediately prior to and immediately subsequent to the corporate action remained unchanged.

 Consequent to the grant of options under the ‘New Stock Option Scheme’ framed in accordance with the Scheme of 
Arrangement, the stock options were deemed to have been granted from the appointed date of the Scheme of Arrangement 
i.e.,01.10.2010. The required disclosures of the New Stock Option Scheme are as under:

(a) Employee Stock Option Scheme:

No. of Options granted 40,000

Original grant date of Options 30.04 2010

Date of grant under New Stock Option Scheme (to give effect to corporate action) 10.04.2013

Number of equity shares entitlement in respect of the Options granted under the New Stock 

Option Scheme

184,000

Vesting Plan Graded Vesting as under:

20,000 options to vest on 30.04.2011

20,000 options to vest on 30.04.2012

Normal Exercise Period Within 2 years from the date of vesting

Exercise Price per share (`) 52

(b) Movement of Options Granted

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,000 40,000

Granted during the year Nil Nil

Exercised during the year 6,000 14,000

Lapsed during the year Nil 20,000

Outstanding at the end of the year Nil 6,000

Unvested at the end of the year Nil Nil

Exercisable at the end of the year Nil 6,000

(c) Fair Valuation

  The fair value of options used to compute proforma net income and earning per equity share has been done by an independent 
professional valuer using the Black Scholes Options pricing formula.

The key assumptions in Black Scholes Options pricing for calculating fair value are as follows:

(a) Risk free rate 8.36%

(b) Option life 1.99 years

(c) Expected volatility 46.53%

(d) Expected dividend 1.20%

(e) Exercise price of each underlying share under the option ` 52

The weighted average fair value of each option of the holding Company as on the date of the corporate adjustment, issued under 
New Stock Option Scheme was ` 29.30. 
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Had the compensation cost for the stock options granted been determined based on the fair value approach, the holding 

Company’s net profit/loss and earning per share would have been the proforma amounts indicated below:
(` in Million)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

Net Profit (as reported) 905.26 679.56

Less : Preference dividend (including tax thereon) Nil 0.44

Add : Compensation expense under ESOP considered in the net profit Nil Nil

Less/ (Add) : Compensation Cost/(Compensation cost reversals) under ESOP as per fair value * Nil (0.59)

Net Profit  (fair value basis) attributable to equity shareholders 905.26 679.71

Basic earnings per share (as reported) – ` / Share 2.74 2.06

Basic earnings per share (fair value basis) – ` / Share 2.74 2.07

Diluted earnings per share (as reported) – ` / Share 2.74 2.06

Diluted earnings per share (fair value basis) – ` / Share 2.74 2.07

*  The compensation expenses on a fair value basis has been computed with reference to the fair value as on 03.05.2011, i.e., the date with 
reference to which the corporate adjustment was carried out in respect of the stock options originally granted.

37. The holding Company has incurred an expenditure of ` 61.66 million (` 80.89 million) on research and development activities  as 
shown below:

(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

a) Capital expenditure 7.71 30.21

b) Revenue expenditure 53.95 50.68

 Total 61.66 80.89

38. Based on information received from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided below:-  

(` in Million)

S. No Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 

1 Amounts due to Micro and Small enterprises as at the end of the year  

i) Principal amount 90.47 60.24

ii) Interest due on above Nil Nil

2 i) Principal amount paid after due date or    Nil Nil

 appointed day during the year Nil Nil

3 Interest due & payable (but not paid) on principal amounts paid during the year after 
the due date or appointed day. 

Nil Nil

4 Total interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at the end of the year Nil Nil

5 Further interest in respect of defaults of earlier years due and payable in current year 
upto the date when actually paid

Nil Nil

39. The Group has taken various residential and office premises under operating leases. These leases are not non-cancellable and the 

unexpired period ranges between six to forty eight months. The lease agreements are renewable by mutual consent on mutually 

agreeable terms. The Group has given refundable interest- free security deposits under certain agreements.

a)  Lease payments under operating leases aggregating ` 5.54 million (previous year ` 6.58 million) are recognised  in the 

consolidated statement of profit and loss under “Other expenses” in Note No. 24.

b) There are no minimum future lease payments as there are no non-cancellable leases.

c) There are no contingent rent expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

d) There are no sub-lease arrangements entered into by the Group.
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40. The information required to be disclosed in respect of construction contracts in progress as at the end of the year is shown below:
(` in Million)

Sl No. Particulars of disclosure  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 
Not later than one year

i) Amount of contract revenue recognized as revenue during the year 145.47 790.53

ii) Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised losses) upto 
the reporting date

1,535.65 1,390.18

iii) Advances received 157.10 157.10

iv) Retentions 169.30 114.69

v) Gross amount due from customers for contract work 93.80 433.41

vi) Gross amount due to customers for contract work - -

41. The Group primarily operates in one business segment – Power Generating Equipment and Solutions. There are no reportable 

geographical segments.

42. Information regarding Related Parties and transactions with them is given below:

 a) Related Party where control exists

Mr. Dhruv M. Sawhney-Chairman and Managing Director (Key Management Person) 

b) Details of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

Name of related Party Relationship

Triveni Engineering & Industries Ltd (TEIL) Investing company holding substantial interest

Mr. Dhruv M. Sawhney (DMS)  Chairman & Managing Director (Key Management Person)

Mr. Nikhil Sawhney (NS)  Vice Chairman and Managing Director (Key Management Person)

Mr. Tarun Sawhney (TS)  Relative of Key Management Person (Son of DMS)

Mr. Arun Mote (AM) Executive Director (Key Management Person)

Tirath Ram Shah Charitable Trust (TRSCT) Enterprise in which Key Management  Personnel or their relatives have  

significant influence
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C) Details of transactions with the related parties during the year :

(` in Million)

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction TEIL DMS NS TS AM TRSCT Total
1 Sales and rendering of services  544.63  -  -  -  -  -  544.63 

 (508.37)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (508.37)

2 Purchase of goods and receiving of  361.08  -  -  -  -  -  361.08 

services  (300.56)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (300.56)

3 Donation paid  -    -  -  -  -  -    -   

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (7.50)  (7.50)

4 Rent paid  2.09  -  -  -  -  -  2.09 

 (2.97)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (2.97)

5 Expenses incurred  by the party on 
behalf of the Company/

 4.82 
 (5.38)

 - 
 (-) 

 - 
 (-) 

 - 
 (-) 

 - 
 (-) 

 - 
 (-) 

 4.82 
 (5.38)

(-) by the Company on behalf of 
the party - net

6 Remuneration  -    30.69  27.74  -  20.40  -    78.83 

 (-)  (32.76)  (25.23)  (-)  (21.72)  (-)  (79.71)

7 Rent received  -    -  -  -  -  -  -   

 (0.02)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.02)

8 Directors'  sitting fee  -    -  -  0.29  -  -  0.29 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (0.11)  (-)  (-)  (0.11)

9 Directors'  Commission  -    -  -  1.20  -  -  1.20 

 (-)  (-)  (-)  (1.00)  (-)  (-)  (1.00)

10 Redemption of preference shares  -    -  -    -  -  -  -   

 (28.00)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (28.00)

11 Amount received by company upon 
exercise of options under stock 

 -   
 (-) 

 - 
 (-) 

 -   
 (-) 

 - 
 (-) 

 1.44 
 (3.35)

 - 
 (-) 

 1.44 
 (3.35)

option scheme for issue of equity 
shares

12 Corporate social responsibility  -    -  -    -  -    4.00  4.00 

expenditure  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

13 Provision against corporate social  -    -  -    -  -    4.80  4.80 

responsibility  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-) 

14 Outstanding balances as at year 
end

A. Receivable      209.61  -  -  -  -  -  209.61 

 (239.14)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (-)  (239.14)

B. Payable  43.86  2.90  0.04  -  0.41  -    47.21 

 (130.98)  (0.09)  (0.04)  (-)  (0.29)  (-)  (131.40)

Figures in brackets pertain to the previous year.
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43. a) Derivatives outstanding at the balance sheet date

Forward Contract to Sell Purpose

1. US $  28.22 million (` 1,808.49 million) 

[Prev. yr.: US$ 25.12 million (` 1,590.52 million)]

Hedging of receivables and highly probable forecast transactions.

2. Euro  15.22 million (` 1,018.11 million) 

[Prev. yr.: Euro 0.39 million (` 31.79 million)]

Hedging of receivables and highly probable forecast transactions.

3.  Euro Nil Hedged to USD (USD Nil)  

[Prev. yr.: Euro 0.25 million (USD 0.34 million)

Hedging of receivables and highly probable forecast transactions

4. GBP 0.43 million (` 38.94 million) 

[Prev. yr.: GBP 1.13 million (` 110.90 million)]

Hedging of highly probable forecast transactions.

Forward Contract to Buy Purpose

1. Euro Nil (` Nil) (Prev. yr. : Euro  0.43 million  

(`35.99 million)]

Hedging of  highly probable forecast transactions

2. US$ 1.86 million (` 117.59 million) 

[Prev. yr. US$ 1.86 million (` 126.81 million)]

Hedging of import payables

3. GBP Nil (` Nil) 

[Prev. yr. GBP 0.05 million (` 4.60 million)

Hedging of import payables

4. Euro  Nil ( ` Nil) 

[(Prev. yr. Euro 0.20 million (` 16.87 million)

Hedging of liability towards fixed assets)

  The equivalent currency amounts for the foreign currency hedges have been considered at the corresponding exchange rates 
prevalent at the balance sheet date.

b) Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposures at the balance sheet date

Import trade payables 

1. US$ 1.21 million (` 76.15 million) [Prev. yr.: US$ 0.16 million (` 9.56 million)]

2. Euro 0.42 million (` 29.24 million) [Prev. yr.: Euro 0.14 million (` 11.46 million)]

3. CHF 0.03 million (` 2.01 million) [Prev. yr.: CHF 0.003 million (` 0.23 million)]

4. GBP 0.12 million (` 11.08 million) [Prev. yr.: GBP 0.09 million (` 8.83 million)]

5. JPy 13.55 million (` 7.13 million) [Prev. yr.: JPy 19.94 million (` 11.77 million)]

Export trade receivable

1. US$ 3.11 million (` 194.07 million) [Prev. yr.: US$ 0.36 million (` 21.19 million)]

2. Euro 0.03 million (` 2.02 million) [Prev. yr.: Euro 0.03 million (` 2.64 million]

3. GBP 0.03 million (` 2.70 million) [Prev. yr.: GBP 0.32 (` 31.34 million]

Liabilities towards purchase of fixed assets

1. Euro Nil [Prev. yr.: Euro 0.003 million (` 0.28 million]
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44. The Group has made provisions during the year for employee benefits relating to its obligations towards defined contributions 
and defined benefit plans. The required disclosures are given below:

 i) Defined Contribution Plans
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 
Employer’s contribution to  employees’ provident      

(i) Employer’s contribution to  employees’ provident fund scheme 25.43 24.51

(ii) Employer’s contribution to employees’ state insurance scheme 0.27      0.32

(iii) Employer’s contribution to officers’ pension scheme 7.94 7.81

 ii) Defined Benefit Plans

  Changes in present value of obligation

(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (Partly funded) Compensated absence (un-funded)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Present value of obligation as at the beginning 
of the year     66.35 60.80 20.03 21.10

Interest cost 4.89 4.61 1.53 1.67

Current service cost 8.06 6.26 1.99 1.36

Past service cost 0.05 - - -

Benefits paid (10.78) (13.07) (1.93) (2.82)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 8.35 7.75 (0.06) (1.28)

Present value of obligation as at the end of the 
year 76.92 66.35 21.56 20.03

Changes in Value of plan assets

(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (Partly funded) Compensated absence (un-funded)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the 
year 61.65 40.50 - -

Expected Return on plan assets 5.39 3.54 - -

Contributions 10.56 30.58 - -

Benefits paid (10.56) (13.07) - -

Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Asset 0.75 0.10       - -

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of  year 67.79  61.65 - -

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (Partly funded) Compensated absence (un-funded)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 76.92 66.35 21.56 20.03

Fair Value of plan assets as at the end of the year 67.79 61.65 - -
Funded status / difference (9.13) (4.70) (21.56) (20.03)

Net assets / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet (9.13) (4.70) (21.56) (20.03)
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Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity (Partly funded) Compensated absence (un-funded)

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Current service cost 8.06 6.26 1.99 1.35

Past service cost  0.04 - - -

Interest cost 4.89 4.61 1.53 1.67

Expected return on plan assets (5.39) (3.54) - -

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised during the 
year 7.60 7.65 (0.06) (1.28)

Expenses recognised in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss 15.20 14.98 3.46 1.74

Experience adjustment
(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity Compensated absence

31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13 31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.13

Defined benefit obligation 76.92 66.35 60.80 21.56 20.03 21.10

Fair value of plan assets 67.79 61.65 40.50 - - -

Surplus /(deficit) (9.13) (4.70) 20.30 (21.56) (20.03) (21.10)

Experience adjustment on plan 
liabilities-(gain) / loss

1.89 2.90 2.19 (2.55) (4.02) (3.43)

Experience adjustment on plan 
assets-(gain) / loss

(0.75) 0.20 - - - -

  

    The amount of contribution expected to be made to the gratuity fund during the financial year ending 31-03-16 is ` 15.09 million.

Major actuarial assumptions  
(` in Million)

Particulars Gratuity Compensated absence

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

Discounting rate 8.00% 8.50%-9.00% 8.00% 8.50%

Future salary increase 7.50% 7.00% 7.50% 7.00%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% - -

Mortality table IIALM 2006-08 IIALM 2006-08

Method used Projected unit credit method

The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

45. In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the holding Company was required to spend ` 26.39 million, being two percent of 
the average net profit of the holding Company for the preceding three financial years, to fulfill its obligation for Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR). Of this amount, the holding Company has during the year spent ` 17.61 million and a further sum of ` 4.80 
million committed by the holding Company under a CSR project undertaken by it, has been provided in the accounts. This being 
the first year, it had taken time for the holding Company to organise and conceive suitable projects and hence there has been a 
shortfall of ` 3.98 million in meeting the obligations. 

46. During the year, the holding Company has acquired land capitalised at ` 388.65 million from Karnataka Industrial Areas 
Development Board on a lease-cum-sale basis. The holding Company is required to pay ` 0.14 million per year towards lease and 
maintenance charges for an initial period of ten years. Thereafter the ownership of the land will be transferred in favour of the 
Company and accordingly the land has been disclosed as freehold land and no amortisation is required to be provided.
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47. Statement of Additional Information :
(` in Million)

Particulars  31.03.2015  31.03.2014 
Employer’s contribution to  employees’ provident      

a) Value of imports on CIF basis :

 i) Raw materials  361.10  183.72 

 ii) Spare parts for machinery Maintenance  -    6.18 

 iii) Purchase of materials and Components  93.92  1.85 

 iv) Capital goods  4.82  191.76 

b) Value of imports on CIF basis :

 i) Travelling  29.82  16.69 

 ii) Selling commission  72.30  34.01 

 iii) Erection and commissioning  11.39  6.48 

 iv) Warranty Expenses  -    21.24 

 v) Exhibition Expenses  6.12  5.84 

 vi) Refurbhishing Works  -    7.14 

 vii) Others  13.66  10.35 

c) Earnings in foreign currency

 i) Exports of goods on F.O.B. basis  2,523.62  1,258.73 

 ii) Service charges  72.92  156.01 

 iii) Selling commission  -    0.06 

 d) Consumption of raw material, spare parts and components :

Particulars  31.03.2015 31.03.2014

 ` in Million  %  ` in Million  %

i) Raw Material

 - Imported  302.64 7.75%  87.82 2.86%

 - Indigenous  3,601.32 92.25%  3,043.38 97.14%

Total  3,903.96 100.00%  3,131.20 100.00%

ii) Components and Spare Parts

 - Imported  -    -    -    -   

 - Indigenous 140.06 100.00%  106.27 100.00%

Total  140.06 100.00%  106.27 100.00%
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 e) Remittance in foreign currencies of dividend :

   The holding Company has not remitted any amount in foreign currencies on account of dividend during the year and does not 
have information as to the extent to which remittances, if any, in foreign currencies on account of dividend have been made by/
on behalf of non-resident shareholders. The particulars of dividend paid to non-resident shareholders (including non-resident 
indian shareholders) which were declared during the year are as under :-

Particulars Dividend paid during FY 2014-15 Dividend paid during FY 2013-14

Final dividend for 
FY 2013-14

Interim Dividend 
for FY 2014-15

Final dividend for 
FY 2013-14

 Interim Dividend 
for FY 2013-14

i) Number of non-resident shareholders  368  360  403  386 

ii) Number of Ordinary Shares held by them  62,033,506  62,766,575  42,620,795  56,672,353 

iii) Gross amount of dividend - ` in milllion  34.12  15.69 23.44 11.33

48. Payment to Auditors represents amount paid / payable to the auditors on account of :
(` in Million)

S. No. Particulars Statutory auditors * Branch auditors Cost auditors 

 31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014  31.03.2015  31.03.2014

1) Audit fee 0.92 0.74 0.45 0.40 0.06 0.06

2) Tax Audit fee 0.24 0.19 0.24 0.17 -

3) Limited review fee 0.13 0.11 0.21 0.18 - -

4) Certification charges 0.32 0.27 0.04 0.03 - -

5) Reimbursement of expenses 0.07 0.06 0.45 0.70    - 0.00

Total 1.68 1.37 1.39 1.48 0.06 0.06

 * Excluding service tax of ` 0.07 million (Previous year ` 0.07 million) charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

49. The financial information as required under Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013 is shown below:

Name of the entity Net Assets i.e total assets minus total 
liabilities

Share in profit or loss

As a % of 
consolidated net 

assets

Amount 
(` in Million)

As a % of 
consolidated profit 

or loss

Amount 
(` in Million)

Parent  
       Triveni Turbine Ltd 92.26% 2,171.62 94.92% 884.83

Subsidiaries
Indian
       GE Triveni Ltd 7.67% 180.54 5.67% 52.92

Foreign
      Triveni Turbines Europe Pvt Ltd 0.16% 3.67 -0.16%    (1.52)

      Triveni Turbines DMCC -0.09% (2.11) -0.43% (4.04)

Total before minority interests 100.00% 2,353.72 100.00% 932.19

Minority Interests in all subsidiaries 2.87% 67.45 2.89% 26.93

50. The previous year’s figures have been rearranged wherever necessary, to make them comparable to those of the current year.

As per our report of even date.
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